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Monumental sculpture of nine mustangs by Robert Glen, interna-
tionally recognized wildlife artist. In Williams Square of Las
Colinas, 5201 N. O’Connor Blvd. in Irving, Texas. A free exhibit in
the West Tower details the development of the sculpture with a film
and photos. Also on display are other bronzes by the artist, who
makes his home in Kenya. Open Monday through Saturday
10a.m.-6 p.m., and 1-6 p.m. Sunday.
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Welcome toacountry
where the natives

are friendlyand the

language barrier
1s easily overcome.

Texas. There’s so much to
see and do, it’s like visiting a
whole other country. (As you’ll
see, looking over the 248 pages
of this book.)

Catch awave. Pick up a tan.
Go fishing. You can choose
from over 600 miles of Texas
beaches.

Or climb a mountain.
Tame a river. It’s all part of the
grandeur you’ll experience in

ig Bend.

Then fellow the lights to
the big cities. Houston. Dallas.
San Antonio. You’ll go away
remembering the Alamo and a
whole lot more.

Park here. Some of the best
theme parks in the world are
ready and waiting to entertain
you. (Not to mention a full
card of professional baseball,
football and basketball teams. )

And come dinner time, the
menu includes Gulf seafood,

IEXAS

1t5 Like A Whole Other Country.

barbecue, Tex-Mex, country
cookin’ and more.

Affordable. Close. And fun.
That’s Texas. Plus, friendly
folks just like you, who like
nothing better than showing
off their home state.

So welcome to the country
of Texas.

Where the natives speak
our language from county
ine to coastline. And from

ear to ear.






HERE’S YOUR INVITATION
TO THE COUNTRY THAT’S

t's not sc exaggerated to think of Texas as a whole
country— 800 miles wide and nearly that far north
to south. Sunny seacoast to mile-high mountains;
dense forests to cactus-studded desert; great cities
and towns!

HOW TO USE THIS TEXAS GUIDE

IMPORTANT: The first part of this guide book tells what
to see and do in seven special sections (through page
75). Those sections summarize attractions around major
Texas cities. See the Table of Contents this page.

We hope these special sections make it easier to explore
complex metropolitan areas and enrich your trip. For in-
stance, when visiting DALLAS-FORT WORTH, one might
not know about other prime visitor attractions just minutes
from your DALLAS-FORT WORTH headquarters. So, each
section groups cities that are very near the main metro
hub— places with interesting visitor features.

Notice that sach of the special sections is printed on
colored paper —a different color per section. And, a sim-
plified map begins each special section.

THE REST OF THE BOOK

Beyond the special sections, beginning on page 76, just
thumb through alphabetical listings of hundreds more Texas
cities and towns. Each city’s “Map” code shows grid coordi-
nates to locate it on the Texas Official Highway Travel Map.
Along with this book, the maps are free from any Texas
Travel Information Center, or by mail from the address on
this book’s back cover.

Highway designations in the book include I- for Interstate
highways, U.S. for U.S. Highways, Texas for state
highways, and F.M. and R.M. for Texas Farm or Ranch
Roads, all of which are fine paved routes. Populations
listed are the latest available official census figures.
Altitudes are in feet above sea level.

In the Table of Contents, note other subjects of travel
interest toward the end of this book, especially “Need
Additional Information?”

Updated annually, details in this guide were correct at
time of printing. Changes, of course, do occur. Therefore,
verification with a local chamber of commerce or attraction
may be wise before actual arrival.

Let this guide be your companion as you discover the
country that's Texas!




AUSTIN

CENTEX AREA

The Austin metropolitan area is the
northeastern gateway to the Texas
Hill Country where skyscrapers yield
to the rolling hills teeming with
white-tailed deer and other native
wildlife. Here visitors find the Capitol
complex and the heart
of state government...only a few
blocks from historic Sixth Street,
known for its diverse music — blues,
country/Western, reggae, jazz, swing
and rock — performed in various clubs
alang the renowned street and
around the city. Here, too, visitors
may discover an underwater theater
at Aquarena Springs in San Marcos,
retrace the steps of the notorious
outlaw Sam Bass, buried in Round
Rock Cemetery, or visit a village of
the Old West in Wimberley — all with-
in easy driving distance of Austin.

The Austin Cen-Tex area comprises
multiple cities under its name. Refer
to the adjacent section map for loca-
tions of the following cities and
towns grouped in this special Austin
Cen-Tex section:

Austin San Marcos
Bastrop Taylor
Georgetown Wimberley
Round Rock

After several special sections like
this at the front of this book, see
page 76 where alphabetical listings of
other Texas cities and towns begin,
each with fascinating attractions to
enrich your travels anywhere in the
Lone Star State.

® Georgetown

®
Taylor
Round Rock

®\Bastrop

® Wimberley @

San Marcos ®

AUSTIN Pop. 465,622 Alt. 550 Map K-17

General — In 1839 five mounted scouts ranged

over a broad area of wilderness seeking a site for

a new capital city for the Republic of “exas.

Location on north bank of Colorado Rive: was

chosen, where rich blacklands meet scenic hills.

Site occupied at the time by a four-family settle-
ment called Waterloo. Name honors Stephen F. Austin, the “=ather
of Texas.” About first of Sept. 1839, arshives and furniture of Texas
government were transported from Houston to Austin by
50 ox-drawn wagons.

Institutions of higher learning include Austin Community College,
Austin Presbyterian Theological Seminary, Concordia Lutheran Col-
lege, Episcopal Theological Seminary of the Southwes:, Huston-
Tillotson College, St. Edward’s Univ., end the state’s largest, Univ.
of Texas at Austin. :

Major annual event is Aqua Festival, three weekends in Jul. and
Aug. Parades, pageants and water-relatad contests centered zround
Town Lake in city, with other events scheduled on chain of High-
land Lakes.

HANDS-ON SCIENTIFIC EXHIBITS AT DISCOVERY HALL, AUSTIN



LYNDON B. JOHNSON LIBRARY AND MUSEUM, AUSTIN

Widely known for its diverse music community aad live music
scene. Austin has it all—blues, country/Mestern, regcas, jazz,
swing end rac<. Performed in various clubs arcund city and at night
spots along Sixth Street (see below).

The city is home to nation’s largest urban bzt coony undet the
Congrass Ave. bridge curing the summer. A kiosk on-2orth shore of
Town Lake's hike-and-bike trail near Four Seazons Hotel nforms
visitors when and where to watch for the nocturnal mammials.

For details about many other events and cizy attraciions, visi- the
Travel Information Certer in the State Capitol {which se€), or the
Austin Convantion anc Visitors Bureau in 100-vear=Id buildng at
412 E Sixth St, or at iaformation booth in Roo=2t Mueller Municipal
A rpor..

Austin Children’s Museum - Children {anc adults, tool) can

tcuch, play: ard climb -o their hearts' conter. Mussum activities

relate to three themes  how different people liva, the human tody,
and everydayv science and technology. Summer hours, Tues. - Sat.
10 am. -5 pm. Sun.noon -5 p.m; sping/falwinte, Wed. - Sat.
10am. -5pn.; Sun. roon -5 p.m. 15601 W. Fif:h St. Admrissen.
Austin Nature Center — Exhibits of science, natuzal histery and
botany. Open Tues. - Sat. 9 am. - 5 pm.; Sun. 1 - 5 p.m 301
Nature Center Dr.

Discovery Hall — What used to be en olc bus station has turned
into sometaing wonderful-for chidren (andcrown-ups, too!) to leam
science ths fun way as they explore w=h all sorts of hands-on
actvties. Open Tues. - Fi. 2- S em; Sa=; Sun. 1 - 5 p.m. At 4th
anc Congress Ave. Admission.

Elisabet Ney Museum — National ‘ﬂSIC-”IC Site and studio of
famed German sculptress who immigrztec to Texas in the 1870s.
Her works stand in Europesn palaces, the Texas and National
Capiols, and the Smithsonian Mziional Iiseum of Americen Art.
Larcest colection at her studio here; opey Vled - 5at 10 am. -
5:00 p.m.; Sun. noon - 5:90 p.m-204 E_44th St

French Legation — Built 184€ by Com-e Alphonse de Saligny,
Freach charge d'affaires to the Zepubliz of Texas; a gem of Treole
arckitecture with a supetb collection 5f seriod furnishings. Open
Tues. - Sur. 1 -5 p.m. 802 San M=rcos S:. Admission.

George VWashington Carver Museum - Changing exhibits of
black histcry and culture of Aastin and- Trevis County; photos,
arti‘acts, folk craft and art. Open Tues. = “hurs. 10 am. - 6 pm;;
Fri. - Sat. noon - 5 p.m. 1165 E. Angelira St by Carver Library.
Governor’'s Mansion — Dicni~ed w=itecolumned mansion built
18E6. Governor and his family oecupy a private second-floor apart-
me-1. Other elegant rooms and z=tique fam shings may be seen on
pukliz tours Mon. - Fri., every 20-minutzs, 19 to 11:40 am. Groups
and official functions control sch=dule. “21€ Cclorado St

PARKLANDS AND WALKING TRAILS EDGE TCWN LAKE IN AUSTIN




Hamilton Pool — Long a treasured swimming hole for Austinites
and Univ. of Texas students, this grotto-like pool is one of Texas’
most beautiful. 60-ft. waterfall spills into a deep, jade-green pool.
(Note: water quality carefully monitored and swimming not allowed
when bacteria too high) Other activities include picnicking and
nature study. Guided nature tour by reservation. No pets, glass
containers, fires or cooking allowed. Take Texas 71 west approxi-
mately 16 miles to FM. 3238 south 13 miles. For additional
information call 512/264-2740. Admission.

Harry Ransom Center — Contains more than 300 paintings of
the Michener Collection, a Gutenberg Bible printed in 1455, exhibits
of photography, theater arts, American artists and collections. Open
Mon. - Sat. 9 am. - 5 pm=Sun. 1 -5 p.m. On Univ. of Texas
Campus, 21st and Guadalupe

Laguna Gloria Art Museum — Home of Texas Fine Arts Asso-
ciation in Italianate villa on shore of Lake Austin at site first chosen
by Stephen F. Austin for his home. Changing exhibitions of 20th
Century American art; classes, films and lectures. Open Tues. - Sat.
10 am. - 5 pm. (Thurs. 9 pmJ; Sun. 1 - 5 p.m 3809 W. 35th.
Admission.

Lakes — Austin, Town, Travis, Walter B. Long. See LAKES listing.
Lyndon B. Johnson Library and Museum — Ar-
chives/museum relating to LBJ and office of presidency in general;
colorful highlights of political campaigns. Exhibits include gifts from
foreign heads of state, a moon rock, replica of Oval Office and
changing exhibits. Open daily 9 am. - 5 p.m., 2313 Red River St.
Manor Downs — Quarter Horse pari-mutuel racing is held during
spring and fall just minutes from Austin. Take US. 290 east to
Manor and Manor Downs Rd. For racing information, 512/272-5581 .
McKinney Falls State Park— At confluence of Onion and
Williamson Creeks with quiet pools, occasional rapids and water-
falls. Excellent visitor center, hiking and interpretive trails,
campsites, playground, ruins of homestead of Thomas F. MeKinney,
one of Stephen F. Austin's original 300 colonists. Situated about 13
miles southeast of downtown: From U.S. 183 south, take Scenic
Loop Rd. west to park entrance; admission.

Mount Bonnell — At westemn edge of city overlooking Lake Aus-
tin; dramatic views of city and Hill Country. Mount Bonnell Rd.
reached via W. 35th and Old Bull Creek Rd.

Museo del Barrio de Austin — Chicano and Latino art. Open
Mon. - Fri. 9 am. - 5 p.m. 1402 E. First St.

National Wildflower Research Center — Established 1982 on
60 acres east of Austin donated by Lady Bird Johnson. The Center
created to stimulate research and education about preservation,
propagation and use of wild flowers throughout the nation. Espe-
cially colorful during spring. Visitors receive information on plants
native to their region or home state, Open Mon. - Fri. 9 am. -
4 p.m. At 2600 F.M. 973 north.

Neill-Cochran House - Domicile of National Society of Colonial
Dames of America in Texas. Greek Revival architecture circa 1853.
Antique furnishings and historic documents. Open Wed. - Sun. 2 - 5
p.m. Closed holidays and Aug. 2310 San Gabriel St. Admission.

O. Henry Home — Residence of William Sydney Porter, eminent
short story writer who signed his works “Q. Henry.” Porter lived in
Austin 1885-95. Desk, writing materials and other furnishings of the
period. Open Wed. - Sun. noon - 5 p.m. 409 E. 5th St.

Old Bakery and Emporium — Built as bakery by Swedish im-
migrant Charles Lundberg in 1876; now craft shop selling handi-
crafts and baked goods by senior citizens. Open Mon. - Fri. 9 am. -
4 p.m.; Summer and Dec., Sats. 10 am. - 3 p.m. 1006 Congress.
Parks — Eight major park areas of more than 5,600 acres. includ-
ing four municipal golf courses, 42 playgrounds, 21 swimming

LITTLEFIELD FOUNTAIN
AND UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS
TOWER IN AUSTIN

SWIMMERS ENJOY
GROTTO-LIKE
HAMILTON POOL
NEAR AUSTIN

pools, 39 tennis court araas, four community “ecreation centers and
71 athletic fields.

Walter E. Long lLake and Metropoltan Pazk includes all lands
around 1,300-acre lake; fishing, sailrg. Abcut 5 miles east of
downtown, Blue Bluff Rd. off Webberville Rd. admission.

Fiesta Gardens on Town Lake; displays of exotic flora and la-
goon.

Emma Long Metropclitan Park, baside Lake Austin about 17
miles northwest via R.M. 2222 Swimming, fishing and camping;
admission.

Zilker Park in southwest Austin includes pcpular Barton Springs
swimming pocl (open ate Mar. - Oct. 31: fee), Zilker Hillside
Theater and Austin Area Garden Center. Free Zilker Hillside Theater
presents shows under the stars, early June - Aug. Austin Area
Gardzn Center is a free, beautiful shoacase of flowers, shrubs and
trees; also a pioneer log cabin furnished in the frontier style.

Two other popular fecilities of Austin parks are hike and bike
trails in scenic areas alorg Shoal Creek and Blirn Creek.

Sixth Street (Old Pecan Street)— Beftre the Capitol was
built and shifted the certer of commerce to Cangress Avenue, Old
Peca Street was Austn's main street. Negected for years, it's
been reborn with restaurants, clubs, saops anc art galleries occupy-
ing the Victorian and native stone buldings Carnival atmosphere
especially apparent on weekends. Registered Historic District.
Seven blocks between 1-35 and Congrass Ave.

Slaughter Leftwich Winery  Naiive stons facility, built in tra-
dition of early Texas arcaitecture, transforms crapes grown at vine-
yard near Lubbock intc award winning wines. Tours of winery
Thurs. - Sun. 1 - 5 pm. {Sept. - Jun. or weekends only 1 - 5 p.mJ);
wine tasting room open daily 1 - 5 p.m. Has panoramic view of
Lake Travis and the Hill Country. From Austin, R.M. 2222 west to
R.M. 620, south past Mansfield Dam ° mile to Eck Lane.

State Capitol Complex — 46 acres of inrmaculate, landscaped
grounds, stately shade trees and flewering gardens. The Capitol
itself, a massive, classic statehouse of famous Texas pink granite,
dominates the park-like area. Striking state of‘ize buildings surround
the Capitol. Free guided tours of the Capitol caily 8:30 am. - 4:30
p.m. Details about points of interest in Capitcl, city and entire state
available seven days a week (excep: for Trenksgiving, Christmas
Eve, Christmas Day and New Year's) in the State Capitol at Travel
Information Center operated by State Department of Highways and
Public Transportation. Midtown.

State Cemetery — Th= “Arlington of Texas” where monuments
mark resting places of rearly 2,000 patriots, 5:atesmen and heroes
of Texas, including tormbs of Stephen F. Austin and Gen. Albert
Sidney Johnston. E. 7th and Comal Sts.

Texas Memorial Museum — Historical, archeological and geo-
logical exhibits and dioramas, including famad Paluxy dinosaur
tracks. Open Mon. - Fri. 9 a.m. -5 p.m; Sat 10am. -5 p.m., Sun.
1 - 5 p.m. Closed major 1olidays. 240C Trinity St.

Texas Museum of Natural History — Extibits devoted to in-
terpretation of paleontology; houses Senesc Exhibit of dinosaur
and other prehistoric fossil casts. Opex Wed - Sat. 11 am. - 4 pm.
600 Congress Ave., 2nd flocr pavilion. Admission.

Texas State Library — Documents and keoks dealing with all
phases of Texas history. Open Mon. - Sat. &am -5 p-m. Closed
holidays. Just east of State Capitol.

Town Lake Riverboat Tour — Sightsesing excursions on
paddlewheeler Lone Star from Memorial Day -0 Labor Day, depart-
ing from dock at Hyatt Regency Hote: on Town Lake: 1 5-hr. cruise
under city bridges, pas: mouth of Earton Creek and Zilker Park.
“wilderess” scenery of limestone cliffs, huge bald cypress and
native pecan trees, waterfowl and great blue herons, Tour fee. Call
512/327-1388 for schedule.



JAPANESE GARDEN
IN ZILKER PARK, AUSTIN

1911 NAPIER, ONE OF MANY
VINTAGE CARS IN CENTRAL
TEXAS MUSEUM OF
AUTOMOTIVE HISTORY
NEAR BASTROP

University Art Museum — A -eaching gallery with exhibits
cha~gec monthly. Open Mon -Sat 9am -5pm (Thurs 9p m)
Sur. - -5 p.m 23rd and San Jacinte Sts.

Wild Basin Preserve — Scenic hill country wilderness west of
city. he 220-acre d-eserve i3 home to two endangered bird spe-
cies  Golden-cheeked Warbk: and Black-eaped Vireo. Four miles of
hikirg trails and a speciai trar for the mobility impaired. Open daily
surnse to sunset. On Lcop 360, 1.25 miles north of Bee Cave Rd.
(R.R. 2244). =or special guidsd tours, cal 512/476-4113.

Pop. 5,890 All. 374 Map K-17

BASTROP

General —One of Texas oldest settlements,

first called Mina, the town's name was changed

; J aJout 837 to honcr a man of fame and influence

ir ‘early Texas. The man was Felipe Enrigue Neri,

\’ Beron c¢e Bastop, a prominent Dutch
noolercan—ar sa the colonists thought.

Astuelly, he was a flenboyant ircposter whose real name was
Phiiz- Eencrk Nering Bag=’, ‘born not of Holland's nobility, but in
Duiek Guiana of orcinary Ztich paents. Appointed a tax collector
after he ard his parents returmned o Holland, he was accused of
emzezzema1t and fled the sountry.

Aspearing in Texas as Baran de Eastrop in 1805, he obtained a
colony grart: estabished e freightice business, and was appointed
secord £lcelde of San Arteria in 181). He was a primary negotiator
wity ths government of Mexico fo- Stephen F. Austin’s original
Ang c-Ameiean cclony. Hs was elected representative to the
Mexican state of Cazhuila tanich inc uded Texas), secured passage
of 3 “urthe’ immigreticn-ast, and was nstrumental in establishing
the port of Galvestor.

Of impressive prysica stature, dashing and energetic, the coun
terfeil baron s enterorises resulted in fitle profit At his death in
1827 be did not Iz3ve enoigh funds “or burial expenses; fellow
legis slatcrs contributed the scst. In Holland, unclaimed for 20 years,
was a3 rewerd of 1.00€ 3oid ducass “or return of the accused
emzezzer.

Bad and breakfast accommadations offered in historic buildings.

LAKE ALSTIN FROM TOP OF MOUNT BONNELL

 Nov.> Mer Fri - S5at, 9 an -5 pm Sun 2 -

~_interpretive folder frory chamber of commerce, 1010 Colege St

Bastrop Advertiser— Oldest weekly newspaper in Texas, es-
tablished 853, 908 Water Street,

Bastrop Museum — Frontier tools, artifacts, oictures, docu-
ments, and fumishings in restored house, built 1850.-Cpen Sat,
Sun. 1 -5 p.m. 702 lvain St. Admission.

Bastrop State Park - 3530 acres of quiet, rolling parkland
shaded by the stange “Lost Pines” - an isoleted area of stately
pine trees far from the vast piney woods of East Texes. Camping
and group camp facilities, cabins, trailer sites, picnickng, fishing,
swimming, colf, nature study, hiking. One mile east of intersection
of Texas 21/71; admission. Scenic Park Road 1 connects with
Buescher State Park 15 miles to east. t{See SMITHVILLE:.

_ Central Texas Museum of Automotive History - Nearly

sight decades of autamotive history in some 85 vintags cars from
Model Ts to a Cuesenberg; some old, scme rare, ell beautiful.
Open Apr - Oct. Wed - Sat. 9 am. -5 pm.: Sun 2 -5 pm.;
5 pm Some
12 miles south on Tex. 304 (see map); phone 512/237-2051; admis-
sion.

Lake — Basfrop. Ses LAKES [sting.

Lock’s Drug—Like stepping back into history; fum shmgs aﬂd
equipment of a 19th Century doctor's office and drug 3store, along

 with old-fashioned ice cream parlor. 1003 Main St ,
 Memorial Medallion Trail — Marked route of several miles

within town leads to many historic sites, from Bastrop Museum to
antebellum homes, ckurches and business housss. Obtein map and

“LOST PINES,” AN ISOLATED AREA OF PINE TREES FAR FROM

EAST TEXAS, SHADE HIKING TRAILS IN BASTROP-STATE PARK
GEORGETOWN  Pop. 14,842 Alt. 750 Map J-17

General — Established 1848 as trads center for
agricuitural region. Seat of Williamsoa County at
edce of blazk, fertile farmland and =il Country
ransh lands. Participation in Vain Stest Project.
has resulte¢ in preservation and restoration of
downtown Victorian commerc al archizecture; gra-



GOLFERS ENJOY COURSE AT BASTROP STATE PARK

cious square is cited on Natonal Register of Historic Places: site of
southwestern Univ, prestigious Methodist school founded in 1840
Visitors may tot” a factory that oroduces more than a tFousand
kinds of colorful, decorative 2andles.
Inner Soace - T=xas’ newest and rost accessible caver: sub-
terranear beauty of staasfites, stelagmites and flowstones plus
temains of prehisooric mestodons, wolves and lce Age enimals.
Creative lighting ard accustics dramatize the natural beauty. Aver-
age temperature, 2 decrees yearround. On 1-35. one mile south
Admission.
Lakes — Geo-getewr, Gracger. See LAKES listing.
Mood Heritage Museum — Indian and Texana displays: chang-
ing exhibits. Open Tues., Thurs. aftemoons, Fri. moring. On South-
western Jniv. cempus

INNER SFACE CAVERN LIES BENEATH 1-35 IN GEORGETOWN

ROUND ROCK Pop. 30,923 Alt 720 Map K-17
Genera: — Estabfished 1850, named fer large
round rozk in bed of Brushy Creek. Site of his-

. toric St Taarles Hotel, built 1850 Best known as
ste of killing of nctorious outlaw Sam Bass, now
buried “in-Round Rock Cemetery. Bass's gang

plagued stagecosches, trains and banks in area

and was-object of intensive chase by Texas Rangers. An informer
warned Rangers and Round Rock ‘awmen of olanned raid on a local
bank. Bass gang veas encbushed there on Juy 18, 1878 Wounded
i1 the gun battle: Eass died *wo days later.

Lakes — Austin. Georgetown, Granger, and Travis. See LAKES
Esting.

Palm House Museum - Restored foundngfarily homs with
authentic furnishings; elegart parlor, Swedish kitchen. Open Maon. -
Eri 9am, -5pm 212 & Wain St

10
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RGETOWN OFFERS GREAT FISHING AND BOATING

AKE (;.iEO
SAN MARCOS Pop. 28,743 Alt. 581 Map L-16

General — Seat of Hays County at edge of the

Hill Country: was once temporary site of 1we

Spanish missions being relocated from Eest Tex-

as because of French and Indizn difficulties. Laid

out for Anglo-American settlers in 1851 Clear,

cold San Marcos River rises from mammoth
springs within town; noted for profusion of both plant and: animal
aquatic life, river is ranked among world's most fertile. White-tailed
deer are numerous in Hill Country. Hunters also take dove, quail
squirrel, fox and an occasional bobcat. Fishing is enjoyed yeer round
in the San Marcos and nearby Blanco Rivers.

Home of San Marcos Baptist Academy and the alma mater 6f
Lyndon B. Johnson, Southwest Texas State Univ. whose ZampLs
commands an impressive view of city.

Bed and breakfast accommodations offered in historic district
Aquarena Springs — One of Texas' most popular cormearcial
attractions, on Spring Lake that forms beginning of San Marccs
River. “The Legend of Many Springs? evolves around earlv Indian
settling near springs; rediscovered in underwater shows viewed

SAN MARCOS’
AQUARENA SPRINGS




EARTHQUAKE-FORMED WONDER WORLD CAVE IN SAN MARCOS

from submarine theater. Pepsi “Rver Theater” snows award win-

ning film, “The Biver of Innocence, - telling the story of the San

Marcos River and its 200 plus spings. Glass-bottomed boats criise
over an aquatic wanderland on the zrystal lake; senal tramway lifts
visitors over lake and cliff to hillsids gardens featuring Mexican
market, old mill. Re-created froatier: village with authentic sirue-
tures, mission runs and nature ireil; 220-foot Sky Spiral tower
provides panoramizc views. Historic inn overlooks the beautiful set-
ting. Open year rond. Admission

Belvin Street Historic District - Superb examples of 19th-
Century homes aleng street shaded by huge live oaks. Well worth a
drive or stroll {onlv a few blocks) iy southwest San Marcos. Alk are
private residences not open to publc except durmg Tours of Dis-
tinction, first weekend in May. ’
Lake - Canyon, See LAKES listing

San Marcos River Walkway  Jnites three cxty parks along
the picturesque river, accented by L'sh landscaping. Access from
Juan Veramendi Paza, CM. Allen Pawy. at Hopkins St

Scenic Drives — R M 12 northwest to junction with RM. 32,

the winding ridge: route called the " Devil's Backbone,” offers ex-

ceptional views of Hill Country scangry.
Visitor Information Center - Dztails about San Marcos attrac-

tions and events, accommodations, -and the Texas Hill Country

Open daily 9 am - 5 pm.; closed major nolidays. North side of city
on southbound -35, exit 206.

Wonder World — Includes eartag izke-formed cave, wildlife rark,
observation tower gift shop. Cave Hurs every 15 minutes; Ant:

Gravity House, elevator from cave 1o Tejas Tower that offers im-

pressive overlook of town and Hil Esuntry. Ministate train threugh
wildlife park; animal feeding and seitng areas. Open daily; summer
8 am. - 8 pm; winter 9 am -5 pm. Bishop St within Zity.
Admission.

TAYLOR  Pop. 11,472  Alt. 583  Map J-17

aeneral - Origireily named Taylorsville to hon-

or Edward M. Tavlar, an officisl of Houston Belt

“ and Terminal RR aaen townsite laid out in 1876

n southeastern Wiliamson County. First public

school in 1883 tirst water wierks in 1882 and

“irst churches & 2878, incorpotated in 1882 To-

day town is center for agribusiness and industrial area with plants
making furniture, clothing, bedding erd many other products.

Two municipal sarks provide swi 'n'n'ng pools, picnic areas, and
other recreational activities. Taylo: vcuntry Club’s 9-hole golf coirse
is oper 1o the public. ‘
Lake  Granger See L AKES listing. ‘
Moody Museum — Housed in resored bmhpla"e of Texas gov-
emor, Dan Moody: who gained fams-by prosecuting Ku Klux Kien in
Williamson Co. Built in 1887, tke Victorian house contains many
original furnishings donated by tfe \1oody family. Open Sun. 2 -5
pm 114 W, N;mh S

VISITORS FIND ANTIQUES. ART AND CRAFTS IN WIMBERLEY

WIMBERLEY Pop. 3,065 Al 967 Map L-16

General — Established 1848, the picturesque
village “today is 3 resort and retirement area on
BB 22 in beautiful Central Texas Hill Country
no:th of San Marcos. Visitors are entranced by
codl, shady rools beneath towering cypress
trees, ‘rothy cascades on Blanco River and spark-
Ing Cypress Creek, green meacows and majestic hills; abundant
white-teil2d deer. Racreational communities, vacation resorts and
yeuth camps dot area. Climbing, hiking, fishing, swmming boating,
g-lf, tenis, arts ard ceafts, and camping are popular 3ctvities.
Many a‘tsts and authors make their homes here.

Twelve miles north ort RM. 12 is Billie Bob's Knob, ari unusual
shop with 12 displav rooms featuring arts, country crafts and out-
o*:the-ordinary merctandse,

Arts and Crafts Galleries — Hill Country scenes captured in

ols; hkardicrafts, hcbbies and scuvenirs, all avalable in several

geaint shops and studios clustered on and around Wimberley's
“town scuare” at a casual joining of several roads.

Devil’s Backbone — One of Texas’ most sceric drives, officially
RM. 32, tre “Devil's Bzckbone” is a winding, razor-backed ridge
overloo<ing Hill Country vistas. Extends from RM. 12 ;ust south of
Viimberey, west some z4 miles o near Blanco.

Lake — Canyon. Ses LAKES listing. ‘
Pioneertown — A uillags of the Old West re-created at T-A Ranch
Resort ‘cn the Blanzo River Firnishings and desails of saloons,
gzneral store, post office, hotel, opera house, log fort and other
boildings Medicine shows and cld-time melodramas arz regular
s_mmer fare. Art gellery features impressive coliection of 3eming-
ton bronzes and Western paintirgs. Open caly 10 am. - 10 pm.
s.mmer: winter Sat - Sun. 1 - 5:30 p.m. 7-A Ranch Resort, one
mle S. of Wimberley.

“BLUE HOLE” ON CYPRESS CREEK IN WIMBERLEY




CORPUS
CHRISTI

AND THE COASTAL BEND

Texas’ coastal bend spans an arc of
some 115 miles along the state's mid-
dle Gulf Coast from the southern end
of Matagorda Peninsula to Baffin Bay.
One of America’s great playgrounds,
it is a treasure trove of things to see
and do, places to go. In this sunny
land of palm trees, blue waters, gold-
en sands, and happy people, Texas’
tropical coast is a jewel of endless
beaches and sunny skies. Recreational
opportunities lure vistors to vast
sport-fishing bays, piers, and beaches,
while campers enjoy tree-shaded
state parks and campgrounds.

Here, too, visitors discover denizens
of the deep at the Texas State Aquar-
ium in Corpus Christi, beachcomb for
driftwood and seashells along the
sands of Padre Island, visit historic
Fulton Mansion, marvel at many mu-
seums, or ride the range on the
famed King Ranch. Refer to the ac-
companying map for locations of the
following cities and towns grouped
together in this special Coastal Bend
section:

Aransas Pass Port Aransas
Corpus Christi Rockport
Kingsville Sinton
Mathis Taft

After several special sections like
this at the front of this book, see
page 76 where alphabetical listings of
other Texas cities and towns begin,
each with fascinating attractions to
enrich your travels anywhere in the
Lone Star State.

(7}

@ Sinton

Mathis @

Aransas
Pass

Corpus
Christi

€3

@ § Kingsville

GULF OF MEXICO
SHRIMP HARVEST
AT ARANSAS PASS

General —Named for pass between Kisiang
and St. Joseph [slands; on mainland “but zon-
nected to Mustang lsland and Port Aans
causeway and ferry. Shrimping, commercial
sport fishing are top area industries. ‘Nate
hunting in season. Guide service availab
Visit Conn Brown Harbor, south from Stepp Ave.; f
entrance, see Seamen's Memorial Tower, dedicated to tish
lost at sea. z :
Fishing - Area is mecca for fishermen. Courtless bait :
shops supply all angling needs, including ren-al equipm
shore, wharves, piers, and jetties, anglers may expect
redfish, speckled and sand trout, sheepshead, flounder cn

~ skipjack, and drum. Group boats provide bay and deep-s
for half or full days; charter cruisers are available for offshore:
Species caught from group or charter boats may inclu
sailfish, marlin, kingfish, mackerel, ling, pompano, bonito,
per, warsaw, and others. : :



CORPUS CHRISTI Pop. 257,453 Ali. 35 Map G-17

General — City is major deep—water ;:ort and
one of Texcs’ most popular ££a0c0ast playground
cities. First European to havs v sited area is be-

< leved to 1ave been Spans
\T/ Pineda i~ 1619, First settlerrert began a

nizer Col. Herry Lawrence Kinney, obscure se:tlercent unti
1845 wher aczelerated crovith began. [astitut of higher learning
are Dl Mar Eollegs and Corpus Christi State Univ,

Seawall, with staps tc 1 water, was bult ia the late 1930s as
part of & mzor landfill that created >eawall Bouevard and the
populas T Foad docks for pleasurs toats. Cerpus Chris
north-2f downtown Gver the bridge, i5 site ‘of new Tex
Aquadum anc offers perk arsas, picnic tables: showers ard rest
rooms. For maps and curant information or Sorgus Chrisi-attrac-
tions see Vis tor Centers (bsow), - :

In Lnepmg vith 18 onq time slogan, ~Sparkiicg Zi=y by the Sea,”
& Scienze Park

Some 150 ‘ountains fcrrr clnus of park, whu:!j is lighted qt,m;ht

SHRIMPING IS 3I1G EUS!NESS IN ARANSAS PASS

SAND. SURF AND smsmz FUN...CORPUS ::HRIS'TI

Aquarium, Texas Slate _Experie ce urdprspa adven‘ura Ugon
entering tarougy cescades of weter abcve glass-enclosed tunmel.
Close-up views ot the worders of the Guf of Maxico 1 a wide
of “marire habizats: an attficiel reef: community crezted by
 assive leg cf an offstore i rig; the coler ard beauty 5f =he
Flow=r Gzrians Coral Feef 132.000-3allon despwater ed bit
wher= visitors 13k to thz diver: other extib: ts Mbore than 125
spacies of te Gulf's most inceresting creaturas. Open Mon. - Sat.
10 an - 6pn Sa ~e0n -6 pm. 2"10 N. Sroreine Bud.
{Surfs Je Exr[ frern U3, 131) Water taxs ave lable “rom Bayfrnt
Ars Comglex (sze belaw). Ldmission. - -
Art Center of Corpus Christi— “xhbits of work by arze &t
ists. Main calerv exhioits changs monthly. Aristinresidanes stu-
dics Iet vistors wew artsans while they "werk: tearoom. Ogen
Tuss:= FriJ0am - 4pa, Sat. 1 -5 pm Closed Mon. 120 N
Shore’ne Eluc ..
Bayfront Arts and Sclence Park~Foca| point of c;t/ 5 entar-
tainent ¢ nor=h_end-of Shorelne Bivd. at fot o° harbor or dze;
convenzion serter, and the folowing:

Art Mussiura or South Tewas — Sirikingly dessgned budmg
directh« on bey Fouses sigrifizant petmanent collection: otker dis-
plays frequen Iy aangs. Ogen Tuss. - Sat 10-am - 5 pa, Sun
1-5gm. 902 N Showelice Blve. Adrissior. -~ -

Bayfront Plaza Acditorium — Home o° Eorpis Chrmt oy T
phonv cor-mun ty concerts, road shows, Tusizials.




TEXAS STATE AQUAFIUN IN CORPUS CHRISTI

Corpus Christi Museum of Scienze and History — Trea-
sure house of natural history, Gulf Cazst skells and atiftazts, wildlife
dioramas, pictuses, documents, weapois, and mamorztilia high-
lighting varizd, color'ul past. ”Shipvreck ” exhibit FoLs=s artifacts
from 16th Century chpwrecks off Padre Islaad. Filksize replica of
Spanish trzasurs shp. Open Tues. - Sat. 1C am. -5 p.m.; Sun.
noon - 5 pm. 1900 M. Chaparral. Admissior,

Harbor Playhouse — Commurity theater: regJlar p-eductions
and summartime melod-amas, 1 Bayfrant Flaza.

Heritage Pack— Eight restored turr-of-the-cenzury homes in
“0ld lrishtown” secticn Open for visizatior is the Sidb-rv House, a
Victorian Fause that recalls elegance of late 19th Ce=tury; open
Tues. - Thars, €:30 3.m. - 12:30 p.m. Alsc, the Galvar ~louse tha
houses the Multicultu-al Center, featuring chang rg &t exhibits
depicting the city's heritage: open Mon. - Fri. 10 am - 4 p.m.,
1600 block of N. Chaparral St. Guided tours Sat. 10:3C am. and
12:45 p.m
Centennial House — Built ir 1825 of the taer-popular
“shellcrete” constructizn, historic’ 1cuse has beer reztored. fur-
nished and opened ‘o public. Open Wed. 2 - 5 p.r., wAazn flag is
flying. 411 N. Broadwav. Admissior..

Corpus Christi Botanical Gardens  Gardens o= wild and
domesticazed species. Hiking trail through virgin mesqtite brushland
with wide variety of mative plants. Smrall lake: residen- flocks cf
herons, cranes, and roseate spooritills. 1h‘ormatior cente- and gift
shop; picric area. Cpen Tues - Sun. 9 em. - 5 pm. Chsed Mor.
South of city on 5. Stapes St. at Csd Craa<. Admissor

Corpus Christi Marina— Two T’ heads and “L” Fead thrust
from bayfront at hear: of downtown: hund-eds of cleasure craft
moor at reat, moderr docks anc slips. Water sports equipment
rental in season. Excursion boats ply bay from docxs: “iskFing boats
based here, too (below:

Fishing — Free fisnirg from numerous municipal piers, jetties,
miles of beach, and seawall. Bait aad tazkle shops (tazkle may be
rented by the day) a’e ebundant. Arrangements and “eszrvations for
group-boat “ishing may-be made at Corps Crristi Marine cr through
private ope-ators. Amcng species anglers may exgect to take, de-
pending upon season and proverbial ltck 5° the moment zre (in the
bay) sheepchead sard-and specklec trou:, redfish, flounzer, catfish,
whiting, d-um, pomoano, and Sparish mackerel. Seep=sea fisher-
men cruising Gulf wasers from Port fransas may -aks tarpor,
sailfish, wanoo, <ing mackerel, benito, and many othars, plus red
snapper ard jewfish ovzr offshore “ee’s.

Greyhound Race Track — Yeaound racng on 6C-ccre facility.
Evening races Ties. - Sat. 7:30 p.r, Sat. & Sun. 2 p.~. matinees.
Visitors can see greyhounds in thei- naadling pens; 12 sn-premise
kennels. Track ras botn full-service restaurants and a icod court.
Adjacent 15 |-37 between Navigaton 3hd. anc McBride Lr.
512/888-4285.

International Kite Museum —History cf kites through dis-
plays and videc from  earliest Crinese kites mare than 2.000
years ago. Includes fascinating story cf kizes used i~ scientific
discoveries. Ogen caily 10 am. -6 p.r. In Sandy Shizres Resort
at 3200 Surfside.

Lake — Ccrpus Christi. See LAKES lictirg.

Lake Corpus Christi State Park — About 35 miles rorthwest
of Corpus Christi (See FATHIS.)

Museum of Criental Cultures — Feztures Japanese and other
Oriental art; scale mozels of fanrcus pagocas, shrines. and tem-
ples; sculpzure, furriture, paintings, and collzction of hand-crafted
Hakata dofls. Also library, films, slides, and foral at studies. Open
Tues. - Sat. 10 am. - 4 2.m. 418 Peoples, Suize 20C: adr-ission.
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Mustang Island State Park — About 10 miles east of Corpus
Christi. (See PORT ARANSAS.) ‘
Paddlewheeler Flagship — Narrated cruises of Corpus Christi
Bay and Harbor (see Port of Corpus Christi listing). Hour-long morn-
ing, afternoon, and evening cruises. Summer weekend evening
cruises feature jazz band. Schedule varies by season (512/643-7128).
Departure from Peoples St "T“-Head. Fee.

Padre Island National Seashore — 110-mile-ong Padre Island
offers one of the last natural seashores in the nation. Each end of
the narrow sand island is developed with parks and resorts. But in
between, the National Seashore preserves an unblemished 80-mile
stretch of Padre’s middle. Information about swimming beaches and
extensive primitive beach-camping areas and nature frails at ranger
station. Beachcombers may collect seashells, driftwood. perhaps
prized glass floats from Portugal or the Orient. and other items
washed in by tides. Federal law prohibits collecting historical arti-
facts like flint points, antique coins, or any other item more than
100 years old. Use of metal detectors is prohibited on the National
Seashore. Admission.

City is connected with the north end of Padre Island by John F.
Kennedy Causeway. Office of the Superintendent is at 9405
S. Padre lIsland Dr., Corpus Christi, 78418. For information,
512/949-8068. :
Parks, City — Ten major city parks offer variety of outdoor attrac-
tions and facilities, including picnicking, playgrounds, swimming,
tennis, softball and other sports, and fishing pier. Corpus Christi
Beach, north of Harbor Bridge, has pavilion, playground, showers,
rest rooms, and picnicking.

The Hans A. Suter Wildlife Refuge along Oso Bay features a
viewing tower for watching birds, especially flocks of heron, cranes,
and roseate spoonbills. Boardwalk, hike-and-bike facilities, jogaing
trail. Accessible by Ocean Drive or take South Padre Island Dr., exit
at Nile.

Parks, County — Nueces County Parks offer exceptional
recreational facilities. John J. Sablatura Park, near Banguete on
Texas 44, has picnic, barbecue and camping facilities, and small zoo
with animals of South Texas. Packery Channel Park, on Padre Island
near junction of Texas 361 and Park Road 22, is excellent day-use
park with good fishing. Padre Island Park, on Gulf side from Park
Road 22, has bathhouse, sandy swimming beaches, overnight -
camping facilities, fishing pier, and small Beachcomber's Museum in
park office with nautical and unusual items found along beach, Port
Aransas Park, at northeast end of Mustang Island on Gulf side, has
similar facilities. o
Port of Corpus Christi & Harbor Bridge - Port is sixth
busiest in nation with ships from nearly every country in the world.
Major cargoes are oil and refined products, grain, cotton, and chemi-
cals. The harbor entrance is spanned by an impressive bridge ({US.
181) that arches 235 feet above the water. Beneath the bridge is an
observation platform offering close-up views of ships entering and
leaving the port.

U.S. Naval Air Station — On peninsula at southeastern edge of
city, naval air activities share site with Corpus Christi Army Depot.
Tours available at 1 p.m. Wednesday from North Gate on Ocean Dr,
Visitor Centers — For information on city attractions, accommo-
dations, and events, visit the area visitor bureau, 1201 N. Shoreline
Blvd. during business hours; the Tourist Information Center in
Nueces River Park at the Nueces River crossing of I-37 at west
edge of city, open daily 9 am. - 5 pm., or Visitor Information
Center at 9405 Padre Island Dr., open daily 9 am. -5 p.m.

MUSEUM OF ORIENTAL CULTURES IN CORPUS CHRISTI




a-val of first traln over St. Louis, Brown:

the heart of the King Ranch, was donated by
Mis. Fenrigtta King Mrs. King was interested ir
the setlerren: of the region between Zorpus
Christ and Brcwnsuille Sae alsc constructed the First Presbyterian
Churca building, danated land for Beptst, Catholic, Episcopal and
Methadist churches, ault a high school and presented - o the
town, and provided lend for South “eras State Teachers CTollege
{now Texas A&l Cwv). kingsville became Kleberg Countv seat in
1912

is alsc home o Navzl Zir Staton Kingsville.

John E. Conrer Museum - Hall of Scuth Texas History Fas dis
plays of Indian. Soarisa. Mexican, and pioneer Texan cuitures;
ranching and egric_lEurs squismant, fail-oads, and land promotior.
Gallers of changirg exhitits.

Kieberg Half of Naurs! Hi:to*y featLres plants and arimals of
Soutk Texas | in “at.ral naanass; new Discovery Area has spacimens
for “hands-on” =xamiraton. Open Men. - Sat. 9 am. - 5 pm.. Sun.
1 - 5 am. Next doa s Peeler Hall o Forns featuring 264 mounts
of Ncrth Amerzan gams. Qoes Mon. - Fri. 1 - b pr- Santa
Gertrudis St. on zamizus of Texas A&l just west of Armstro- g St.
King Ranch — | =rgest ranch n contaental U.S.; establshed in
1852 when Cagt. Ricsa=d King purchased 75,000 acres that nad
beer Spanish land yrant zalled Santa Gertrudis. Upon King's death,
Mrs. Henrietta Knc inherited the estate along with a $500,030 debt.
Through her ieaderﬂhwp, the debt was cleared and the -aach im-
creased in size. Holdings today comprise some 825,00 acres
spreading over Nueces, Keredv, Kleberg, and Willacy Counties.
Rober: J. Klebzrg, 3itorrey aad legal ccun:e! for early rarea, mar-
ried Captain. iGng youngest daughtar King-Kleberg deszendants
still control gigantic enterprise. Famcus Running W branc known
worldwide; howavsr. origin rot known. Originally based o~ Texas

and Mexizo Railroad; land for townsite, in

Today the city is certer for agricultire, oil and banking. <ingsville

Longh:nms ranch led ir ntrozZucing purabred cattle such as Here- -

KING RANCH ENTRANCE NEAR KINGSVILLE

ford, Shorthorn, and Brahman. Now-famous Santa Gertrudis breed,
first strain of cattle originating in Westem Hemisphere, was devel-
oped here. Guided tours stop at old cow camp for pan de camp
and coffee, a walk through historic set of cattle pens, and view of
ranch headquarters. Tours conducted Mon. - Sat. on the hour 10
am. -3 pm, Sun. 1 -4 pm. Entrance is zmmedtate west of
Kingsville off Texas 141 Admission. :
King Ranch Museum — [n restored downtewn ice piant mu
seum features excellent ranch photos by award- wmnm photog
pher, Toni Frissell. Also collections of antigue coac tage ¢
saddles, and other historic ranch items. Open Mon. - Sat 10 a.
2 p.m.; Sun. 1 -5 p.m. Admission.
King Ranch Saddle Shop - Unsuccessful i
saddles and leather goods in the marketplace,
own saddlery shop more than 120 years ago for use of his men
the "Kinenos.” Through the years shop's outfit ‘
ernors, ‘and heads of state. Today shop ffer
goods. Open Mon. - Fri. 9 am, - 6 p.m.
historic Raglands Building, downtown.
Parks — City parks include swimming pools, tennis courts, i
areas, and playgrounds. Dick Kleberg Park, 211 acres in grove of
trees beside a lazy creek, features picnic tables, gnlls sw;mming
pool. Loop 428 near south edge of city. , )

JK. Northway Exposition Center/Park has
fields, and playground. Off U.S. 77 at south edge of city.

KauferHubert Memonai Park & SeaWind RV R

Resort has boat ramp 134~umt campground recreation room, Swim-
ming beach, picnic shelters, tables, grills, playground, fishing pier
and other amenities. Fishing pier and bait-tackle shop avail

at Riviera Beach Park. From U.S. 77 south, access to parks via F.M.
628 and F.M. 771.
Sellers Markethafketplace featuring h dmade
home-baked goods, crafts, paintings, jewelry, workshops, demon-
strations, and tearoom. 205 E. Kleberg under old opera house

MATHIS Pop. 5,423 Alf,'161 . Map P-16/17
 General —Established in 1885, town is o
mercial center for agncuitural area featuring

quantities of gram sorghum ax and varie
crops. San Patricio County has extensive oil
duction, many petrochemical plan i
major gateway 1o Lake Corpus Christi and to0 a
(see below) on its shores. -

“T" HEADS AT BAY FRONT IN DOWNTOWN COR



i
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LAKE CORPUS CHRISTI NEAR MATHIS IS NOTED FOR CATFISHING

Lake — Corpus Christi. See LAKES listing.

Lake Corpus Christi State Park — On the southeastern shore
of the 14,000-acre lake, the state park offers a wide variety of land
and water recreation. Facilities on 350 acres of parkland include
utilty-equipped campsites, boat rentals, rest rooms and showers,
screened shelters, a snack bar, and groceries. Visitors enjoy fishing,
swimming, and boating. Park Road 25 off Texas 359 about 6 miles
south of Mathis. Admission.

PORT ARANSAS Pop. 2233 Alt. 20 Map Q-18

General — On Mustang Island, reached by
causeway and free, 24-hour ferry service; one of
the most popular tourist destinations on Gulf
Coast. English settler built ranch house on site
1855, later developed as fishing village. Summer
visitors swell population by thousands. Hotels,
motels, resorts, bait and tackle shops, superb beaches, shrimp boat
port, U.S. Coast Guard Station.
Fishing — Advertised as place “where they bite every day,” sach
season offers variety of species to tempt anglers. Free fishing
available from beaches, south jetty, and Station Street Pier: catches
may include redfish, speckled and sand trout, sheepshead, founder,
croaker, skipjack, and drum. Group boats provide bay and deep-sea
fishing; charter cruises available for offshore sport seeking tarpon,
sailfish, marlin, kingfish, mackerel, ling, pompano, bonito, red snap-
per, warsaw, and others. For boat owners, docking facilities and
several free launching ramps.
Series of fishing toumaments span calendar from Mar. to Oct.
including tarpon, billfish, and surf fishing toumeys.
Historic Inn: Tarpon Inn—\Vintage wooden structure dates
from 1886, still popular although unrestored. Famous guests have
included Franklin D. Roosevelt and Duncan Hines, who spent his
honeymoon here. Seafood restaurant; 26 rooms with baths.

BEACH ACTIVITIES AT PORT ARANSAS
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JETTY FISHING AT PORT ARANSAS FISHING IN ROCKPORT
Mustang Island State Park-— 3474 acres of sand dunes. sea
oats and beact. morninz gory with five miles of Gulf beach frontage
offerinc the best of szaside camping, surfing, fishing, swimming,
and shzll colecting! Multiuse campsites with hookups plus large
beach area fcr prircitve camping. Other fecilities include picnic
arbors, rest rcoms, s~owers, dump station, nature trail. and fish-
cleaning station. Reviz-ding brd-watzhing for abundant shore and
migratcry birds. Fourteen miles south of Port Aransas on Texas
367; acmissicr:,

University of Texas Marine Science Ir:stitute — Laboratory
and research facility. Displays include Gulf marine life, plants, and
fascinating introductior to oceanography. Along shic charnel be-
tween Mustang and Szn Jose slands Open weekdays.

ROCKPORT FPop. 4,753 Alt. 20 Map P-18

General — Estabiished 1867 as shipping point
for w00, hices, bones, ard tallow. Became seat
of Aransas County -n 1871; today important com-
mercial fishing area. Tourists, boaters, and
anciers gataer to enjoy mile-lony swimming
oeach ard abundant access to saltwater
recreational cpportun ties; o1 peninsula between Copano Bay and
Aransas Bay, sheltered from Glf of Mexico by St. Josaph Islend.
Aransas National Wildlife Refuge — Famed as principal win-
tering ground for nea--axtinct whooging crans, refuge is on broad
peninstla abctt 12 mies ac:oss bay northeast of Rockport. Admin-
istered by U.S. Fish snd Wilclfe Service as refuge for protection
and menagement of vzrinus species of wildlfe inhabitng this coast-
al area Some 3C0 speces of birds—Canada geesz, pintai and
paldpatz ducss, sandhll cranss, and more have been recorded.
Other inhabitaats incl.dz whitetailed deer, javelina, and raccoon.
Sightseeing, nature cbseryation, hikirg, and photography permitted
along designztad publc-use “oads, trails and at observation towers:
also picnic areas. Mozt rewarding Zime to view wildlife is Naov.
througk Mar. when greatest numbzrs of species are at refuge
{including whaopers). Refuge is oper dayligh: hours. Wildlife Inter-
pretive Center featurez mounted specimens, slide shcw on whoop-

ONE OF BEST WAYS TO VIEW WILDLIFE, ESPECIALLY WHOOPERS,
IS FROM BOATS IN THE INTRACOASTAL CANAL




NEAR-EXTINCT WHOOFING CRANE

ing eranes, literature. Open daily 8 am. - 5 pm. Al refuge
headquarters about 35 mies ncrtheast of Rockport via Texas 3b
north: F M. 774 east, and F-M. 2040 south,

One of the best ways to visw wildlife, especially whoopers, s

from boats In the intracoastal canal. From early November through
early April, boats from the Rockpor: Yacht Basin, the Sea Gun
Marina, and Sand Collar Motel cruse past tidal flats and salt

marshes (where many species may be seen) into the whoopers’

habitat. Fares vary.
Copano Bay Causeway State Park — Former highway cause-
way across bay north of Rozkpart (replaced by a modern span) now

excellent fishing piers-admin stered by Texas Parks & Wildlife Dept.

Piers extend from nerth end south sides [(not connected); total
length of both over mile and a half. Concessions on both sides
provide tackle, bait, food: pudlic boat ramp south side. Near the
present Texas 3b causeway:- Mcdzst fee,

Fishing - Jetty sheltering Rozkport Yacht Basin is popular spct

for bay fishing; dawn hours gere-ally most productive. Many hotels
and motels on bayfrcnt mainteir private fishing piers for guests.
Depending upon season of the year and proverbial Juck, catches
may include redfish, sand and speckied trout catfish, croaker
sheepshead, flounder, and crur. Group-boat fishing and deep-sez
charter cruisers are also avalable at Yacht Basin. Offshore species
may. include tarpon, sailfisy. mearlin,
bonito, pompano, red snapper, warsaw, and others. A public ﬂshm;
pier is at Fulton Yacht Basin 4 mies north.

Fulton Mansion State Historical Structure-CompIeted in

1876 after four years of construetion at cost of $100,000, the ornata

four-story house was a showolace of its time. Included many ir-
novations: central air 2ond tioning, forced air heating, hot and cold
runnmg water. Restorad hcuse end crounds open Wed. - Sun. 9

<1130 am, 1 -4pm. ((zroups ten or more need to cali in
advance 512/7290389) Fulton: 3each Rd.
Admission.

Goose Island State Park— 307 acres on peninsula between -

Copano and St. Charles Bays. Rest rooms, showers, picnic sites,
open shelters, childrer's pley area, fisaing pier, fish cleaning table,

boat ramp. Tent and trailer camping permitted; unsupervised bav

swimming beach. Site of "Eig Tree,” an immense live oak certified

as largest in Texas, estimated 2,000 years old. About 12 miles north

of Rockport; Texas 35, Park -Road 13. Admission.

Texas Maritime Museum — Recounts the state's maritime de-
velopment: Alonso de Pineda's discovery of desolate coastline in
the boom and bust of steamboat traffic on Texas rivers:
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Texas's brief experience as a naval power; and developrnent of
Texas commercial fishing irdusory. Open Wed. - Sat. 10 am. - &

ling, wahoo, king mackere,

just south of Fultor.

WHEN COMPLETED IN 1876,
THE ORNATE ~ULTON MANSION
NEAR ROCKPORT INCLUDED MANY
INNOVATIONS: CENTRAL AIR
CONDITIONING, FORCED AIR HEATING,
HOT AND COLD RUNNING WATER

STATE CHAMPION LIVE OAK H
AT GDOSE ISLAND STATE PARK

0

CRABBING AT

GOOSE ISLAND

: STATE PARK

NEAR ROCKPORT

p.m., Sun. noon - 5 p.ri Closed major holidays. Admission. Near
center of town on Tex3s 35.

Rockport Art Center- Restored 19th Century Bruhl-O'Connor
home redesigned to nouse studio classrooms and gaHerv display

areas. Open Tues. - Sat 10 am. - 5 pm.; Sun. 5 p.m. At
Rockport harbor.
‘SINTON Pop. 5,549 Alt. 48 Map P-17

General - San Patricio County seat established
1885 as station on San Antonio and Aransas Pass
Railroad. Greatest population surge came in 1909
‘when several large ranches divided into smaller
farms; resulting diversity of agriculture still appar-
ent. Smzll downtown park with picnic area.
300-acre Rob and Bessie Welder Park with playground, golf, tennis
swimming pool, and small lake; west of U.S. 181 north.
Welder Wildlife RefugeMLargeSt privately endowed wldhfe
refuge in world; provisens for sanctuary made in rancher Rob
Welder's will. Acreagz end large administration-museum building
occupy portion of Welcer Ranch established from Spanish land
grant more than 150 yeers ago. Tours on Thurs, 3 p.m. Group and
special tours may be rezuested from tour director, 512/364-2643.
Refuge north of city off US 77 ~

TAFT  Pop. 3,222 Alt. 34 Map P-17

GENERAL - Established in early 1900s on the
San Antorio and Aransas Pass RR in east central
San Patricio County. Town named for Charles
Taft of the Coleman-Fulton Pasture Co. for which
the staton was a shipping point. Other partners
in the enterprise were named Mathis, Fulton, and
Smton—all of whom ‘have towns named for them also. Today's
economy is based on agrcuiture and diversified industries.
Taft Blackland Museum — Housed in building once headquar-
ters of the giant Coleman-Fulton Pasture Co. Exhibits range fram
antigue farm and ranck ezuioment to personal and household items

of early settlers. Museury glso contains valuable memorabilia from

the Taft Banch. Oper, Thars 10 am. -noon, 1 -4 pm., Sun. 2 - §
p:m. At 301 Green Av.

NEAR ROCKPORT
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ARLINGTON Pop. 261,721 Alt. 616 Map E-17

General — First settlement in Caddo Indian ter-
ritory was Bird's Fort on Trinity River; in 1845 a
trading post was established at Mary le Bone
Springs. About 1876 town moved to present site
when railroad built through.

Agriculturally oriented until World War I, the
strategic area between Dallas and Fort Worth has since experien-
ced mushrooming growth from business, industrial and recreational
factors. Arlington State College (founded 1895) became the Univ. of
Texas at Arlington in 1965.

Arlington Museum of Art— Dedicated to encourage education,
appreciation, and creation of art. Special exhibits throughout year.
Open Wed.- Sat. 10 a.m. - 5 p.m. 201 W. Main St.

Caelum Moor Sculpture Park — Five-acre park setting for en-
vironmental sculpture by Norm Hines; giant granite megaliths, rem-
iniscent of England’'s Stonehenge. Park also has 350-seat natural
amphitheater and lake. Off I-20, between Cooper St. and Matlock
Rd.
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FLOATIN’, TANNIN’, AND SWIMMIN’
ARE SUMMERTIME FAVORITES
AT ARLINGTON’S WET 'N WILL

Fielder Museum — In brick grarie-style house once home of
Arlington communizy leade .zmes >erk Fie dar. Permanent exhibits
include turn-of-the-century ogroershop, general store, bedroom, and
basement with root cella- wach inzludes laundry and train exhibit.
Other exhibits of Arlngton a=d area history, olus travelirg =xhibits.
Open Tues. - Fri. "2 a.r. - £ p.m. Nearby h storic cabi~s open by
appointment. 1616 w. Abran at Fizlder Re. (Ext south off I-30 at
Fielder Rd.)

Kow Bell Rodec — Ircocr -odsaing every weekend ~ight— bull
riding Fri., general rodec events Set. and Sun. n Mansfield, Tex.,
11 mi. south of Arli-gton via = M. 57,

Lake — Arlington. See LAKES liszing.

Mountasia Fantasy Goif—A 54-hole miniature colf course
takes golfers througn caves, waterfalls, and other obstaclzs. Can
accommodate 500 golfers. 7,000-s3.-ft. clubhotse includes latest
video games availeb e. Az 111 Waldrop Dr. off I-30. Admissicr.
Parks —48 parks, 4 muliizarpose recreation centers, € public
swimming pools, 22 ball fie ds, 26 lighted tennis ccurts, and 3
municipal golf courses. 3iver Legacy Park in ncrthern zart of city
along Trinity River is a 373-ccre nature patk with picnc facilities.
jogging and bike trails.

PGA Family Goif Center— Prcvides recreational a~d instruc-
tional activities on galf “or sntire family. Feetures prastce driving
ranges, sand bunke-s, irstwuctiona classes, two 18-hcle mriniature
golf courses, and video ercads. Drivng rangs, tee boxes and minia-
ture golf courses lighted fo- n'ght play. Open Sun. - Thu=s. 8 am. -
10 p.m. (11 p.m. Fr., Sat}. £t 13C1 SGreen Oaks Blvd. Admission.
Sewing Machine Museum — Acjazent to antique shop i1 same
building, quaint museurn features some 85 differsnt sewing
machines, 24 dating duting and oefore thz \War Bstween the
States. Oldest is 12563 Wteele- anc Wilson. K ds allowes to sew or
Singer treadle machire. Op3n Tues. - Sat. 9 am. -5 p.m.; Sun. 1 -
5 p.m. At 804 W. Aoram St Admiss on.

Six Flags Over Texas — The fan=d 200-acre therre park fea-
tures fun and fantasv in setzings cf lav sh lardscaping. Fides include
breath-takers like the Texas G ant 3 massive wooden raller coaster
that climbs 143 fee: into the zky, then takes you for a rds rzaching
a top speed of 62 mph, the “exas Chute-Out, a 17-story parachute
drop, the Texas Clif? Hange- whose gondolas drod like felling eleva-
tors, and the huge Shock Wzve double-locp roller coaster. Then,
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RIDERS ASCEND 143 FEET AND REACH SPEEDS OF 62 MP- ON THE
MASSIVE TEXAS GIANT WCODEN FCLLER COASTER AT SIX FLAGS

trere's the Flashback, a roller coaster ride that drops from a 123-ft
tewar and careens through three ioods at speeds of 55 mph, anc
just whan you think its over, vou -zliva the experience— this time
packwards! Elegan: mid-1920s cerousel, The Silver Star, rastorec tc
al s grandeur with soms 66 pransing wooden horses, ‘welcomes
visitors just behind the park’s lardrer< flags and fountsin. Roaring
Japids offers white-water boating -h-ills. Laoney Tunes .and is a
c-armny area of “soft play” fun espszially or younger kids; even
“azil ties for infants. More than five acurs of soecial shows, mus cal
‘eviews, and puppet theater a-e avaiable wth all the “des on an
allinclusive admission ticket. Food, beverages and souvenirs exra.
Two-day and seascn tickets avaiazle Open weekends saring =nd
“zl; daily during summer. Frcm -ZC betwsen Dallas and Fort
WMorth, exit on Texes 360 south.

Fright Nights at Halloween (fo.r weekands in Oc:) features
g-oulisk decorations, grost and goblins, haunted Fouses &nc
special shows for the entire fam lv.

“Hc iday in the Park,” when Six Flags rides are dormant, features
Cristras musicals, ice shiow, aad Bugs Bunay holiday snzcw. Gant
sleddirg hill, compete wth “snov.” and holiday lights =-ansform
park irto a glittering wonderlarc. Fark open weekends starting Fri.
after Thanksgiving; nightly Dec. 16-31 except for Christras Eve and
Caristmas Day. For exact dates cell 817/640-2200.

Texas Rangers Baseball Club —Home games of the
Americay League Rangers are dlavsc in Arlington StaciLm in the
seasor from Apr. through Sept. Most games are at 7:35 p.m. Exit
at F.V 157 (Collins St.) from |-30 r-idway between Dallas and Fort
Worth

University Art Gallery — ExFibits of art a1d architectus. Opzn
fMon: - Wed. 11 am. - Bpm.; Thurs 6 - & pm.; Fri. Tam. -2
p.m. Weekend and extenced heurs durng sczcial shows. Fine Atts
Builcing, 600 S. Cocper St

Visitor Center — Directions 3nd details for local sites, even:s,
Fotess, restaurants and ratail storss; open daily (hou-s vary by
ceasor). Near entrance to Six Flags Over Texas at 921 Six Flags Dr.
Wet 'n Wild — The state’s largast ‘water-or ented family recreation
rek features 10 separate entertainmant arzas. The park features
rdss sich as the Black Hole, & fut.ristic rice through 5JC twisting
faet o° completely snclosed black tikes whie listing te sdaceship
scund sffects, and the Kamikaze slide that olunges down a 300-ft.



water speedway from 60 feet high. Experience ocean-sized waves
in Surf Lagoon, dive into the bubble machine, ride a water trolley,
experience the Raging Rapids through waterfalls, rain tunnels and
whirlpools. Abundant water games for adults and kids of all ages;
all-inclusive admission ticket. Open weekends spring and fall; daily
during summer. From |-30 between Dallas and Fort Worth, take exit
Texas 360 north or Texas 157 north to Lamar Bivd.

CARROLLTON Pop. 82,169  Alt. 470 Map D-18

General — Settlers from Carrollton, IL, and at
least one from Carrollton, MD, built a camp in
1844 at near the present site of today’s Farmers
Branch Elementary School, but an Indian raid
forced a move north to the present site;
established 1872 as a stop on the MK&T
Railroad. Growth has paralleled other Metroplex cities, growing
from 1,610 in 1950 to the status of a city today.
The gazebo-centered square of Old Downtown Carrollton is loca-
tion of antique and crafts shops.
A highly rated public golf course (Indian Creek) offers two 18-hole
courses to challenge golfers of every handicap and expertise.
A.W. Perry Homestead Museum — Built in 1909 from ma-
terial salvaged from the first Perry home built in 1857, the home
stayed in the family until donated to the community in 1975;
restored as a bicentennial project. Furnishings and tools from the
turn-of-the-century homestead afford visitors a nostalgic look at a
nearly forgotten lifestyle. Open Tues. and Thurs. 1 - 4 p.m.; Sun.
1:30 - 4 p.m. 1509 Perry Road, just north of Belt Line Road east of
-35.

DALLAS  Pop. 1,006,877 Alt. 512 Map D-18

General — First Anglo-American settler at site

of present metropolis built a single cabin in 1841,

Two years later “town” consisted of two log

cabins. By mid-1870s, Dallas had become a thriv-

ing business town and market center with cos-

mopolitan, urbane air unmatched anywhere on

the frontier at the time, primarily due to several immigrations of

skilled and cultured groups of French, German, Swiss, English, and
other Europeans.

Today Dallas, second in size to Houston, is regarded by many as

Texas' most metropolitan and cosmopolitan city. Southwest's larg-

est banking center, leader in wholesale business, second in nation

DOWNTOWN DALLAS...REUNION TOWER, A MODERN DALLAS LANDMARK

for insurance company home offices, third in the nation in terms of
“million-dollar” companies, and number two in convention sites.

“If it doesn't sell in Dallas, it won't sell,” say buyers who come
to some 32 wholesale fashion and home furnishings markets each
year. Beginning with the Dallas Market Center in 1957, today
multibuilding complex includes Homefurnishings Mart, INFOMART,
World Trade Center, Trade Mart, Apparel Mart, Decorative Center
District, and Menswear Mart.

Citizens pursue culture with almost as much enthusiasm as
business. Any day or night of the year, one may choose from a
lavish variety of events. Excellent major symphony orchestra and a
steady stream of visiting groups: opera and ballet, theatre and
musical comedy, literary societies, and debating groups. Visit flower
shows, horse shows, art shows, bird shows, dog shows, and cat
shows. Noted for abundant gourmet dining opportunities.

Summer musicals are held Jun. - Aug. at Music Hall in Fair Park,
nightly Tues. - Sat., and weekend matinees.

An excellent climate where fair skies, predominant year round,
encourage outdoor activities, especially water sports.

State Fair of Texas in fall draws more than 3 million annually to
200-acre Fair Park. Traditional fair exhibits, plus Broadway musicals,
extravaganzas, prize livestock and horse show performances, a
huge midway that features the Texas Star— largest ferris wheel in
the Western Hemisphere —and gridiron rivalry between Texas and
Oklahoma. Big Tex, gigantic cowboy symbol, looms over all festivi-
fies.

Professional sports are presented throughout year; teams include
pro football’s Dallas Cowboys, Texas Rangers baseball, Dallas Mav-
ericks basketball and Dallas Sidekicks soccer.

For game schedules and other tourist details, stop at a city
Visitor Center (which see in this Dallas section).

Dallas and satellite cities are home of Amber Univ., Baylor Univ.

College of Dentistry, the Univ. of Texas Health Science Center,
Dallas Baptist College, Dallas Theological Seminary, Paul Quinn
College, Southern Methodist Univ., the Univ. of Dallas, the Univ. of
Texas at Dallas, and seven units of Dallas County Community
College enrolling more than 75,000 undergraduates.
Biblical Arts Center — Splendid nondenominational showcase
of biblical arts accented by soaring arched ceilings, massive stone
columns, an atrium courtyard; galleries with great religious art from
around the world —paintings, sculptures, icons, clerical artifacts:
replicas of the tomb of Christ, and St. Paul's “Gate at Damascus.”
Highlight of the center is enormous oil painting, 124 feet long by 20
feet high, depicting the Miracle at Pentecost, interpreted by dra-
matic sound-and-light program. Open Tues. - Sat. 10 am. - 5 p.m.,
and Sun. 1 -5 p.m. Free access to the center and its galleries; fee
for the “Miracle at Pentecost” presentation. Closed New Year's,
Thanksgiving and Christmas. 7500 Park Lane at Boedeker.




DALLAS ARBORETUM AND BOTANICAL GARDEN

Eryan Cabir —In Dallas County Historcal Plaza; reconstucted
log cabir of John Neely Bryan whe, in 1841, was area’s first sattler.
North of Kennedy Plaza at Man and Record 'Sts.
Churches — Hundreds of al 1aths. Of particular interest are four
caurches, each of which is wcrld's ‘argest in its denomiration;
Highland Park Methodist, First Baptist, Highland Park P-esbytztian
and East Dallas Christian.

Dallas Arboretum & Botanical Garden — A 66-acre haven o
natural d3auty onv minutes fram downtiown Callas. Headquartsrs is
r the Camp Estzte, designed by Texas' maost famous residertizl
achitect, John S:aub, and competed n 1938. Also on grourds is
a storic DaGolyer House, a magrificent Spanish Colonial-style man-
sion bulz in 193¢ by Texas oil man Everett DeGolyer. Mansicn of
21,000 scuare fest has 13 rooms, 7 baths, 15th and 17th Century
antiques, and art works; surrounided by Old English ga-den, foct
aaths, ralng lawns, and woodlands on White Rock Lake.

Gardens, wth succession cf blooming plants throughout tre
year. Mcre then 2,000 varieties of aza'eas in the 5.5-acre Jonsscn
Color Ga-den grov de color durirg spring ard summer, and a garden
Aith more than 30 species o” ferns pack the ane acre Palmer Farn
Dell, kept damp with a corcealed fog system that pumps sdb-
Ticroscogic wate- drops into “n2 air. Gardens open Tues - Sur. 10

.m. - € p.m.; (Nav. - Feb. 12 a.m. - 5 p.m.) closed Mon. At 8525
Jarland =d. (Texas 78) overockng White Rock Lake. Admission.
‘For tour schecules call 214/327-8263.)

Dallas Cowboys/Texas Stadium — See |RVING this section
Dallas Firefighters Museum —Housed in old 2-story fire sta-
sion, ¢. 1907, features morz than 100 years of Dallas history,

ncluding 1884 horse-drawn stzamer, last to be used in cty. Aso, a

-AKE RAY HUBBARD PROVIDES RECREATION FOR DALLAS AREA RESIDENTS
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1936 Texas Centennial ladder truck and other fire memorabilia.
Open Mon. - Fri. 9 am. - 4 p.m. At 3801 Parry Ave., across from
Fair Park.

Dallas Memorial Center for Holocaust Studies — Photo-
graphs, artifacts, and documentary films. Also includes video tapes
of local survivors, memorial room, library. Open Sun. - Fri. 10 a.m. -
4 p.m. (Thurs. til 9 p.m.). 7900 Northaven.

Dallas Museum of Art— Superb core collection of pre-Colum-
bian artwork' plus major European and American art including
Church’s "The Icebergs” and Oldenburg’'s astonishing “Stake
Hitch.” Choice examples by Monet, Sargent, and Matisse; sculp-
tures of Rodin and Henry Moore, plus special traveling exhibits.
Open Tues. - Sat. 10 am. - 5 p.m. (Thurs. to 9 p.m.); Sun. and
holidays noon - 5 p.m.; 1717 N. Harwood at Ross St. Telephone
214/922-1200.

Dallas Symphony Orchestra—See Morton H. Meyerson
Symphony Center.

Dallas Theatre Center — Of great architectural interest, Frank
Lloyd Wright's only direct contribution to the dramatic stage. Per-
manent repertory company plays 154 performances over 8-month
season (Oct. - May). 3636 Turtle Creek Blvd.

Dallas Zoo — Thousands of animals represent more than 1,600
species; reptile house has one of world's largest rattlesnake collec-
tions; exotic birds in walk-through tropical rain forest; hoofed ani-
mals from antelope to zebra; excellent specimens of simians and
great apes; lions, tigers, elephants, and more. Miniature train;
picnic areas.




JOHN F. KENNEDY MEMORIAL IN DALLAS

Within zco is new 25-acre Wilds of Africa exhibit. Mororail takes
visitors on 1.3-mile journey through African-ike habi-ats whare ani-
mals roam in natural-like settings without bars. Opan Jeily. 621 E.
Clarendon Dr.; admission.

DeGolyer Estate — See Dallas Artoretim & Botanicsl Garden
above.

Farmer’s Market— One of few remaining and onz of largest
markets in nation. Some 1,000 farmers bring fresh producs for sale.
During the year special crafts, plants and fowers are featired for
holiday occasions. Open daily 5 a.m. - 7 3.m. Cadiz and Harwood
Sts.

Frontiers of Flight Museum — Fistory of Aviaticn collectior
formerly at Univ. of Texas at Dallas, row at Love Fislc. Museum'’s
artifacts chronicle history of flight fron primitive ballcor Izunches in
the 1800s to today's Stealth bomber and space sau-tlz. Zxhibits
include fur parka worn by Adm. Richard E. Eyrd during first -light to
the South Pole in 1929, engines from =arly airplanes, anc a Hinden-
berg collection that includes original radio cparator's chair and silver-
ware recovered from the crash. Open Tues. - Sat. 1C an. -5 p.m..
Sun. 1 - 6 p.m. Closed Mon. Love Field, 2rd Floor: Cacar Springs
at Mockingbird Ln. Admission.

Horseback Riding— Several ranctes offer Westemn-stye hos-
pitality for day trips in the D/FW Metroplex.

Chaparral Ranch specializes in 180Js VWestern atmosshere with
horseback riding, petting zoo. In Soutnlake. Reservaticns required;
817/430-8846.

Park Lane Equestrian in the heart of Dalas features campfires,
hayrides, horseback riding, dances. 8713 Park Lane. Z14/40-9593.

Texas Lil’s Diamond A Ranch in rustc setting has 10-sepack
riding, swimming, hayrides. Reservations requirad In Justin.
817/430-0192.

Wagon Wheel Ranch offers horseback riding on 307 ecres in
Coppell. Reservations required. 214/462-0894.

International Museum of Cultures — Reflects wok of organi-
zation that creates written language fo- “hidden” pecples who have
no written language. Museum focuses on lifestyles and zultures o
those peoples, with artifacts and exnibits. Open Tues - Fri. 10
am.-5pm., Sat, Sun. 1:30 - 5 p.m. 750C \V. Camp Wisdom Rd.
John F. Kennedy Memorial — See The 3ixth Floor.
Lakes — Bachman, Grapevine, Joe Paol, Lavon, Lewisv lle, Moun-
tain Creek, Ray Hibbard, White Rock. See LAKES listing.
McKinney Avenue Trolley — Nostalgic early 20th century trol-
ley cars recommissioned to take visitors from downtown to Iptown
McKinney Ave. for a variety of antijue shops, restauran:s, and
clubs, including the Hard Rock Cafe. Trollev runs from Ross Ave.
and St. Paul St. up St. Paul to McKinaey Ave. and back Schedule
posted along route. Fare.
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Malibu Grand Prix & Castle — Entertainment complex featur-
ing sprint racing tracks and vintage racing cars; miniature golf,
bumper boats. Castle has more than 100 video games. Open daily
at 11130 Malibu Dr.

Market Center International Sculpture Garden — Outdoor
collection of contemporary sculpture by international artists.
2000-2300 Stemmons Freeway.

Meadows School of the Arts —Virginia Meadows Museum:
16th through 20th Century collection of Spanish art, paintings by
international masters, sculpture court, and gardens. It is the most
comprehensive collection of Spanish art in the US. Nearby is
Caruth Music Auditorium with famous pipe organ; Pollock Galleries
with monthly art exhibit. Open Mon., Fri, Sat. 10 am. - § p.m.,;
Tues. & Thurs. 10 am. -8 p.m., Sun. 1 -5 p.m.; closed Wed. SMU
campus.

Morton H. Meyerson Symphony Center — Multimillion-dollar
facility designed by architect |. M. Pei with acoustics by Russell
Johnson. 260,000-sq.-ft. facility home of Dallas Symphony Orches-
tra which plays full schedule of both home performances and tours.
Symphony's consistent excellence rates it among nation’s top 10.
Public facility utilized by numerous groups. Available for group tours.
Open for scheduled performances; 2301 Flora St.

Museum of African-American Life and Culture — Displays
of traditional African sculpture and ceremonial objects. Open Tues. -
Sat. 9:30 am, - 530 pm.; Sun. 1 -5 p.m. Exhibits in Science
Place Il building at Fair Park.

Old City Park—A favorite people place where the nostalgia of
yesteryears lingers in furnished log cabins, turn-of-the-century
shops, a Victorian bandstand on the village green, a drummer's
hotel, and Southern colonial mansions. Grounds open dawn to
sunset. Guided tours (fee) Tues. - Sat. 10 a.m. -4 p.m.; Sun. 1:30 -
4:30 pm. At 1717 Gano St. immediately south of downtown
business district.

Palace of Wax/Ripley’s Believe It or Not! —See GRAND
PRAIRIE this section.

Parks — Dotted throughout city are 271 parks covering more than
20,000 acres including the Elm Fork Nature Trail.

Reunion Tower — Focal point of the Reunion area, which was a
settlement of French immigrants in the 19th Century. Fifty-story
tower features observation deck (fee), restaurant and revolving
lounge; adjacent to glass-tower Hyatt Regency. Nearby, restored
Union Station, ¢. 1914. Reunion Arena schedules sporting events,
circus, ice shows, concerts, and rodeos. Just off 1-35 at southwest
edge of downtown; Houston St., Reunion Blvd., Sports St.

Six Flags Over Texas — See ARLINGTON this section.

Sixth Floor, The — Permanent, educational exhibition on the life,
death and legacy of President John F. Kennedy. Exhibits feature
photographs, artifacts, 30-minute audio tour and six films. Visitor
center at the former Texas School Book Depository has elevators
up to the 6th floor. Open Sun. - Fri. 10:00 a.m. - 6 p.m.; Sat. 10
a.m. - 7 p.m. Ticket sales stop one hour before closing. At Houston
and Elm Sts. Admission.

Other Kennedy Memorials include historical marker on Houston

St. near Elm St. which marks the spot where President Kennedy
was assassinated during motorcade, Nov. 22, 1963. Cenotaph and
Memorial Park at Main and Market Sts. is landscaped city block
with open-style monument dedicated to the slain President,
State Fair Park — Recognized in 1986 as National Historic Land-
mark for its Art Deco architecture. Home of huge annual state
exposition; grounds host millions during three weeks in Sept. and
Oct. Rest of the year (except two weeks before the fair opens) area
serves as popular city park, including attractions listed below:

Age of Steam Museum offers a nostalgic look at the heyday of
railroading. Open Thurs. - Fri. 9 am. - 1 p.m.; Sat. - Sun. 11 am. -
5 p.m. Admission.

Aquarium exhibits live specimens from Texas lakes and streams,
plus tropical and exotic species. Open Mon. - Sat. 9 am. - 5 p.m.;
Sun. noon - 5 p.m.

Cotton Bowl Stadium seats 72,271 for major collegiate football
including traditional Texas-Oklahoma game during State Fair in Oct.,
and Mobil Cotton Bowl each New Year's.

Civic Garden Center, one of most notable in US.: includes
500-seat auditorium, botanical collections, and 7-acre Southwestern
garden. Garden for the Blind features raised beds of herbs and
other plants noted for scents and textures. Open Tues. - Sat. 10
am-5pm; Sun.1-5pm. ‘

Hall of State is majestic shrine that depicts Texas historical
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BIG TEX TOWERS OVER THE STATE FAIR OF TEXAS

greats in epic-scale marble and mosaics. Open Tues. - Sat. 9 a.m. -
5p.m.; Sun. 1-5pm

Museum of Natural History presents wide collection of native
animal life in authentic habitat groups. Open daily 9 a.m. - 5 p.m.

Science Place | (Southwest Museum of Science & Techrology)
displays state-of-the-art technology with visitor perticipation. Exhibits
include the “Gossamer Penguin,” the first solar-powered aircraft:
also energy, health, and anatomy exhibits; life-size models of trans-
parent man and woman. Open Tues. - Sun. 9:3) a.m. - 5:30 p.m.
At Grand Ave. entrance to Fair Park. Admission,

Science Place Il also has permanent exhibits, and includes plan-
etarium. Open Tues. - Sat. 9:30 a.m. - 5 p.m. Across from Garden
Center (near Texas Star ferris wheel.) Admissior, anc fee fo- plan-
etarium shows.

Starplex Amphitheater, outdoor amphitheater featuring top en-
tertainment. For information call 214/421-1111.

State Fair Coliseum, seating 7,000, hosts rodeos, horse shows
and sporting events throughout year.

Telephone Pioneer Museum — Past, pressnt znd future of
telephone technology captured in such displays as an animated
audiovisual presentation, huge talking telephone nos:algia exhibits.
Open Mon. - Fri. 9:30 am. - 4:30 p.m. One Bell Plaza (208 S.
Akard).

Thanks-Giving Square — Opened 1977, the nterfaith Chapel of
Thanksgiving is regularly site of worship services. Waterfall and
landscaping provide quiet retreat in center of city. \Within triangle
formed by Bryan, Pacific and Ervay Sts.

Theatre Three — Nonprofit, chartered theatrs-in-round. Theatre
Three Academy offers acting classes for both children and adults.
2800 Routh.

Visitor Centers — The Dallas Convention and Visitor Bureau op-
erates visitor centers offering abundant details about local events,
accommodations, dining and points of interest. Visit the information
office in the Renaissance Tower, 1201 Elm St., Ste. 2000, 8 a.m. -
5 p.m. Mon. - Fri,, or the visitor center in Union S:ation, 400 S.
Houston St. Brochures are available there 24 hours a day; coun-
selors on duty 9 a.m. - 5 p.m. daily.

Also at West End MarketPlace Mon. - Sat. 11 a.m. - 8 p.m., Sun.
noon - 8 p.m.,

West End Historic District — Early-day business cistrict ravived
and restored with shops, push-cart traders, craf:smen, restaurants,
and clubs occupying modern facilities within tre original architec-
ture. Here also is 1892 red sandstone courthouse, one of Dallas’
oldest buildings at Main and Houston Sts. Carrizge rides, entertain-
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VISITORS SAVOR THE FLAVORS OF CALLAS RESTAURANTS
AND NIGHT CLUBS

ers. Several block areg, centered around Market St. from Pacific to
McKinney. Served by DART Hop-a-Bus.

West End MarketPlace —A festival market with dczens of
restaurants, clubs and boutiques; occupies three acjoining buildings.
Street entertainers, many special events. 3.5-million-dollar Dallas
Alley features several night clubs with variety of music, entertain-
ment. In Historic District a: north end of Market St. at Munger Ave.
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WEST END HISTORIC DISTRICT IN DALLAS

THANKS-GIVING SQUARE IN HEART OF DALLAS

DENTON Pop. 66,270 Alt. 620 Map C-17

General — Establiched 1857, seat of Denton

County, nemed for John B. Denton, pianeer law-

yer, greacher, and soldier. Historically a rich ag-

ricu tural aea, today center of modern industries.

Recreat oral activities include intercolleciate

sports, colf, hunting. and a wide rarge of water
sports at naarby reservoirs

Desigred in 1895, the stately Derton County Courthouse was
restored ir 1987. With its massive limestone walls and soaring
clack towezr, it's been called "the most picturesque pile of rocks in
Nortk Texas.”

Cu turel attractions centar around Arts Complex and two major
state un'versities: The Jnv. of North Texas and Texas Woman's
Univ. TWU is largest Lniversizy for woren in the nation.

Denton County Historical Museum — Museum offes variety
of exnibits depicting Denton County Fistory; lifestyle displays of a
century ag> ncude a codntry kitchen, a Victorian parlor, music




room, farm tools, antique textiles, and folk art. Rotating displays
examine Texas and local history along with seasonal and thematic
exhibits. Open Mon. - Sat. 1 - 4:30 p.m.; First Floor of Denton
County Courthouse.

Evers Hardware — Old-time hardware store complete with origi-
nal displays and products sold since the store's founding a century
ago. Open Mon. - Sat. 8 a.m. - 5 p.m. 109 W. Hickory.

Gowns of the First Ladies of Texas — Inaugural gowns of
wives of presidents of the Republic of Texas and state governors.
Dresses worn by the wives of two Presidents of the U.S. and the
wife of a Vice President. Open Mon. - Fri. 8 a.m. - 5 p.m. during fall
and spring semesters; open Mon. - Thurs. during summer semes-
ters. On TWU campus at 117 Bell Ave.

Lakes — Lewisville, Grapevine, Ray Roberts. See LAKES listing.
Little Chapel-in-the-Woods — Designed by O'Neil Ford, chapel
completed in 1939. First Lady Eleanor Roosevelt attended dedica-
tion ceremonies. The small chapel blends nature and art in wooded
setting on Texas Woman's Univ. Ten stained glass windows, de-
signed by students, depict the theme “Woman Ministering to Hu-
man Needs.” Although constructed for private meditation, the
chapel has become the setting for many student and alumna wed-
dings. Open during school hours on Texas Woman's Univ. campus
Pilot Knob — Prominent 900-foot hill 4 miles south off U.S. 377:
drive-by view, not open to the public. Once was hideout of noto-
rious 19th Century Texas outlaw, Sam Bass. See ROUND ROCK.
Silk Stocking Row — Victorian homes on W. Oak St. are fine
examples of Victorian cottages with generous porches, jigsaw work
and tall narrow windows.

FARMERS BRANCH Pop. 24,250 Alt. 633 Map D-18

General — Extensive advertising by Texas Land

and Emigration Co. in 1845-50 made this part of

Peters Colony perhaps the best-known of all Tex-

as settlements at the time. Many Dallas County

firsts credited here, including first church, school,

blacksmith shop. Population in 1946 was 800:
city's growth parallels most Dallas suburbs. More than 60 Fortune
500 companies office here. Home of Brookhaven College.
Historical Park-— The 22-acre, tree-shaded park includes five
historic buildings relocated and restored, including 1877 depot,
oldest rock house in Dallas County, church built in 1891 in Renner.
Tours Tues., Thurs. 10 am. - 2 p.m., 1st and 3rd Sun. 1 - 3 p.m.
Park open May - Oct. Mon. - Thurs. 9:30 a.m. - 8 p.m., Sat. - Sun.
noon - 8 p.m. (Nov. - Apr. same hours, but close at 6 p.m.).
Farmers Branch Ln. at Denton Dr.
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TRIBUTE TO PIONEER WOMEN AT TEXAS WOMAN'’S UNIVERSITY

IN DENTON

DENTON COUNTY COURTHOUSE
HOUSES HISTORICAL MUSEUM
ON FIRST FLOOR

CNE OF SEVERAL VINTAGE STRUCTURES, HISTORICAL PARK
IN FARMERS BRANCH




FORT WORTH Pop. 447,619 AIit. 670 Map D-17

General — Grew from military camp established
at close of Mexican War by Gen. Winfield Scott,
and named for Gen. William Jenkins Worth who
saw action in that war. Forty-two men of Com-
pany F, 2nd Dragoons, established the camp on
June 6, 1849. Fort Worth to Yuma, AZ, stage line
established 1850. Became seat of Tarrant County 1860. After the
Civil War, became major shipping and supply depot for cattlemen.

Today Fort Worth is one of Texas’ major cities with a wide range
of manufacturing industries including two major aviation plants,
General Dynamics and Bell Helicopter.

The impressive Fort Worth Convention Center spans an area of
14 downtown blocks. Culturally, Fort Worth is known for an out-
standing group of museums, plus a season of summer musicals,
winter theater, symphony concerts, opera, ballet, and art galleries.

City is home of Southwestern Baptist Theological Seminary,
Tarrant County Junior College, Texas Christian Univ., Texas College
of Osteopathic Medicine, and Texas Wesleyan College.

Vast green parks and surrounding network of major lakes offer
abundant opportunities for water sports and outdoor recreation.
Burnett Park at Lamar and Texas Sts., on land donated by cattle
baron Samuel Burk Burnett, features four sculptures by Henri Ma-
tisse entitled “Backs”; a restful spot with fountains, pools, and
granite walkways.

There's a calendar full of annual events including the Southwest-
ern Exposition and Live Stock Show and Rodeo in late Jan. - early
Feb. (one of the nation’s best); Colonial National I[nvitational Golf
Tournament in May; Chisholm Trail Roundup second weekend
June, and Pioneer Days last weekend Sept.

Amon G. Carter Museum of Western Art— Fabulous collec-
tion of pictures, sculptures, books and objects of Western art,
featuring permanent collections of Remington and Russell, plus
frequent traveling exhibits. Open Tues. - Sat. 10 a.m. - 5 p.m.; Sun.
1-5:30 p.m. At 3501 Camp Bowie Blvd., Amon Carter Sg.

Billy Bob’s Texas — World's largest honky-tonk with a
4,800-sq.-ft. rodeo area, 600 feet of bar rails, a 1,650-sq.-ft. stage
for country/Western entertainment with top stars, shops, games,
and restaurants. Off N. Main St. in Stockyards Area. Open daily;
hours vary.

Botanic Gardens — A showcase of 150,000 living plants repre-
senting 2,500 species, displayed in both formal and natural settings.
10,000-sq.-ft. glass conservatory planted with more than 2,500 tropi-

AMON G. CARTER MUSEUM OF WESTERN ART IN FORT WORTH

cal plaits native to Central and South America. Srrall waterfalls,
pcnds, and pathways throughout give visitors an izea what might
be encauntered in tropics. Garden Center cpen daily 8 am. - 11
p.m. Ccnservatory cpsn Apr. - Oct. Mon. - Fri. 1C am. - 9 p.m.,
Set. 10 am. - 6 p.m., Sun. 1 - 6 g.m ; Nov. - Mar. same hours btt
close et 4 p.m. on Sat, Sun. In wooded southwestern section of
Trnizy Far<. Consenvatory at 3220 Bctanic D-. open caily. Entrance
to botaric gardens free; admission to conservatory.
Casa Manana Theater — Under a geodssic dome, one of ne-
tcn's rrost notable thaaters-in-the-round. Setting for drama, musica!
cemadies. 3101 Lancaster, Amon Carzer Sq.
Cattle Raisers Museum — distory cf the cclorful Texas
rancaing industry pcrtrayed in film, photos, and cowboy memora-
tilia. O2en Mon. - Fri. € am. - 4:30 p.m. 130" W. 7:1 St.
Eddleman McFarland House —Elegan: Victoian residence.
Open for tours 1st & 3rd Sun. each nronth. “° 10 Penn St. Fee.
Fire Station No. 1 — "150 Years of Fort Worty" traces city's
colorful nistory. Open 3 a.m. - 7 p.m. Second & Commerce Sts.
Foresl Park Zoo — Animals, birds, and reptiles from throughout
the wo-id; includes acuarium, herpeterium, Great Aces House, and
Chilcren s Zoo.

TEXAS! —a new ook at old Texas features a crie-room schocl
house, reconstructed ranch house, an operating blacksmith shoo
and ivestcck corral. Prairie dogs, javelina, pronghorr antelope, and




American bison, along with ru-al livestock e ir this unique exn bit.
Includes multipurpose center. Yel ow Rose Saloan.

Ferest Park Miniature “rain offers 45-minute ride th-ougn the
pictLresque zoo groucs Fee for train ride

Zco ig cpen daily 3 a.m. - = p.m. stancard tre. During daylight
saving time, to 5:30 p.m. weskdays, 6 p.m &1, 6:30 p.m. Sun.
Forest Park. Admiss on.
Fort Worth Chamgionship Rodeo— Tog--otch rodeo cow-
boys and cowgirls comoete svery Saturdzy r gat Apr. - Sept n
air-condizioned com’or: of Cowtown Colissum n the Stockyzrds
(see Stozkyards below;.
Fort Worth Museum of Science and History/Omni The-
ater — 100,000 artifaczs and specimens for -esearch, exhioito-.
“ravzling exhibits, and perma-ent areas that icude Man ard His
Fossessons, Huma~ >hysiclozy History of Medicine, Calculaa-s
and Computers, Geoogy aic ~aleontology. anc Texas His-ory.

Omni Theater's cdrved sc-zen engulfs vewers' entire field of
vision tc plunge beneath ocean soar thrcugr clouds, cr possitly
witness the awesorye leunch of a space sauttie 50 vary.ng shows
a week.

Astronomy and Izser light stows are presanted in the Noole
Flanstarim. For informatior and schedue foc- Omni Treater and

KIMBELL ART MUSEUM
IN FORT WORTH

CATTLE RAISERS MUSEUM
IN FORT WORTH

Nobe Planetarum call 817/732-1€31 Shows are presented regu-
larly. during scrool vear theater ard pianetarium periodically closed
to public for school chikren.

Museum is open Mcn. 9 a.m. - 5 p.m., Tues. - Thurs. 9 a.m. - 5
p.m, Fri, Sat. 9 am. - 9 pm. Sun. noon - 8 p.m. Wheelchair
accessible. 1501 Montgomery St., Amror Carter Sq. Admission.
Fort Worlh Nature Center and Refuge — Growing from
35-acre Greer Island Nature Center. cuTant 3,500-acre refuge offers
interpretive center, hikng and sef-gtided nature trails. Bison herd
interminglec with ‘whize-tailed deer otzn seen. Prairie dog town
offe-s excellent opoortunity tc otserve these little animals in their
conmunal settng. Open Tues - Sat. 3 am. - 5 p.m., Sun. noon - 5
p.m; 10 mles northwest of downtown (2 miles past Lake Worth
bridge) on Texes 1€9.

Japanese Garden— An enchantirg six-acre garden of Oriental
design featuring a pegcda, moon-viewing deck, teahouse, and medi-
taticn garden amid ILsh exotic plants. Open Nov. - Mar. Tues. - Sun.
10 am. - 5 pm; Apr - Oct. $.am. - 7 p.m. At 3220 Botanic
Garden Dr. Admiss on.

Kimbell Art Museurn — Based on philanthropist Kay Kimbell's
collection of 18th Certury pertraiss and old masters, multimillion-
dollar collection novs ncludes werks from prehistoric to Picasso.




The $6.5-million innovative building of cycloid vaults by architect
Louis Kahn provides unexcelled lighting and display areas. Open
Tues. - Sat. 10 am. - 5 pm.; Sun. 11 am. - 5 p.m.; closed
holidays. 3333 Camp Bowie Blvd.; on Amon Carter Sq.

La Buena Vida Vineyards — Vineyards and winery are near
Springtown, some 20 miles north on Texas 199. Wine tasting room,
visitors center and gift shop open daily 11 am.- 5 p.m., Sun. noon -
5 p.m. are at Texas 199 at F.M. 1886, just north of the Lake Worth
bridge.

Lakes — Arlington, Benbrook, Eagle Mountain, Grapevine, Joe
Pool, and Worth. See LAKES listing.

Log Cabin Village — Seven authentic pioneer homes built during
1860s. Frontier tools, implements, furnishings. Open Mon. - Fri. 8
am. -4.30 pm. Sat 11 am. - 430 pm. Sun. 1 - 4:30 pm
University Dr. and Colonial Parkway in Forest Park. Admission.
Modern Art Museum of Fort Worth — Painting and sculpture
by contemporary artists; special traveling exhibits. Open Tues. - Sat.
10 am. - 5 p.m.; Sun. 1 - 5 p.m. 1309 Montgomery St., Amon
Carter Sg.

Pate Museum of Transportation — See CRESSON.

Sid Richardson Collection of Western Art—Free down-
town museum featuring dozens of paintings from collection of the
late Texas oil man, Sid Richardson, whose favorite artists were
Frederic Remington and Charles M. Russell. Open Tues. - Fri. 10
am -5 pm; Sat 11 am -6 pm; Sun. 1 - 5 pm. Closed

holidays. 309 Main St. in Sundance Sa.

Six Flags Over Texas — See ARLINGTON this section.
Southwest Aerospace Museum — Displays include several
military aircraft from the huge B-36 Peacemaker to the T-33
"Tweety-bird.” Numerous smaller indoor and outdoor exhibits.
Open Thurs. - Sun. 10 a.m. - 3 p.m. 300 N. Spur 341 (main road to
General Dynamics).

TRAIL HERD SCULPTURE AT ENTRANCE TO FORT WORTH'S
STOCKYARDS AREA

Stockyards Collections & Museum — Photos and memora-
bilia from early stockyard days, including sections on the Swift and
Armour packing companies. Small railroad display emphasizes con-
nection with stockyard. Women's area features crown and scepter
of 1920 Stockshow Queen and quilt made from satin costumes
female performers wore in 1936 centennial show at old outdoor
Casa Manana. Sesquicentennial artifacts collected by wagon train
through Texas in 1986 also featured. Open Mon. - Fri. 10 am. - 4
p.m.; Sat. 10 am. - 5 p.m. (Jun. - Aug. open Sun. noon - 5 p.m.). In
Livestock Exchange Building at 131 E. Exchange Ave.

Stockyards Historic Area— Feel of the Old West recaptured
by merchants along Exchange Ave. on city’s North Side. Renovated
Westem-style stores and restaurants front traditional boardwalks. A
Visitor Information Center provides details about area features,
shopping and dining opportunities, along .with Cowtown Rodeo
schedule. Info center open Mon. - Sat. 10 am. - 5 p.m. (During
daylight saving time: Mon. - Sat. 10 a.m. - 5:30 p.m.; Sun. noon - 6
p.m.) 123 E. Exchange St.

Sundance Square —Named for the Sundance Kid, who with
Butch Cassidy once hid out in Cowtown. The downtown renovation
project of turn-of-the-century architecture features dining, art gallery,
entertainment, and Clydesdale-drawn carriage rides. Bounded by
Second, Fourth, Commerce and Throckmorton Sts.
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FROANTIEF IMPLEMENTS, FURNISHINGS AT LOG CABIN VILLAGE
IN FCRT WORTH

Tandy Archeolcgical Museum, A. Webb Roberts Library — On
campus of Southwestern Baptist Theological Seminary. Archeo-
logical items fror t1e Holy Land including artifacts uncovered at Tel
Batesh-Timinah; intzmpretation of earlv Biblical periods. Seminary
history. Cpen Mon. - Sat. 8 a.r. - 5 p.rn. 2001 W. Seminary Dr.
“The Last Supoer” A life-size wex figure interpretation cf the
Last Suppzr. At 11e Radio and Televisior Commission of the South-
ern Baptist Convanticn. Open Mon. - Se=. noon -5 p.m.; Sun. 1-5
p.m 2500 Ridgr-ar P aza.

Thistle Hill — Las: surviving mansion ¢f cattle baron era, restored
to 1910 aopeararce. Opulent cecor. Cpan Mon. - Fri. 10 am. - 3
p.m.; Sun. 1 - £ p.m. 1509 Fennsvlvania. Admission. Renovation
may vary days ogan.

Wafler Garden— Spectacular park features water in all ts as-
pec-s — sparkling, gurgling. bibaling, flowing, sprirkling,
pouring — fountains, channels, zascadss and pools amid gecmetric
arch tectural features. Adjacent o convertion center downtown.
Will Rogers Wemorial Center —Complex is site o Fort
Wor:1's rrajor exhibitions and one cf nation’s premiere equastrian
centzrs. Mounted statue of Wil Rogers famous cowboy humorist,
on erntranze grou=ds Amon Carter Sq.

William Edrington Scott Theater — A showcase for the per-
forring arts; feamurss modern technical equipment to complenent
drama, jazz, chariker music, and baller. A four-and-a-half leve the-
ater with main atditorium seating neerly 500. On Amon Carer Sg.
adjacant to Modern Art Museurm of Fert ‘North.

WATER FLOWS THROUGH FOUNTAINS CTASCADES AND POOLS AT
FORT WORTH'S DDWNTOWN WATER GCARJEN




GARLAND  Pop. 180,650 Alt. 551 Map D-18

General — Suburban city adjoining Dalles grew

from farming community incorporated 1891. Sev-

eral industries established during WW | . Long-

established Resistol Hat Factory provides

headware for “J.R. Ewing.” Center for Perform-

ing Arts, Fifth & Austin Sts., is home to Garland
Symphony, Civic Theater, Big G (country music), and summe- musi-
cals. Home of Amber Univ.
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GARLAND’S LANDMARK MUSEUM, HOUSED IN FORMER
SANTA FE DEPOT, INCLUDES ANTIQUE RAIL CAR

Firewheel Golf Park provides a challenging 36-hole municioal golf
course. For information and tee time, 214/205-2795.
Lakes — Ray Hubbard and Lavon. See LAKES listing.
Landmark Museum — Displays early settlers’ artifaczs, old
newspapers, farm implements, and quilts. Housed in former Santa
Fe depot. Antique rail car on grounds; alsc Lyles House, rastored
“matchbox style” home, exterior views only. Museum open Mon. -
Fri. 9 a.m. - 4:30 p.m. In Heritage Park, 4th & State Sts.
Surf and Swim — Ride four-foot waves in Garland's municipal
wave-action pool surrounded by grass beaches and pecar trees.
Open daily Jun. - Sept. 440 Oates Dr. off 1-635.
Texas Queen—On Lake Ray Hubbard: 105-foot dousle-deck
paddle wheeler offers dinner cruises Wed. - Fri., Sun. Reservations
required. Departs from Elgin B. Robertson Park. Dalrock Rd. exit
south off I-30 East. 214/771-0039.
Wet 'n Wild — Dozens of splashing activities — slides, wave pool,
body flumes, special children’s areas and adventures. Oper week-
ends May and Sept.; daily in summer. LBJ Freeway (I-535) at
Northwest Highway. Admission.

GLEN ROSE Pop. 1,949 Alt. 680 Map F-16

General — Establishment of a trading post at

site in 1849 was beginning of this presen: seat of

Somervell County. Located at a picturescue spot

on the Paluxy River, just above its confluence

with the Brazos River.

Bed and breakfast accommodations offered in

nistoric building.
Comanche Peak Information Center— Tours of nuclea- power
plant site; exhibit of control room simulator, film, and tick-tack-toe
quiz. Open Mon. - Sat. 10 am. - 5 p.m.; Sun. 1 -4 p.m. F.M. 56
north.
Dinosaur Valley State Park — Unique, picturesque oark on
scenic area of Paluxy River. The Paluxy flows over solid rcck that
contains the best-preserved dinosaur tracks in Texas. It was here
the first sauropod tracks in the world were discovered. The sauro-
pods were plant-eating reptiles more than 60 feet long, weigning 30
tons. Two other tracks are also found in the riverbed, those of the
duckbilled dinosaurs —only 30 feet long—and theropods.
Theropods were 12-foot-tall meat-eaters. Interpretive exhib ts give

GIANT REPLICAS OF DINOSAURS DWARF SURROUNDINGS IN
DINOSAUR VALLEY STATE PAFK NEAR GLEN ROSE

visitors a glimpse of how Texas might have locked 100 million
years ago. The 1,204-acre pa‘k also offers camping, picnicking, and
nature trails. Approximately fve miles west via US. 67, F.M. 205.
Admission.

Fossil Rim Wildlife Ranch — 2,300-acre preserve is home to
30 rare and endange-ed species of Afrizan wildlife. Children's pet-
ting zoo lets youngsters meet barnvard critters, and learn about
endangered species and wildlife. Nine-mile drive-through route pro-
vides close-up views. Other activities irclude horseback riding, na-
ture trails and camping at th2 Foothills Safari Camp. Open daily in
summer; winte- schedule varies (817/897-WILD). Off U.S. 67, 35
mi. west. Admission.

Lakes — Granbury, Pat Cleburne, Squaw Creek, Whitney. See
LAKES listing.

The Promise — An historical, yet contemporary, re-enactment of
the life of Jesus of Nazareth. The musical drama with a cast of 80
is presented in open-ai- Texas Amphitheatre. Performances usually
Jun. - Nov. For 2xact dates, 817/897-4341.

Somervell County Historical Museum — |tems depicting lo-
cal history, fossils, relics. Ogen June - Labor Day, Mon. - Sat. 10
am, -5 pm,; Sun 1-5pr.; Labor Diay - May, Sat. 10am. - 5
p.m., Sun. 1 -5 p.m. Elm and Vernon Sts.

FOSSIL RIM WILDLIFE RANCH NEAR GLEN ROSE




GRANBURY Pop. 4,045 Ailt. 725 Map E-16

General — Picturesquely situated on Lake
Granbury; seat of Hood County. Settled 1854 by
Thomas Lambert who united it with the settle-
ment called Stockton to form nucleus of
Granbury. Square is on National Register of His-
toric Places. Historical tours available. Hood Coun-
ty is usually largest pecan producer in state. Detailed area
information available at Convention & Visitors Bureau at 100 N.
Crockett St.
Acton State Historical Site —Texas' smallest state park is
gravesite of Elizabeth Crockett, second wife of Davy Crockett.
Monument erected by act of Texas Legislature 1911. About 6 miles
east, U.S. 377, F.M. 208.
Granbury Opera House — Built 1886; restored and reopened
1975. Plays, musicals, presented weekends Feb. through Dec. On
square.
Granbury Queen — Sightseeing cruises on Lake Granbury on
73-foot replica of Mississippi River paddle wheeler. Sightseeing
cruises Sat., Sun. at 2 and 4:30 p.m. For information, 817/573-6822.
Departs from river landing on Texas 144 1 mi. south of US 377.
Fare.
Historic Inn: Nutt House — Noted restaurant and restored
country inn dates from 1893. Family-style foods feature old-
fashioned favorites like chicken and dumplings, crispy hot-water
cornbread. Eight guest rooms furnished c. 1919. On the square
downtown.
Hood County Jail — Old West-type jail, built 1885, now houses
Visitor Center. Original cell block, hanging tower. Tours Mon. - Fri. 9
a.m.-5pm., Sat. 10 am. -4 p.m. and Sun. 1 -4 p.m.
Lakes — Granbury, Squaw Creek. See LAKES listing.

RESTORED OPERA HOUSE IN GRANBURY
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GRAND PRAIRIE Pop. 99,616 Ait. 528 Map D-18

General — Established at close of Civil War on
Texas & Pacific Railroad with original name of
Deckman. Renamed in 1873; incorporated 1902.
Population spurred by large defease plants during
World War II. Public recreation facilities include
playgrounds, picnic areas, athletic fields, swim-
ming, boating and golf (Great Southwest Golf Ccurse has gold in
sand traps, assaying about $2.85 per ton).
Clown Around — 24,000-square-foot indocr amusement park for
families with children ages two and older. Two game rooms feature
video and skill games. Mechanical rides include indoor train, bumper
cars, Red Baron airplane, mini-flying swing. along with an 18-ft.
ferris wheel. Open daily in summer 10 a.m. - 8 p.m. (Sat. 9 p.m.);
after Labor Day, Tues. - Fri. 4 - 7 p.m., Sat. 10 am. - 8 p.m.; Sun.
noon - 7 p.m.; closed Mon. 702 E. Safari Blvd. Admission.
International Wildlife Park — Drive-through game preserve of
African animals transplanted to Texas for preservaton and breeding.
Lions, elephants, zebras, giraffes, ostriches, rkinos, and other
exotics roam free. Entertainment Village offers eleohant and giraffe
rides, pedal boats, petting zoc, animal nursery gift, and food
stands. Wildlife drive-through open daily year round (weather
permitting). Entertainment Village open daily in summer, weekends
in spring and fall. 601 Wildlife Pkwy. (Bet Line exit from |-30
between Dallas and Fort Worth.) Admission.
Lake — Mountain Creek. See LAKES listing.
Palace of Wax & Ripley’s Believe It or Not! —Following a
disastrous fire in 1988, reconstruction of a bigger and better facility
began immediately. New building duobed an “Arabian Fantasy”
because of huge onion domes, minarets and 2xotic detailing.

The unusual, bizarre, and unbelieveable dsplays in Ripley's Be-
lieve It or Not! are from the collection of a man who collected
world’s most interesting artifacts. Enter overgrown ruins of mystic
temple and discover arts and weapons of primitive people, or walk
over a bed of firey coals, if you dare! \isitors experience an
earthquake and find themselves on the oczan floor in undersea
world of Atlantis and they'll hold onto their hats as they step into a
Texas tornado and emerge safely to inspect the unbelievable things
200-mph winds can do.

Exhibits in wax museum feature all rew ccllecticn of wax figures
in environmental settings. Themed areas include Hellywood, history,
horror, childhood fantasy, and religion. Visitors also see the resident
sculptor at work in his studio. Open 10 a.r. daiy. 601 E. Safari
Pkwy. (Belt Line Rd. exit from I-30 between Dallas and Fort Worth.)
Traders Village —Huge flea market and shoppsars’ bazaar with
hundreds of dealers in novelties, hardrmade gcods, plants, arts,
crafts, and antiques of every description. Specia events include
rodeos, antique auto swap meets, Indian powwows. Restaurant, RV
park. Open Sat. - Sun., 2602 Mayfield Rd. cff Texas 360. Parking
fee; free admission.

Visitors Center —In Clown Around Amusement Park, 702 E.
Safari Pkwy., 214/263-6568. Information on lacal sites and events.
Open daily 10 a.m. - 3 p.m.
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TRADERS VILLAGE...
HUGE FLEA MARKET

»
AND SHOPPERS BAZAAR '
IN GRAND PRAIRIE &

GRAPEVINE  Pop. 29,202 Alt. 650 Map D-18

General — Prior to settlement in 1850, ths
well-watered location on the blackland prairie was
site of important negotiations with Indians includ-
ing a treaty signed here by Sam Houston i1 1843.
Population was 1,813 in 1950; growth parallels
that of most Metroplex cities, and locztion of
Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport here has stimulated growth.

A walking tour of the historic renovated downtown area is avail-
able at convention and visitors bureau. Open Mon. - Fri. 8 am. - §
p.m. 1280 S. Main St.

Three championship public golf courses are open daily.
Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport— One of the
world's largest airports with over 2,000 scheduled domestic and
international flights daily. Group tours available through D/FW Air-
port Public Relations Office.

Grapevine Historical Museum — Housed in restored railroed
depot, museum displays local and pioneer history exhibits. City's
first jail is adjacent. Open Sat., Sun. 1 -5 p.m. 231 S. Ball St.
Grapevine Opry — Showcase of country and Western entertain-
ment in renovated historic theater. Family oriented shows offered
weekly. 308 S. Main St.

Lake — Grapevine. See LAKES listing.

IRVING IS THE HOME OF TEXAS STADIUM AND
THE DALLAS COWBOYS

i -
MANDALAY CANAL AT LAS COLINAS IN IAVING FEATURES WATER TAXIS

IRVING Pop. 155,037 Alt. 470 Map D-18

General — Establishec 1902 by J.O. Schulze
. and Otis Brown as site to begin a watermelon
» farm. In 1906, Schulze anc Brown donated much
\ of Irving to the Chicago, Rock Islend and Gulf
X Railroad for depot and sw tching yard. Irving has
had a grcwth surge from z population of 2,575 in
1920 to more than 100,000 today. The thriving ccmmercial, indus-
tria, and residen-ial city bo-ders on western edge of Callas and the
easterr boundary of D/FV/ International Airport. Home of North
Lake Ccllece anz the Univ. of Dallas.
Dallas Cowboys Football Club/Texas Stadiur — Stadium
tou- inzludes exclusive Stadium Club, elegant private boxes, press
box, dressing rcom, and playing field. Touss Mon. - Fri 10 am. & 2
p.m.; Sal. Sun. & holidays, 11 a.m., 12:30 p.m. & 2 £.m. (no tours
on Jame day). Loop 12 at Carpenter Freaway. Admission.
Las Calinas Complex — Ultramodzrn multiuse complex on
12,000 acrss ircludes Equestrian Center farmer's market center,
movie studio, tusiness facilities, residenial villages, hotel, restau-
ranzs, and shops.

Mancelay Canal Walk, one level below street, is European-styled
carel wak featuring Venetian-built water taxis.

Cenerpizce of Wiliams Square is striking Mustangs of Las
Colinas sculptire, nine mustangs thet appear to be splashing
through a stream of water.

A peoole-mover monorail system takes riders thrcugh complex
anc across Lake Carolyn. The complex i northwest of Texas Sta-
dium 2 m. on Texas 114.

National Mussum of Communicaticns — Fistory of modem
communications and broadzasting. Featiras memorabilia, hands-on
exhibits and thausands of vintage recordings and b-oadcasts for
revewing &nd listening. Open Tues. - Sun. 1) am. - 4 p.m.; closed

NATIOKAL MUSEUUM OF COMMUNICATIONS IN IRVING




Mon. and major holidays. For additional information call
214/566-1234. 4 Dallas Communications Complex, 6305 N.
O’Connor Rd., 2 miles west of I-35. Admission.

North Texas Ice Arena— Only Olympic-size ice arena in state;
home of Dallas Figure Skating Club and Dallas Junior & Senior
Hockey Assoc. Public skating hours: Mon. - Fri. 11 am. - 3 p.m,,
(Mon. & Fri. night 7:30 - 9 p.m.) Sat. 1 - 2:30 p.m., Sun. 1 - 3 p.m.
(No Sun. sessions during hockey season.) 10101 Cowboys Parkway,
Valley Ranch.

LANCASTER Pop. 22,117 Alt. 512 Map E-18

General — For years, Lancaster (Lank-aster) was

the second largest city in Dallas County, and it

still retains the look and feel of a small town

although only minutes from metropolitan Dallas.

Some of the finest Victorian homes in the county

are preserved here. Extensive restoration of the
downtown area was accomplished in the late 1970s.

During the War Between the States, a pistol factory here pro-

duced the huge Colt .44 Dragoon revolver that collectors call the
“Tucker & Sherrod Confederate Colt.” Memorabilia of the CSA
foundry and gun factory are preserved in the city library. Volunteers
from the city formed a company of cavalry that served with the 5th
Texas Cavalry —the Ross Brigade.
Confederate Air Force Wing — The Dallas-Fort Worth Wing of
the CAF is housed at Lancaster Airport. Among some nine WWII
warbirds on display are an FAU Corsair, a German Luftwaffe Storch,
an F4F Wildcat, and the prize of the collection, one of two remain-
ing flyable Japanase Zeros. Open Sat. 9 a.m. - 5 p.m. Airport is on
F.M. 1382, (Belt Line Rd.) six miles east of I-35 in southeast Dallas
County.

SAILORS TAKE
ADVANTAGE OF
THE WIND ON
LAKE LEWISVILLE

LEWISVILLE Pop. 46,521 AlIlt. 490 Map D-17/18

General —First settlers at present townsite

were John and Augustus King, 1844, who re-

ceived land through the Peters Colony, jointly

owned by US. and British businessmen. The

colony was plagued by lawsuits and disputes,

once leading to a mob attack and burning of the
land office. In 1855 town got its first mill, trading post, dry goods
store and first cotton gin in Denton County. The Dallas and Wichita
Railway arrived in 1881 and city became significant trading post.
Today's growth is stimulated by the expanding Dallas/Fort Worth
metroplex.

Many original buildings in the Old-West style remain on main
street housing antique and specialty shops. The city has 17 parks,
many of which are on Lake Lewisville (see LAKES listing) developed
for camping, fishing and recreation.
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BOLIN WILDLIFE EXHIBIT, McKINNEY

Lake Lewisville State Park — 638 acres on east shore of the
huge lake, a haven for watar-sports enthusiasts from the metroplex.
Lake noted for excellent fishing opportunities (see LAKES listing).
Park facilities include boat -amp, dock, fish-cleaning station, bait and
tackle concession, multiuse campsites, screened shelters, rest
rooms, showers, dump station, playground, and picnic areas. Ac-
cess via Texas 121 east, tren F.M. 423 north. Admission.

LAKE LEWISVILLE IS IMMENSELY POPULAR FOR WATER SPORTS AND
OUTDOOR RECREATION IN THE DALLAS/FORT WORTH METROPLEX

McKINNEY Pop. 21,283 Alt. 612 Map C-18

-

General — Settled 1845, seat of Collin County.

City and county named for Collin McKinney, a

signer of the Texas Declaration of Independence

and leadsr in establishment of the Disciples of

Christ (Christian Church) in Texas. A wide variety

of local industries contributes to city's economy.
Bolin Wildlife Exhibit — Mounted animal trophies from several
states and foreign countries; good Mobil Oil Co. memorabilia cen-
tered around turn-of-the-century storefront, along with 1913 Model
T, 1928 Model A truck and roadster, pioneer life and early trans-
portation exhibits. Open Mon. - Fri. 9 a.m. - noon, 1 - 4 p.m. 1028
N. McDonald (Texas 5).

Chestnut Square — Quaint Victorian and Greek Revival-style
houses are among five open Tues. 10 a.m. - 3 p.m. Mar. - June and
Sept. - Nov. The houses range in age from 1853 - 1910 and are
furnished with period furnishings. Just south the square on Chest-
nut St. Admission.

Collin Co. Youth and Farm Museum — Dedicated to preserv-
ing Collin Co. agriculture heritage. Features collection of antique
farm equipment and artifasts from North Texas farms from the
1930s. Open Tues. 1 -5 pm. North on U.S. 75 to U.S. 380, west
to F.M. 7461, north on county road 166. Approximately 4 miles
northwest of city.

Heard Natural Science Museum and Wildlife
Sanctuary — Natural histcry exhibits of flora, fauna and geology.
Collection of nature prints by Bessie Heard. Nature trails through



256-acre wildlife sanctuary. Tours arranged through director
(214/542-6566). Open Tues. - Sat. 9 am. -5 p.m.: Sun. 1 -5 p.m.
Reservations not required for Sunday tours 1:30 - 3:30 p.m. South
2 mi. on Texas 5; east 1 mi. on F.M. 1378.

Lakes — Lavon, Texoma. See LAKES listing.

Old Post Office Museum —Built in 1911 at cost of $60,000,
handsome building includes walkways and peepholes used by
postal inspectors. Local and pioneer history exhibits related to Collin
County, plus traveling exhibits. Open Tues. 1 - 5 p.m. Chestnut and
Virginia Sts.

Parks — Wilson Creek Park incorporates Towne Lake Recreation
Area, a 20-acre lake with paddleboats, sailboats, food concessions,
fishing and sand volleyball. Park also includes softball and soccer
complexes, bike trails and community center. Between Eldorado
Pkwy and Louisiana St. east of U.S. 75.P2 Finch park offers
tree-shaded picnic areas, playgrounds, sports fields, swimming pool,
and restored historic home of town namesake, Collin McKinney.
South edge of town off Kentucky St.

MESQUITE Pop. 101,484 Alt. 491 Map D-18

General — One of fastest-growing cities in state
(1950 population was 1,684). Adjacent to east
city limit of Dallas. Established 1872 as stop on
T&P Railroad, named for nearby Mesquite Creek.
More than 1,115 acres of parks, 2 golf courses, 4
public swimming pools and recreation centers.
Hot air balloonfest in July attracts some 250,000 to see hot air
balloons from all over the U.S. along with aircraft flyovers, para-
chute jumps, arts, crafts, and musical entertainment.
Devil’s Bowl Speedway — One-half-mile racetrack features all
types of vehicle races, including sprint cars, super modified,
modifieds, and motorcycles. Races Fri. - Sat. Mar. - Nov. U.S. 80,
exit Lawson Rd. Admission. For racing information, 214/222-2421.
Lakes — Cedar Creek, Lavon, Ray Hubbard and Tawakoni. See
LAKES listing.
Mesquite Championship Rodeo — Established in 1958 as an
experiment in_ongoing rodeo; has become popular attraction with
coverage on The Nashville Network. Facilities include grandstand
seating for 6,500, restaurant, air-conditioned suite that can be
rented for parties and rodeo viewing. Pony rides and Kiddie Korral
for youngsters. Performances Fri., Sat. nights Apr. - Sept. Near LBJ
Freeway (I-635) and Military Parkway Exit. For schedule,
214/285-8777.
Mesquite Opry — Specializing in family entertainment, Opry fea-
tures classic country music from nationaly known stars and local
talent and guest performers. Every Sat. night. 214 W. Davis. Admis-
sion. For information, 214/285-8931.
Samuell Farm —340-acre farm features a variety of animals to
experience life on a working farm. Maintained to recall farming days
of 1800s to early 1900s. Features include ponds for fishing, picnic
tables, hayrides, hiking and horse trails. Open Tues. - Sat. 9 a.m. - 5
p.m. 100 E. U.S. 80 East, exit Beltline Rd.
Rainbow Park — Enclosed air-conditioned amusement park
geared for children. Has rides, games and activities. Hours vary
during season. 1210 Seyene Rd.

CHAMPIONSHIP RODEOS EVERY WEEKEND, APRIL - SEPTEMBER,
IN MESQUITE'S ALL-WEATHER ARENA

HERITAGE FARMSTEAD MUSEUM (FARRELL-WILSON FARMSTEAD)
IN PLANO

PLANO Pop. 128,713 Alt. 655 Map D-18

General — First settled in 1845; named Fillmore
for Millard Fillmore. Name changed in 1851 when
post office was Jranted. In 1881 most of city
was destroyed by fire. Another major fire in 1895
also destroyed many businesses. With the
growth of nearby Dallas, city grew from 3,695 in
1960 to 72,331 in 1980. Many early buildings survive and are
described in historical guide available at chamber of commerce.

City has become known as “Ealloon Capital of Texas” with
hot-air balloon races scheduled last weekend in Sept. Large arts &
crafts fair held in conjunction with balloon festival.

Fairview Farms — It's been more than 100 hundred years since
Clinton Haggard moved to Plano f-om Kentucky. Today, the Hag-
gard family is still active in farming and has created an area to bring
farm life to the city. There's a farmer's market, arts barn, museum,
general store, farm animals, party pavilion, and restaurant. Seasonal
demonstrations held throughout thz year include sheep shearing,
horseshoeing and other events dep cting farm life. Open daily. U.S.
75 &t Parker Rd. (exit 30).

Heritage Farmstead Museum (Farrell-Wilson Farmstead)— Built
in 1891, was center of working “arm until 1972. Four-acre site
includes preserved windmill and out-builcings. Listed in National
Registry of Historic Places. Guided tours. Open June - Aug. Tues. -
Fri. 10 am. -1 p.m.; Sat,, 10 am. - 1 p.m.; Sun., 1 - 4 p.m. Sept. -
May open Thurs. - Fri. 10 am. - 4 p.m.; Sat, 10 am. - 1 p.m.;
Sun., 1-4 p.m. (Note: last tour leaves 1 hour before closing time.)
Admission.

Lake — Lavon. See LAKES listing.

Mountasia Fantasy Golf —A 54-hole miniature golf course
takes golfers through caves, wate-falls, and other obstacles. Can
accommodate 500 golfers. 7,000-sq.-ft. clubhouse includes latest
video games available. At 2400 Pramier Dr. off U.S. 75 (between
Park and Parker Rd ). Admission.

Parks — Award-winning park system includes two indoor pools
and one outdoor, 21-court tennis center, municipal golf course,
outdocr leaming center, playgrourd, playground for handicapped
children, and a hike-and-bike trail system 15 miles long connecting
seven park sites.

VISITORS AT SPRING CREEK FARM IN RICHARDSON
WITH GIANT BELGIAN HORSE

3.




ELLIS COUNTY COURTHOUSE IN WAXAHACHIE

RICHARDSON Pop. 74,840 All. 630 Map D-18

General — Setteme-t celled Breckenridge be-
fore Civil War, tcwr grew around new station on
T&NO Railroad wnen built through area in 1872;
renamec for rairoed official Remainad a -urel
village until affectac bv enormous Dallas growth,
distinguishable “rom Dales only by city imit
markers.
Spring Creek Farm — Comme-cial sausage-making firm mair-
tains a showcase farm and small rmuseury w th old-time blacksmitn
shop, farm kitchen, antiques, anc vntage sausage-making equip-
ment. Belga~ horses, Shetlands, and smal farm animals. Miss
Belle's Place, a two-story farmhouse, c. 1887, one of oldest folses
in Richardsor is furnished to reflest tum-of-tre-century era vhen
house contained a private schoal conducted by Miss Belle.
Self-guided taurs daily 9 am. - noon, 1 z.m. - 4 p.m.; weekends 3
a.m. - 1 p.m. Off Texas 5, 2 miles N= o its irtersecticn wit1 U.S.
75, at 1403 E. Lookout Dr. For informaticn, z”4.235-0192.
Wineburgh Philatelic Research Library — Stamp hobbvists
will find “The Language of Philately " diszlay panels intrizuing, along
with stamp collection exh bits and over “8,000¢ books &nd jo.mals.
Open Mon. - Thurs. 9 ar. -6 pm., =ri. 3 &.mn - 5 p.m. In Eugen=
McDermott L brary, Univ. of Texas &t Dallas, 2621 N. Flcvd Rd.

WAXAHACHIE Pop. 18,168 Alt. 585 Map E-18

General — Name dzrives from Indian word
meaning “cow (or bufalc) creek.” Now seat cf
Ellis County, town was once squarely cn ths
Chisholm Trail. Town is roted for atundance cf
Victorian-style homres, ecborate witn “ginger-
bread” trim. Severel movies have besn mace in
the city featurng its old buildings and homes. For a mazc of historic
homes and kuildings and where movies have been shot, visit the
chamber of commerce, Mon. - Fri, €30 a.m. - 5 p.m. 102 YMCA
Dr., or call 21£/937-2390.
Chautauqua Auditorium —Bult 1904, rare survivor o the
Chautaugua circuit that brought live talert for -eligious and cu tural
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ITALIAN ARTISANS WERE MPORTED
FOR STONECARVING ON

ELLIS COUNTY COURTHOLSE

IN WAXAHACHIE

events to rural towns around the turn of the century. \With advent
of radio, Chautauqua waned and ended in 1930s. Today site of city
events, restored structure is on National Register of Historic °laces.
Stiated in 55-acre Getzendaner Park on S. Grand Ave. off W. Main.
Ellis County Courthouse — Elaborate structure of red sand-
stone and granite, built 1895 for then-lavish ccst of $150,000. [talian
artisans were ‘mported for exterior stone carving. (Recurring face
sait to be Makel Frame, railroad telegraph operator with whem one
scu ptor becarre enamored ) Clock uses windip mecharism weigh-
ing 250 pounds; bell-striker weight exceeds 800 pounds.

Ellis County Museum — Historical artifacts, photos, household
fLrrishings anc toys depict history of this Centrzl Texas region. In
restored 19th-Century building on courthouse sgare. Ogen Tues. -
Sat. 9am.-5pm.; Sun. 1-5 p.m, closed Mon.
Lake — Bardwell. See LAKES listing.

Nicholas P. Sims Library — Original stricture buit 1804, is
clazsic example of Roman Doric architecture. Gold leaf ard Carrara
rratble used in interior; exterior features enameled brick, copper
cornices and zarved replica of the Greek torch of krowledge.
Co-tains over 33,000 volumes. 515 W. Main.

Scarborough Faire — Springtime Renaissance fair features arts,
crafts, foods, end medieval ertertainment —wizards, jugglers, jest-
ers, and puppet shows. Costumes of royalty and rascals, poets and
peasants. In rural setting sight weekends mid-Apr. th-ough early
.uns on F.M. €6, 1.6 mi. west of |-35E. Admission.

VINTAGE CHAUTAUQUA AUDITORIUM IN WAXAFACHIE



CITY IN THE SUN

Drenched by the suns of a thousand
years, nestled in an ancient mountain
pass surrounded by mile-high peaks,
El Paso is Texas’ westernmost city.
Today’s modern mountain metropolis
has its roots in antiquity, for cave-
dweller remains indicate the presence
of man here from prehistaric times.

Cabeza de Vaca is believed to have
passed this way about 1525. The city
grew from four settlements first es-
tablished by Juan Maria Ponce de
Leon in 1827, although area missions
thrived for nearly 150 years before
civil settlement.

Superb climate, scenery, and prox-
imity to Mexico’s largest border city,
Juarez, make El Paso one of Texas’
most popular tourist destinations.
And there’s plenty to see and do!
Coal off at Wet 'n Wild Water World
in nearby Anthony, hike through pris-
tine trails in Guadalupe Mountains
National Park, or discover centuries-
old missions right in the heart of Sun
Country.

After several special sections like
this at the front of this book, see
page 76 where alphabetical listings of
other Texas cities and towns begin,
each with fascinating attractions to
enrich your travels anywhere in the
Lone Star State.

New Mexico

ANTHONY

Pop. 3,328  Alt. 3,800 Map F-1

General — One of Texas' newest towns {incor-
porated in 1952); a two-state city. On Texas 20,
which in this area follows historic rotte of
El Camino Real, Spain's royal highway that con-
nected Mexico with Texas, Californa, and Florida.
In 1598 Don Juan de Onate and bznd of coloniz-
ers traveled this road to settle Santa Fe, at rate of only 40 miles in
15 days. Economy now keyed to food canning and packing, cotton,
and federal correctional institution. ,
Travel Information Center —One of the centers proviced by
state at key highway entrances to Texas, in State Capitol, and at
Judge Roy Bean Visitor Center in Langtry. Centers are orerated

OLD FORT BLISS MUSEUM, EL PASO

Pine Springs ¢




CHIHUAHUA, ARE THE LARGEST BORDER CITIES OF TEXAS AND MEX!CO

daily except for Thanksgiv.ng, Christmas Eve, Christmas Day and
New Year's. Ste*fed bv uniformed, professicnal travel counselors,
free services to all visicors include information, meazs, litereture on
every part of state, and expert assistance in chatting rouzes. Lo-
caled on |10 at New Mexco state line; operated by State Cepart-
ment of Highways and Pub'ic Transportation.

Wet ’'n Wild Waler World — Water-oriented racreation park pumps
a million gallons a day to provide "volcanc” with water slides.
Includes a lazy water tubz float, berbecue -estau=nat, and ficnic
area. Open daily May - Aug.; weekends in Seot. On [-10 near Texas
Travel Informaticn Center. Admission.

EL PASO Pop. 515,342  Alt. 3,762  Map F-1

General — Grew from earlier set> ements cating

back to the Juan de Onate expedition in 1598

and a se-tlement by Juan Marz Zcnce dz Leon

1827, although area missicns precate that civil

\( settlement by almost 150 years. Largest U.S. citv

on Mexican border; neighbo’ing J.arez (below) is

Mexico’s largest border city. Combined populations are ajout

1,700,000. Lozated in ancient mountain pass frorx which ths nams
derived; surrounded by mile-high peaks.

Symphony orchestra, theatre, museums, litraries, and dive sified
sporting activties including horse and greyhounc razing, pclc, ten-
nis football, and basketball. Home of Univ. of Texas at El Faso,
noted fo- Bhutarese-sty'e architectu-e and Sur Bowl Stadium.

For full detaile and literature or zity attractions visit El Paso

Convention ard Yisitors Bureau, 1 Civic Center Plaza
Chamizal National Memorial —Cites amicasle settlement of
longstanding borzer dispute between Texas aad Mexizo, in an area
by the Rio G-ande where a new channel marks adj.sted interne-
tional boundary. Visitor center, exhibits, films i1 Szanich end Engisa
on Chamizal end border history. Open daily 8 a.nr. - 5 p.m. “aisan®
and San Marc al Sts.
El Pasc Centennial Museum — Archeology, arth-opoogv, geo-
ogy; photos and maps show historical developmza: oo El Fasc.
Opzn Tues. - Fri. 10 am. - 3 p.m.; Sun. 1:30 - 5:30 p.m. Campus,
Unv. of Texas at El Paso, Lniversity Ave. and Wiggins Rd.

TEXAS’ OLDEST MISSION. CORPUS CHRISTI DE LA ISLETAIN
EL PASO, DATES FROM 1681




DEB:lT PANORAMA AT HUECO TANKS STAE PARK EAST OF EL PASO

El Faso Museum of Art— Multimillion-dollar K-ess Collection
and Gilbert Stuart portrait of George Washington: fraquent exhibits
0° classical and contemporary Mexican and Southweztern art. Open
Ties - Sat. 10a.m. -5 p.m.; Sun. 1 -5 p.m. 1211 Montana Ave.

El Paso Museum of History —U S. Cevalry mementos; valuablz
charra costumes and saddles; Southwestern history “rom the con-
gdistadores to Pancho Villa in pictures. Open Tues. - Sun. 9 a.m. -
4:45 p.m.; I-10 at Loop 375 (Avenue of Tre Amercas)

Fort Bliss — U S. Army post established 1848 as defense against
hostile Indians and to assert U.S. authoritv over lands acquired after
the Mexican War. Headquarters for Confederate fcraes in South-
west during Civil War, later refitting post for milizary efforts against
the wily, much-feared Apache chief, Geronimo. Today a U.S. Army
Air Defense Center for rocket research and combat tra ning for allied
nations.

Air Defense & Artillery Museum — In Euilding 5000,
Peasanton Rd. near Robert E. Lee Rc., is the JS. Amy Ar
Defense & Artillery Museum, only one of its kind r the country,
with hands-on displays and doramas about the hictory of air de-
fense. Open Wed. - Sun. 9 a.m. - 4:30 p.,n.

Fcrt Bliss Museum — Replica of original adate fort mair-
teined as museum of frontier military era; Pleasanton Rd. ani
Sneridan Dr. Open daily 9 am. - 4:30 p.m

Mussum of the Noncommissioned Officer — Traces his-
tory of the U.S. NCO corps with artifacts dating fram the Revolu-
tionary War. Open Mon. - Fri. 9 am. - 4 p.m.; Sat., Sun. noon - 4
p m. Biggs Army Airfield, Bldg. 11331, Barksdale & 5t Sts.

LOOF 375, TRANS MOUNTAIN ROAD IN EL PASO

3rd Armored Cavalry Museum — In Building 2407, Forrest
Rd., is the 3rd Cavalry Museum, the “Regiment of Mounted Rifles”
that fought in Mexican War and Indian campaigns. Open Mon. - Fri.
7:30 am. - 4:30 p.m.

Hueco Tanks State Park —Precious water from infrequent
rains “stored” in natural rock basins: for centuries a strategic travel
stop in this arid region. Ancient Indian pictographs, plus names of
‘49ers on way to California. Picnicking, hiking, climbing, and camp-
ing. Off U.S. 62/180 26 miles east of El Paso; admission.

Insights - El Paso Science Center  Features educational.
hands-on exhibits about science and technology: solar power, mo-
tion, light illumination, electricity, space science, computers, energy,
and the human body. Housed in historic Mills Building, the world's
largest monolithic concrete structure when completed in 1915,
Open Tues. - Sat. 1 - 5 p.m. except holidays and last two weeks in
Aug. 303 N. Oregon St. at San Jacinto Plaza.

International Trolleys —An easy and fun way to cross the
border to shop and sightsee in Juarez, Mexico, (see below) is by
trolley. Air-conditioned rubber-tired trolleys depart from the Civic
Center on the hour from 9 a.m. - 4 p.m. Wed. - Sun.
Juarez — Mexico's fourth largest city, and that country's largest
city on the U.S. border (pop. over 1 million), linked to EI Paso by
three bridges over the Rio Grande. Visitors find variety of shopping
from the elegant, government-sponsored ProNaf area to traditional
Mexican markets. Also beautiful accommodations, night clubs, fam-
ous Juarez Race Track and Museo de Arte e Historia that displays
excellent collection of pre-Columbian art, historic and contemporary,
art and artifacts. (See MEXICO, at back of book.)

Magoffin Home State Historic Structure — Guided tours of
homestead built in 1875 as replica of earlier home destroyed in
1868 flood. Was political and social center of Magoffinsville commu-
nity (later named El Paso). Walls average 2 1/2 feet thick; timber
cut in Sacramento Mountains of New Mexico, 80 miles from El
Paso. Traditional enclosed patio; much original furniture. Open 9
a.m. - 4 p.m. daily. 1120 Magoffin St. Admission.

Old Missions —El Paso’s Lower Valley is site of several graceful
old Spanish missions that are older than the better-known missions
of California. Open daily, daylight hours, tour mapped by El Paso
Convention & Visitors Bureau includes the following:

Nuestra Senora del Carmen, established in 1681, and later dedi-
cated Corpus Christi de la Isleta, 1690; damaged by both floods and
fires, but restored and maintained in original style and now familiarly
called Ysleta Mission. Oldest mission in Texas, established for Tigua
Indians (see below). When founded, the mission pueblo was south
of the Rio Grande, but has been left on the Texas side by changes
in the river channel. Some mission land has been in constant
cultivation since 1682, over 300 years! 100 block of Old Pueblo Rd.
(Zaragosa exit from I-10 east).

Nuestra Senora de la Concepcion del Socorro established in 1682
as mission for Piros, Thanos, and Jemes Indians. Originally located
about 12 leagues from Guadalupe Mission at Paso del Norte and
about 7.5 leagues from Ysleta. However, when a group of Indians
threatened to revolt, mission moved to new location about one
league from Isleta Mission. Early 19th Century flood changed course
of Rio Grande and left village and mission on Texas side. Present
village of Socorro adjacent to southeast El Paso, F.M. 258 south.

Village of San Elizario served as El Paso County seat for years

and was location of a presidio (fort) of the same name. San Elizario
Presidio Chapel was founded 1777 to serve Spanish military gar-
rison and government. Still in daily use, chapel stands as built 200
years ago, preserving a type of architecture that supplanted more
austere styles of Ysleta and Socorro missions. F.M. 258 south.
Parks — Many parks, plus Ascarate and Mountain Shadow
Lakes, McKelligon Canyon and Franklin Mts, State Park, are popu-
lar picnic areas. During vear, a variety of stage productions is
presented in an amphitheater in McKelligon Canyon Park.
Scenic Drives — Scenic Drive traces a winding course on south-
ern flank of Mount Franklin above downtown El Paso, with view of
Juarez across the river. Reached from Richmond St. on the east,
from Rim Rd. on the west.

El Paso is “V" shaped, divided by imposing steeps of Franklin
Mountains. Connecting top ends of “V" is Loop 375 (Transmountain
Road) that climbs through mile-high Smugglers Gap with impressive
views of rugged mountain-desert scenery. Accessible from I-10
northwest of city and from U.S. 54 northeast.

Sierra de Cristo Rey — The Mountain of Christ the King looms
above El Paso at point where territories of Texas, Mexico, and New
Mexico meet. Prominent on the 4,576-foot summit is a massive



EL PASO’S TIGUA INDIAN RESERVATION OFFERS EXCELLENT VISITOR
PROGRAM WITH AUTHENTIC INDIAN DANCES, ARTS AND CRAFTS

monument of Christ on the Cross by a=ist Urbici Soler, built of
Cordova cream limestone quarried near Austin. Not recommended
to climb except during Pilgiimage last Sun in Oct.

Tigua Indian Reservation: Ysleta del Sur Pueblo — Oldest
community in present boundaries of Texas, now part of the city of
El Paso, was established in 1681 by refugees from a bloody Indian
uprising that expellad Spenish and Christan Indians from present
New Mexico. Spansh missionares and loval Tigua Indians settled
here at El Paso del Norte end btilt Isleta Mission (see previous “Old
Missicrs® entry). The mission caurch is s:li the relgious focal point
of the Tigua Indian community.

Today the Tiguas offer a fascinating visitor program and arts and
crafts center in their extensive adobe complex, which has been
reconstructed in traditionzl pueblo style. Museum and restaurant
open daily except Mon., Ties. i1 winter. 4mong & variety of foods,
the restaurant features several Tigua specialties including gorditas (a
kind of Indian taco with spicy filling), pungent Tigua Indian chili (both
red and green varieties), and delicious, fresh Indian bread. Features
include the pueblo, work areas where bezutiful pottery is made, the
adobe-oven bakery, an old stagecoach stoz, and Indian dance perfor-
mances. Open daily. 119 S. Old Pueblo Rd. (Exit Zaragosa Rd. from
I-10 East, turn sotth to Alameda, turn left. One block and turn
right.)

Travel Information Center —I-10 west. See ANTHONY.

Viva El Paso! — Ouidoor drama that captures the culture and
heritage of the Southwest: Spectacular Franklin Mountains serve as
a backdrop at oper-air McKelligon Canyo- Amphitheater. Traces El

EL CAPITAN AND GUADALUPE MDUNTAINS FROM DESERT FLOOR

Paso’s history through four eras: Indian, Spanish, Mexican, and
Western. Thurs. - Sat. performances Jul. - Aug.

Western Playland — 25-acre amusement park with dozens of
rides, including the Splashdown Log Ride and El Bandito Roller
Coaster. Games, shops, and foods. Open Mar. - May, Fri. 7 - 11
p.m., Sat., Sun. 2 - 10 p.m.; June - Aug., Mon. - Fri. 7 - 11 p.m,,
Sat, Sun. 2 - 11 pm.. Sept - Oct, Sat, Sun. 2 - 8 pm. On
landscaped grounds adjacent to lake in Ascarate Park, 6 mi. east of
city off 1-10; Trowbridge Exit, south to Delta Rd. Admission.
Wilderness Park Museum — Dioramas depict ancient Indian
tribes of the Southwest, their survival in the desert, and adaptation
to changing civilization. Also interpretation of Hueco Tanks (see
above) as a cultural site. Open Tues. - Sun. 9 am. - 5 p.m.; 2000
Transmountain Rd. (Loop 375).

Zoo —Birds and reptiles exhibited in beautiful botanical environ-
ment. Known for exotic reptile and colorful primate collections.
Open daily except Thanksgiving, Christmas and Jan. 1. Evergreen &
Paisano Sts. (across from county coliseum); admission.

PINE SPRINGS Pop. 51 Alt. 5634 Map F-4

General — The tiny community on U.S. 62/180

just south of the New Mexico state line was the

location of a station on famous stagecoach run,

Butterfield Overland Mail Route. Station was es-

tablished in 1858; tumbled stone ruins and a

granite historical marker are all that remain today.
Guadalupe Mountains National Park — Dedicated 1972, the
park contains 76,293 acres with elevations ranging from 3,650 to
8,749 feet at the summit of Guadalupe Peak, highest point in Texas.
Four of the state's highest peaks are in the park, as well as many
other unnamed peaks over 8,000 feet, along with deep canyons and
a rare mixture of plant and animal life. The barren, desert outer
mountain slopes belie a wooded, game-rich interior of great scenic
beauty. Forests of ponderosa pines mingle with aspens, maples,
mountain junipers and madronas. Abundant deer and elk graze
upland meadows.

Most access to the park’s rugged, majestic interior is by hiking
and backpack camping along 80 miles of marked trails. The National
Park Service advises that only experienced, well-equipped .
backpackers should enter the primitive back country for extended
stays. Permits are required for overnight trips and camping is al-
lowed in designated areas only. All should check in and out at the
Frijole Visitor Center on U.S.62/180 near Pine Springs.

Visitors may drive near mouth of McKittrick Canyon, where easy
hiking trails lead into enchanting scenery (day use only).

Tent and self-contained RV camping at Pine Springs campground
near the ruins of historic “Pinery” stage station. Water, rest rooms,
evening campfire programs. Containerized fuel stoves (gasoline,
propane, alcohol) only. On U.S. 62/180. Fee.



HOUSTON:
GALVESTON

AND THE BAY CITIES OF TEXAS

When pirate Jean Laffite established
a settlement on Galveston Island in
1817 he had no more idea of what
was to come than did the Allen
brothers when they set up a small
riverboat landing on Buffalo Bayou in
1836. @® Richmond
Those settlements have grown:
Galveston — into a major recreational, Alvin ®
medical, port and 1rade center;
Houstan — becoming the largest city
in Texas with attractions and
amenities for the most demanding 9
aficionados of culture, commerce, cli-
mate, and cheerful days.
These cities, along with some
neighbors along the Gulf Coast, share
a cammon happy outlook, where
pleasure is a major ingredient of
lifestyle. Relax and enjoy the visitor
amenities of this region’s cities, ALVIN

Pop. 19,220 Alt. 51 Map M-21

grouped in this special section and ;
listed below. And by the way, it's OK General —In northeastern Brazoria County,
to wear your cowboy boots to the city founded in 1876 when railroad built through
connecting Galveston with Richmond. It's named
opera'. for founder Alvin Morgan. City has survived hur-
Alvin Pasadena ricanes, notably the 1900 and 1915 storms. and a
H 5 disastrous fire in 1902. Agriculture and cil-related
IB):ytO;VDk g'c'.‘mond Rosenberg products sustained the economy for years, but, with its sirategic
er Far pring location on the southeastern Houston metropolitan area and close
Galveston  Sugar Land proximity to NASA, today Alvin is center for diversified indust-ies.
Houston Texas City Cultural aspects are influnced by Alvin Community College. An
abundance of parks offers places for picnicking; for those fooking
Humble

for sandy beaches, Alvin is just minutes from the Gulf Coast.
After several special sections like Bayou Wildlife Park—A variety of exotic wildlife ir natural

this at the front of this book, see settings roam freely through prairies and woods. Guided tram ride

- . stops frequently in 86-acre habitat allowing visitors to maet and
page 76 where alphabetical listings of feed animals. Open daily 10 a.m. - 5 p.m. Apr. - Aug.; Sep. - Mar.

other Texas cities and towns begin, closed Mon., otherwise 10 a.m. - 4 p.m. Closed Christmas and
g . - : New Year's. Also subject to closing during inclement waather.

eac!-' with fasclnatmg attractw_ns to Approximately 4 miles east on F.M. 517. For information,

enrich your travels anywhere in the 713/337-6376.

Lone Star State.

BAYTOWN Pop. 63,850 Alt. 26 Map L-22

General — Grew from small sawmill anc store
settlement in 1824; among early settlers was
Nathaniel Lynch who set up Lynchburg =zrry in
1822. (See below.) Confederate shipyar:z estab-
lished nearby at mouth of Goose Creek n 1864:
oil discovered 1916. Industries today fe=ture oil
refineries, petrochemicals, synthetic rubber. Recreational “acilities
for sailing, saltwater fishing, and water sports activities. Home of
Lee College.
Baytown Historical Museum — Artifacts pertaining to I=cal and
pioneer history. Open Tues. - Sat. 10 a.m. - 2 p.m.; 220 W. Defee
St. A 440-acre drag racing complex with races every Wed. and Sat.
night (Dec. - Mar., Wed. & Sun.). At 2525 F.M. 5656 Scu-h. For
information call 713/383-2666.
Lynchburg Ferry — Shuttles travelers across the mouth of the
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PLEASURES ARE FOLHD ALONG GALVESTON'S SEAWALL BOULEVARD

San .acinto Rive~. In oaeration since 1822. West of city.
Parks — Bicentanria Park features ou:zdoor theatz end nosts an-
nual culy 4th celsbraticn znd other outdoor concerts. Lee Drive and
Mark=t Sts.

Gray Sports Zorrpiax includes lighted ballfeld lighted tenris
coLrtz, nature tre Is, p cnic area and playgrourd. 520) East Rd.

Reoublic of Texas “laza was dedicated during the sssguicenten-
nial and features sta-uz of Ashbel Smith, one of citv's =arly settlers
anc leader for acvancement of education in Texes. Historical marker
in citv identifies 3m tr"s Fore “Evergreen,” overlooking Tebbs Bay.
Wallisville Heritage Park — Displays ana artifacts of Spanish
Mission Nuestra Sancra de la Luz and Prassido Sar Agustin de
Ahumada, 1766 - 1771 v Ttage saddle-making tools. hecware; area
history. Adjacent -estored 1869 school contzins genealogi-
calthiztorical libre-y. Cren Mon. - Sat. 8 am -5 p.m. 13 mi. east
on I-12 at Trinity River, Exit 307.

DEER PARK Pop. 27,652 Ali. 33 Map L-21

General — Founded in 1892 bv Simzon West,
wes named for abuncance of dear 1 aea; post
officz established 1902. Has grown “rom populs-
tion of 100 in 1940, largey Ly estebl shment of
incustry zlong Housten Ship Channel. Fopulation
grew from 736 in 1950 to “ 2,773 in 1970.
Dow Park & Botanical Gardens —A 4J-acre dowrtown pa’k
witn aicnic grounds swimming pool, athletic facilities; alsc includes
botar cal gardenz with mor2 than 180 flower species, inciuding 50
wild ‘lower varieties Garcens have colonial igh: fxtures, brick
wake wooden zrch bridyes, gazebo. P Street between Center &
Luella.
Patrick Cabin — Feolica of cabin in which the oeaze treaty be-
tween Texas and Mexico was drawn up after the Battlz of San
Jacino. Construzted in 1936, using building tecknigues of 1830,
including hauling logs to site with horse 1leam Authsntic furnish-
ings, garden. Op2n Mon. - Fri. 10 a.m. - 4 p.r.; 3009 Center St.
San Jacinto Battlegrcund State Historic Park —Ste is ad-
jacent to city’s norhzast city limits. Four historical markers on
Battleground Rd. (Texas 134) within city attest to cizy's claim as
“Birthplace of Texas.” Sez HOUSTON for park dascription.

FLAGSHIP

GALVESTON Pop. 59,070 Alt. 20 Map M-22

General — When first expored by Europeans,
isand was Karankawa Indian site. Prate Jean
Laffite established earliest settlermert in 1817.
~7\ Early years gave city many firsts in Texas: first
Foman Catholic convent, first electric lights, and
first medical collece Disastrous Galveston storm
of 16C0, whan zniire island was inundazed during & hurricane,
claimed 5,000 tc 7,000 lives. A seawall 2egun sodn afterwards,
presently 10 miles ong, has proved its stayng power several times.
Galvaston Islard offers 32 miles of beach and als> is a treasure
trove of things Fistorically Texan. De:ails from Visitor Information
Centers (see delcw ).
Many city oarks picnic areas and -ecreation cenlers offer play-
ground equipment, athletic fields, terns courts. and colf courses.
Seat of Galvestzn County, major port, tourist, and zonvention
certer, home of . of Texas Medical Brarch, Texas A&M Univ.
at Ga veston, and Galveston College.

THE 1877 BAR

SSA SAILS AGAIN




COLONEL EXCURSION BOAT IN GALVESTON

Center for Transportation and Commerce (Railroad Mu-
seum) — On once-active tracks are over 35 vintage railroad cars
and steam engines; historic Santa Fe depot restored to 1932 art
deco style, HO-gauge working model of Port of Galveston with
tracks, ships, and port activities. A People's Gallery with dozens of
life-sized figures (some of which “speak” to visitors) re-create a
busy depot scene of the 1930s. Six multimedia theaters present
history of Galveston shipping, railroading, and commerce. Open
daily 10 am. - 5 p.m. on Rosenberg St. at foot of the Strand.
Admission. Restaurant service in antique dining cars Mon. - Sat.;
Sun. brunch.

Churches, Historic — First Lutheran Church, constructed by one
of earliest Lutheran groups in Texas, 1868. 2415 G St.

First Presbyterian Church, magnificent Gothic structure, houses
what is believed to be oldest church organization in Galveston,
dating from Jan. 1, 1840. Present church building constructed 1873.
Church St. at 18th.

Grace Episcopal Church, founded as a mission of Trinity Church
in 1874, parishioners moved into present structure in 1895. Gothic-
styled building designed by architect Nicholas Clayton. Many original
furnishings including stained glass, hand-carved reredos and altar. At
36th and Avenue L.

Sacred Heart Catholic Church, founded 1884 was designed by
Jesuit priest in 1904 after original church was destroyed in 1900
storm. Opposite Bishop's Palace at Broadway & 14th St.

St. Mary's Cathedral, first Catholic cathedral in Texas, retaining
original splendid architecture, built in 1848. 2011 F St.

Trinity Episcopal Church, built in 1857 to serve parish that was
organized in 1841. Traditionally repaired and put in use immediately
after any hurricane damage, never missing a service. 2216 H St.
Colonel, Excursion Boat— Modern triple-deck paddle wheeler
recaptures the romance of 19th Century river steamboats on daily
2-hour sightseeing cruises, morning and afternoon, of Galveston
Bay and port; evening dinner/jazz cruises, and moonlight dance
cruises on Sat. nights. Sightseeing trips include interpretive narra-
tion, live Dixieland band, creole buffet on dinner cruises, rooms for
private parties, and charter cruises available. The Colonel departs
from 22nd Street Wharf next to Galveston’s historic Elissa sailing
ship (see below). Cruise fee. Phone 409/763-4900.

David Taylor Classic Car Museum — Antique automobiles
displayed in re-created 1930s showroom. Featured cars include a
'29 Chevrolet convertible, ‘37 Cord convertible, '31 Cadillac, and '55
Thunderbird. All are convertibles or sports cars. Open Tues. - Sun.
noon - 5 p.m. (extended hours in summer). 1918 Mechanic St.
Admission.

Ferry Rides — Diesel ferries operate every 20 minutes between
Galveston and Port Bolivar, Texas 87. Ferries are part of Texas
highway system, operated toll-free by the State Department of
Highways and Public Transportation.

Fishing, Deep-Sea — Exciting varieties of food and game fish
are found in Gulf waters off Galveston Island. Fishermen may join
one of the many party boats for bay or offshore action. Many free
public and commercially operated launching ramps and marinas for
private craft available. Offshore species are sailfish, marlin, ling,
wahoo, king mackerel, bonito, pompano, red snapper, warsaw,
dolphin, and other “big league” species. Reservations at Piers 18,
19 and Galveston Yacht Basin.

Fishing Piers —Surf fishermen try their luck almost anywhere
along beach; free municipal jetties and rock groin piers are along
Seawall Blvd. at 10th, 17th, 30th, 37th, and 61st Sts. Commercial
fishing piers are on Seawall Blvd. at 25th, 61st, and 90th Sts.. and

at Seawolf Park on Pelican Islend. Flanking ship channel between
Galveston and Bolivar Peninsula are South Jetty (extreme east end
of Galveston Island), and North Jetty (from Bolivar Peninsula). Fish-
ermen take flounder, speckled trout, redfish, croaker, tarpon,
sheepshead, catfish, and other species.

Galveston County Historical Museum — Displays from one
of Texas' most historic cities plus variety of changing exhibits.
Housed in former private bank building of W.L. Moody Jr., circa
1919; especially impressive interior. Open Mon, - Sat. 10 am. - 4
p.m., Sun. noon - 5 p.m. (Extended hours Memorial Day - Labor
Day.) 2219 Market St. Donations requested.

Galveston Island Beach — Thirty-two miles of sand beach
washed by Gulf of Mexico. Within city, beach is edged by hotels,
condos, restaurants, and amusement attractions. Camping is
permitted in designated areas and commercial facilities only, and at
Galveston Island State Park. Parking fees are charged at certain
beach recreation areas; free parking available elsewhere along the
32-mile beachfront.

Galveston Island State Park — Spanning Galveston Island
from Gulf to bay, the 1,935-acre park includes much salt marsh, rich
in birdlife. Viewing from elevated boardwalks and observation plat-
forms. Campsites with hookups, dump station, screened shelters,
rest rooms and showers. Picnicking, fishing, swimming, and nature
trail. From early June through late August outdoor musicals are
presented nightly except Sun. (see Mary Moody Northen
Amphitheater below). Six miles south on F.M. 3005 at 13 Mile Rd.
Admission.

Galveston Yacht Basin —With complete marina services, the
yacht harbor provides slips for hundreds of pleasure craft..an ele-
gant sight! Boaters find gas, repair and mechanical services, fishing
tackle and bait shops, radar weather reports, and 24-hour security
guards. Adjacent motel and mall shops along the eastern end of the
Strand (see below) between 2nd & 6th Sts.

Garten Verein — Octagonal structure, circa 1870, still in use as
city recreation building. Victorian accents evident in trim of two
picturesque roof levels. City park at 27th St. & Ave. O.

Historic Homes and Buildings — As Texas' earliest prominent
city, literally scores of fascinating historic structures were built by
sea captains, merchants, businessmen, and prominent officials.
Among most notable are:

Ashton Villa, showplace of Galveston Historical Foundation in
restored 1859 Italianate house-museum reflecting opulence of era in
carved moldings, elaborate mantel-work, and lavish furnishings.
Guided tours plus slide program about 1900 storm and seawall
construction. Open daily 10 a.m. - 4 p.m. (Extended hours Memorial
Day - Labor Day.) 2328 Broadway. Admission.

Bishop's Palace, probably Galveston's most celebrated landmark,
is state’s only structure on list of nation’s 100 outstanding buildings
by American Institute of Architects. “Palace” was built as private
home by Col. Walter Gresham in 1886, purchased 1923 for the
bishop of Galveston-Houston Diocese. Showplace furnishings in-
clude mantel that was first-prize winner at 1876 Philadelphia
World's Fair, Venetian crystal chandelier, damask wall coverings
from London, and grand staircase of rosewood, satinwood, and
mahogany. Open 10 a.m. - 4 p.m. Memorial Day to Labor Day; 1 -
5 p.m. balance of year. Closed Tues. 1402 Broadway. Admission.

TOLL-FREE FERRIES, OPERATED BY THE STATE DEPARTMENT
OF HIGHWAYS AND PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION, OPERATED BETWEEN
GALVESTON AND PORT BOLIVAR




32 MILES OF PUBLIC BEACHES EDGE GALVESTON ISLAND

Fort Crockett was a primary artillery defense installation built
1897. Closec 1947, several buildings remain in use by Galveston
College, Texes A&M Unv. at Galveston, and National Marine Fisa-
eries Service Massive coastal artillery bunkers can still be seen.
Seawall Blvd. between 45th and 53rd Sts.

Grand Orera House, a performing arts hall built in 1894.
Multimillion-dolla- restoration returned the ornate structure to is

ELEGANT STAIRWAY IN BISHOP'S PALACE
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SURF FISHING ON (ETTY IN GALVESTON

original grandeur. Stage productions frequently scheduled; tours
available through Galveston Arts Council. 2020 Post Office St.

Powhatan House, circa 1847, is showplace of Galveston Garden
Clupb. Graceful Grsek Revival struciure fronted by 40-foot Doric
columns, hand-hewn from Maine gine and shipped to Texas by
schooner. Open Fri. - Mon. 1 - 5 p.m. 3427 Ave. O. Admission.

Samuel May Williams Home, built 1839, struck an unusual
compromise with building conditions in frontier seaport. House was
framed of northern white pine and hemlock in Saccarappa, Maine.
With parts carefuly numbered, it was dismantled and shipped to
Galveston by schooner and reassembled. Interpretation by audio-
visual program. Open daily 10 a.m. - 4 p.m. 3601 Ave. P. Admis-
sion.

The Strand, once the “Wall Street of the Southwest,” is one of
the finest concentrations of 19th Century iron-front commercial
buildings in the U.S. Lined with gaslights, now-restored and
readapted, The St-and features art galleries and studios, specialty
shops, restaurants, pubs, delicatessens, histerical exhibits, and even
an old-fashioned candy factory. Often site of annual city festivals,
especially Dickens on The Strand each Dec. and Mardi Gras celebra-
tions in early spring. National Historic Landmark District is on Strand
and Mechanic Sts. between 20th and 25th Sts. Start tour with
information from S:zrand Visitors Centzr (see below).

Lone Star Flight Museum —The golden age of aviation is
recalled by more than two dozen vintage aircraft, from a meticu-
lously restored B-17 Flying Fortress to spindly liaison aircraft.

DINING ROOM IN ASHTON VILLA




There's a "razorback” P-47 Thunderbolt, a P-38 Lightning, a Spitfire,
plus other bombers, trainers, and wartime “executive” aircraft, all in
flying condition. There's also the Conoco Hall of Power, with his-
toric engines, photos, air combat memorabilia, and wartime ve-
hicles. Open daily, 10 a.m. - 5 p.m. except four major holidays.
2002 Terminal Dr. (at Scholes Field Municipal Airport). Admission.
Mary Moody Northen Amphitheater — 1,700-seat outdoor
theater in Galveston Island State Park presents Broadway musicals
on alternate nights except Sun. from early June through late Aug.
Shows 8:00 p.m.; free park admission for theater-goers. Dinner is
available 5:30 - 7:30 p.m. show nights. Six miles south on F.M.
3005 at 13 Mile Rd. Admission.

Moody Gardens — 142-acre eight phase project of Moody Foun-
dation. Existing now are:

Palm Beach, Texas' only white sand beach with freshwater
swimming lagoons, whirlpools, a 400" pier/dock, and paddleboats.
Open weekends in May, daily June - Labor Day. 409/744-PALM.

Seaside Safari, offering guided tours that introduce a variety of
animals and crystal and mineral displays in a lovely garden setting.
Open daily. 409/744-PETT.

Jogging/walking Trail. Overlooking the bayou and landscaped
garden setting of Moody Gardens and “Dancing Waters,” one of
the world's largest displays of synchronized, pulsating water. Free
evening performances. 409/744-4673.

Hope Arena Convention Center, a multipurpose conven-

tion/conference center set in tropical surroundings. At One Hope
Blvd. at municipal airport.
Parks — Largest is Stewart Beach Park on Seawall Blvd. at
Broadway, offering pavilion, beach service, bath houses, restau-
rants, concessions, with attractions such as mini-golf, water slides,
and bumper boats.

R.W. Apffell Park, east of Stewart Beach at Boddecker Dr., is
wide beach with boat launching, jetty and surf fishing, bath house.
concessions, and rest rooms.

Three "pocket” parks are along F.M. 3005 and offer beachfront
picnic areas, rest rooms, and playgrounds. They're at 7 1/2 Mile
Rd., 9 1/2 Mile Rd., and 11 Mile Rd.

Pelican Island — Just across channel from Port of Galveston,
island is site of industrial and recreational development. Todd Ship-
yards Corp. and Texas A&M Univ. at Galveston on south edge. On
northern point is Seawolf Park (see below) where port's federal
quarantine station once stood. Scenic location edged by palms and
banks of oleanders with picnic facilities and excellent fishing.

Port of Galveston — First major port in Texas, was commercial
link of Texas Republic with rest of world; for years was state's
largest city. Modemn port handles ships from throughout world.
Unique in operation, it is nation’s only port where all facilities, from
railroad switching to crating and labeling of individual items, are
coordinated under one management. So successful is operation that
Galveston is only major port facility in United States not supported
by public funds. Visitors will be fascinated by Fisherman's Wharf
area along Ave. A between 17th and 23rd Sts. Fish markets,
seafood restaurants, and charter/group boat docks.

GALVESTON IS KNOW|
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SEAWOLF PARK AT GALVESTON

Rosenberg Library — Texas' first free public library, contains
many original manuscripts and letters of Samuel May Williams, Sam
Houston, Stephen F. Austin, and other prominent figures in Texas
history. Rare books, artifacts, art collection. Open Mon. - Thurs. 9
a.m. -9 p.m.; Fri. - Sat. 9 a.m. - 6 p.m. 2310 Sealy Ave.

Sea Cruise —The Pride of Mississippi departs Galveston for
cruises in the Gulf of Mexico. The ship offers a variety of entertain-
ment, including a casino. For cruise information: 409/763-4411 or
1-800-727-7433.

Seawolf Park — Picturesque location provides close look at
ocean-going vessels entering and departing port and yacht basin.
Excellent fishing from commercially operated pier. Striking three-
level pavilion with snack bar; picnic facilities and children’s play-
ground. Main attraction is naval exhibit featuring tours of WW |I
submarine USS Cavalla, destroyer escort USS Stewart, Navy jet,
and military vehicles. Open daily on Pelican Island. Admission.

PRIDE OF MISSISSIPPI DEPARTS GALVESTON FOR CRUISES
IN GULF OF MEXICO

Texas Heroes Monument —Gift to State of Texas by Gal-
veston philanthropist Henry Rosenberg, commemorates great
achievements of men and women of Texas. It is 74 feet high, 34
feet square, with four monolithic granite columns rising to support
22-foot bronze figure of “Victory.” Erected in 1900, stands at
intersection of Broadway and Rosenberg Ave.

Texas Limited— Relive unhurried luxury rail travel aboard the
Texas Limited as it travels to Houston, America's fourth largest city
from romantic Galveston Island. Restored cars from the '30s, ‘40s
and '60s. Trains run Thurs. - Sun. (expanded hours June - Labor
Day). Departs Houston from Amtrak Station at 902 Washington
Ave; in Galveston, Railroad Museum at 25th and Strand. For res-
ervations call 713/629-3700.

Texas Seaport Museum — Home of the square-rigged, 400-ton
barkentine built in Scotland in 1877. A visitor to Galveston during
her sailing/working days, Elissa has returned as a museum of 19th
Century maritime technology. Opened in 1982 after sight years of
restoration. Open daily 10 a.m. - 5 p.m. (extended hours in sum-
mer). Elissa is sometimes away from Galveston on sailings. Check
locally for dockside schedule.




TEXAS LIMITED EXCURSION TRAIN HOUSTON TO GALVESTON

Museum also includes multiprojector slide presentation giving

visitors a simulated experience of sailing on board Elissa. Pier 21 at
north end of Kempner (22nd) St. Admission.
Tours — Besides tours cited previously under Historical Homes
and Buildings — Ashton Villa, and The Strand —other specialized
tours for individuals and groups are available as follows; details
from Visitor Information Centers (see below).

Galveston Flyer is trolley replica offering one-hour narrated tour
and shuttle transportation. Board at the Galvez or Flagship Hotels,
railroad museum, The Strand, the port, or the old east end. Origi-
nates at 21st and The Strand. Fee.

Carriage and buggy rides are available threugh historic districts
and) The Strand. Departures from Strand Visitors Center (see be-
low).

Treasure Isle Tour Train operates on regular schedule from 2106
Seawall Blvd., touring both old and new sites an Galveston Island in
the little train with the fringe on top. June through Aug. daily at 9
and 11 am., 1:30, 3:30 and 5:30 p.m.; Sept. through Nov. and
Mar. through Apr. daily (except Mon.) at 11 a.m. and 1:30 p.m.;
daily in May at 9 and 11 a.m., 1:30 and 3:30 p.m.

Literature and directions for self-guided historical tours are pro-

vided free at Visitor Information Center and Strand Visitors Center.
Trolley Cars — Nostalgic trclley cars connect the beach at
seawall to the historic Strand/Bay area. Replica 1900 vintage cars
glide for 4 1/2 miles along tracks much like those in city's early
days. Schedule posted along route.
Visitor Information Centers — Details on activities, events,
tours, recreation facilities and historic sites; free maps and litera-
ture. In Moody Civic Center, Seawall Blvd. at 21st St. Also, Strand
Visitor Center: Information, free film on Gelveston Island, self-
guided historical tours, Ticketron outlet. 2016 Strand.

VISITOR INFORMATION CENTER OFFERS INSIGHT INTO
GALVESTON’S HISTORIC STRAND DISTRICT
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HOUSTON Pop. 1,630,553 Alt. 55 Map L-20/21

General — Named after Sam Houston, general
of Texas army that won independence from
Mexico, and president of Republic of Texas. The
city, largest in Texas and fourth largest in nation,
has experienced phenomenal growth since a
small riverboat landing was established on Buffalo
Bayou by Allen brothers in August 1836. Today metropolis is indus-
trial and financial hub for much of the state. It is one of nation’s
ICargest seaports, and headquarters of Lyndon B. Johnson Space
enter.

Houston lies on I-10, a segment of the Ports to Plains Highway
connecting the state’s heartland to coastal ports.

Institutions of higher learning include Baylor College of Medicine,
Houston Baptist Univ., Rice Univ., South Texas College of Law,
South Texas Junior College, Texas Southern Univ., Univ. of Hous-
ton, Univ. of St. Thomas and Univ. of Texas Health Science Center.

Major annual events include the Houston Livestock Show and
Rodeo in late Feb. and early Mar., largest livestock exposition in
state with championship cowboys and popular entertainers.

Houston International Festival each April celebrates the perform-
ing and visual arts with 10-day outdoor festival of multi-cultural
music, dance, arts and crafts, and food.

For full details about Houston's abundant attractions and events,
stop at the city's Visitor Information Center (below).

Alkek Velodrome — Site of 1989 Texas Track Championships.
The 33.334 meter track is banked nine to 33 degrees. Bicyclists
may ride Mar. - Oct. Tues., Thurs. 5- 9 p.m., Sat., Sun. 4 - 8 p.m;
Nov. - Feb. Mon., Wed., Fri. 5 - 9 p.m., Sat., Sun. 2 - 6 p.m. In
Cullen Park at 19008 Saums Rd.

Allen’s Landing; Old Market Square — Park on Buffalo Bay-
ou where Allen brothers arrived in 1836 to promote new real estate
venture: Houston. General area, now Old Market Square, became
center of new city. Several important 19th Century buildings re-
stored; now devoted to dining and entertainment, including quaint
bar in Houston's oldest commercial building. Bounded by Travis,
Milam, Congress, and Preston Sts.

Alley Theater — See Civic Center below.

Armand Bayou Nature Center —A 1,700-acre wildlife refuge
and nature study center. Visitors may hike forest trails. Admission
fee. At Clear Lake Park, north shore of Clear Lake on NASA Road 1
just east of Space Center at 8600 Bay Area Blvd. For information on
other Nature Center activities see PASADENA. 713/474-2551.
Astrodomain — $100 million entertainment complex includes As-
trodome, Astrohall and Astroarena. Superlatives are required to
describe the Astrodome, or Harris County Domed Stadium, its
official name. An 18-story building would fit inside the Astrodome. It
is world's first air-conditioned domed stadium for baseball and

HOUSTON VISITORS ENJOY LIVELY ENTERTAINMENT AT
ASTRO COUNTRY GOLD




football, also accommodates basketbell, ooxing, conventions, ro-
deos, and almost any other entertainment or sorting event. Astro-
dome seats up to 65,000 with adjacent pakng for 30,000 cars.
Home of baseball's Natonal League Hcus:zon Astros, football’s NFL
Houston Oilers, and Univ. of Houstor Zougars. Site of Houston
Stock Shew & Rodeo. Astrodomain’s Aztrcarena contains 6,000
theater-tyre seats. Tours daily at 11 am 1 & 3 p.m. ex pt on
days with afternoon events. Pa‘king anc taur “ess.

Astrohall, one of world's largast exhibiton centers, is on Kirty Dr.
off S. Main, or off Loop 6°0. For tcur nformation teleptone
713/799-9544; or write P.O. Box 1691, Hotston 77251,
Astroworld/Waterworld — Part of Six =lags family and ore of
nation’s g-eat amusemant centers, Astroworld features over 100
shows, rides and attractions for the ertire “zmily. Some rides that
remain favorites: tre Texas Cyclone, rated ore of the best rofler

ASTROWORLD/WATERWORLD IN HOUSTON

R,

WOFLD’S FIRST INDOCR STADIUM, ASTRODOME,
HOME OF MAJOR-LEAGUE SPORTS IN HOUSTOM




coasters in the world; Thunder River's simulated white-water ride;
and on Ultra Twister, visitors dive 92 feet straight down before
making a 360-degree rotating turn forwards, then backwards. Chil-
dren enjoy Bugs Bunny's Enchanted Kingdom.

A popular feature is WaterWorld with a host of water slides,
swings, surfing and children's water play area. The fantasyland is
open on weekends in spring and fall; daily in the summer. Loop
610 at Kirby Dr. Admission.

Battleship Texas — See San Jacinto Battleground State Park.
Bayou Bend Collection — Operated as branch of Houston Mu-
seum of Fine Arts; 28-room Latin Colonial structure was home of
the late Miss Ima Hogg, daughter of James Stephen Hogg, first
native-born governor of Texas. Elegant collection of American deco-
rative arts from 1650 - 1850. Tours by reservation only: Tues. - Fri.
10 a.m. - 2:45 p.m.; Sat. 10 a.m. - 1:45 p.m. Access limited to
persons aged 14 or older. (Call 713/629-8773 or write Box 130157,
Houston 77219; several weeks notice often required.) Free open
house second Sun. afternoon monthly except Mar. and Aug.;
closed Sun. & Mon. and entirely during Aug. No. 1 Westcott St.
Admission.

Burke Baker Planetarium — See Houston Museum of Natural
Science.

Children’s Museum — Variety of hands-on exhibits for children
ages two to 12; computer area, African village, art creation from
recycled materials, changing programs and exhibits. Open Tues.,
Wed., Thurs., Sat. 9 am. - 5 p.m., Fri.,, Sun. 1 -5 p.m. 3201 Allen
Parkway. Admission.

Christ Church Cathedral — Founded 1839, is Houston's oldest
church on original site. Contains handcarved woodwork and fine
stained-glass windows including one designed by Tiffany. Open
daily by request. Noon Eucharist in Golding Chapel. 1117 Texas
Ave.

Civic Center — Centerpiece is Tranquility Park, bounded by
Smith, Rusk, Bagby and Walker Sts. Commemorates Apollo flights
with two-block-long, 32-level fountain and towers resembling rock-
ets. Bronze plaques in 15 languages tell the Apollo story. Restful
oasis; occasional outdoor events.

Albert Thomas Convention & Exhibit Center covers three
blocks and is site of many trade shows and conventions; 612 Smith
St.

Jesse H. Jones Hall for Performing Arts, Louisiana and Capitol
Sts., houses both offices and performances of Houston Symphony
Orchestra. Dramatic grand lobby features Richard Lippold's “Gemini
II" sculpture floating in gleaming curve toward 66-foot ceiling. Open
only during scheduled events.

BAYOU BEND COLLECTION, HOUSTON
0 i

Nina Vance Alley Theater, 615 Texas St., is ultramodern facility
called "one of most striking theaters in the world” by the New York
Times.Tours by appointment (713/228-9341). Fee.

Sam Houston Coliseum and Music Hall host Broadway shows,
concerts, performances and sporting events; 810 Bagby St.

Wortham Center, contains two theaters, home to the Houston
Grand Opera and Houston Ballet, also hosts productions of the
Society for the Performing Arts, the Gilbert & Sullivan Society,
Texas Chamber Society, and others. The Grand Foyer, a
12,000-square-foot public space is actually built over Prairie St. The
3.2-acre site is bounded by Texas, Smith and Preston Sts. and
Buffalo Bayou.

A 2,000-car underground parking garage is welcome feature of
Civic Center.

Sesquicentennial Park, on Buffalo Bayou, is just across from the
Wortham Theater. Three-story pavilion is surrounded by cascading
waterfall to pool at monument's base. Hike and bike trails switch
back from lower bayou waterfront boat landing to street level
promenade. Gardens of azaleas and crepe myrtle trees accent
magnificent view of Houston's striking skyline.

Clear Lake Queen—1 1/2-hour narrated excursion ride on Clear
Lake offered Sat., Sun. and holidays at 3 p.m. No reservation
required. Dinner jazz cruises available Fri., Sat. at 7:30 p.m. (Res-
ervations required by noon day of cruise.) Boarding starts 30 min-
utes prior to cruises. Boat docked at Clear Lake Park, just past
NASA on NASA Rd. 1. For reservations, 713/333-3334.
Contemporary Arts Museum — Paintings, sculpture, construc-
tions by Buffet, Ernst, Calder, Matta, and others. Domestic and
foreign films, lectures, children’s workshops. Open Tues. - Sat. 10
a.m. - 5 p.m.; Sun. noon - 6 p.m. Docent tours Sun. 2 & 4 p.m.
5216 Montrose Blvd.

Cynthia Woods Mitchell Pavilion —A 10,000-seat outdoor
performing arts center surrounded by lush, green forest. Located in
The Woodlands, performances held Apr. - Oct. From Houston, |-45
north, exit either on Woodlands Pkwy. or Lake Woodlands Dr.
Follow signs to pavilion parking. For performance information,
713/363-3300.

Fame City & Fame City Waterworks — Fame City indoor
complex includes a roller rink, bowling, miniature golf, games,
activities, and food in air conditioned comfort. Next door, Fame City
Waterworks is 10 acres of water highlighted by Big Mo, a twisting,
turning rapids that drops six stories. There are also speed slides, a
wave pool, a lazy river for drifting, and children’s area.

Waterworks open weekends in May and daily Jun. - Labor Day.
Fame City open daily Jun. - Labor Day, weekends year round.
13700 Beechnut.

Gallery of Texas History — See Sam Houston Historical Park.
Houston Arboretum and Nature Center — Environmental
education center with classes for children and adults. A preserve for
native Harris County plants and animals. Botanical hall contains
discovery room and gift shop. Over five miles of nature trails wind
through 155 acres of woodlands, ponds, and prairie. Trails open
8:30 a.m. - 6 p.m. Building open Mon. - Sat. 9 a.m. - 5:30 p.m,,
Sun. 1-5:30 p.m.

Houston Garden Center — Garden trails, rose garden and cen-
ter headquarters. Building open Mon. - Fri. 8 am. - 5 p.m.; trails
and gardens open Mon. - Fri. 8 am. - 6 p.m. (8 am. - 8 p.m.
summer) Sat., Sun. and holidays 10 a.m. - 6 p.m. (10 a.m. - 8 p.m.
summer). North edge of Hermann Park, 1500 Herman Dr.
Houston Museum of Natural Science — Exhibits feature
space age science plus geology, archeology, and natural history.
Also Hall of Health Science (see below). In Hermann Park. Open
Mon. - Sat. 9 am. - 6 p.m.; Sun. noon - 6 p.m. 1 Hermann Circle
Dr. Admission. Of special interest are:

Burke Baker Planetarium — Called most sophisticated science-
teaching device in the world, 232-seat planetarium can reproduce
celestial patterns as they would be seen from any point on earth or
in space. Celestial shows (fee) Mon. - Fri. 1, 2, & 3 p.m.; Sat., Sun.
every half-hour 1 - 3:30 p.m. Weekend evenings feature entertain-
ing laser shows. Planetarium also houses an array of scientific
exhibits.

Lillie and Roy Cullen Gallery of Earth Science—Displays the
Sams Collection of more than 600 rare mineral specimens and
hundreds of gemstones which are among the finest specimens in
the world. Also the Cockrell Hall of Minerals with some of the
world’s best examples of gems and minerals from around the
globe. There's a Hall of Fluorescent Minerals, and a Hall of Gems
and Jewelry.
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PALEONTOLOGY SECTION, HOUSTON MUSEUM OF NATURAL SCIENCE

Wortham IMAX® Theatre— =eatures exciting films projected
onto six-story-tall screen. Show are hourly Mon. - Thurs. 10 a.m. - 8
p.m.; Fri. - Sat,, 10 am. - 9 p.m.; Sun., noon - 8 p.m.

Hall of Health — Transparent anatomical manikin displays var-
ious organs: lungs, heart, teeth, etc.; hands-on exhibits, audio
explanations.

STATIC DISPLAYS OF ROCKETS DWARF VISITORS TO LBJ SPACE CENTER MUSEUM IN HOUSTON

Houston Underground — A 4-mile system of undergound pe-
destrian tunnels that includes a variety of shops and restaurants.
Maps available in banks along route and at Visitor Information
Center (see below).

Houston Zoological Gardens — One of most unusual zoos in
U.S., features Tropical Bird House resembling Asian jungle with
more than 200 exotic birds flying freely through aviary rain forest:
hippo-dome; gorilla habitat; large cat facility housing rare white
tigers; small cat facility; large collection of reptiles, and vampire
bats. In Hermann Park, zoo is open Tues. - Sun. 10 a.m. - 6 p.m.
Admission.

Lake — Houston. See LAKES listing.

Lyndon B. Johnson Space Center— Visit headquarters of
America's manned space program, the famous “Mission Control”
that guided pioneering astronauts, and directs the Space Shuttle
project. At Visitor Orientation Center see lunar rocks, photos from
Mars, movies of space flights and orbital rendezvous. Exhibits
include spacecraft that have been to the moon and back, a full-scale
Skylab and examples of space-technology spinoff even beyond the
imagination of Star Trek fans. NASA satellites perform nation-
wide crop surveys, detect plant diseases even before farmers do,
and can spot threats to crops by noxious weeds or insects. Open 9
am. - 4 p.m. (Buildings close promptly at 4:30 p.m.) Briefings in
Mission Control Center daily on first-come basis, except during
missions. Free, self-guided tours originate at Visitor Orientation
Center daily except Christmas day. A limited number of special,
guided tours may be arranged by advance reservations: telephone
713/483-4321 or write the Johnson Space Center, AP-4, Houston,




MUSEUM OF FINE ARTS, HOUSTON

TX 77058. Apbo.t 256 miles southeast of downtown Houston, 3
miles east of I-43 on NASA Road ".

Menil Museum — Collection of John and CcminigLe de Menil
includes contemporary, surrealistic and 20th Ceniiry ar., antiquities,
Byzantine anc medieval art, and tribal art. Housed in architecturally
significant ~00,309-sq.-ft. building designed by rencwred arcritect
Renzo Piano of ftaly. Open Wed. - Sun. 11 am. - 7 p.m. 1515 Sul
Ross.

Miller Outdoor Theatre — Performances faature a variety of
entertainment fm grand opera to jazz, ballet to Shakespeare,
musical comedy to symphonic concerts. Outccer tneatre i Her-
mann Park seats 1,760 under unusual polygor: foof; additional
seating on grass hillside.

Museum of Fine Arts —The city's finest colection of art ob-
jects, oaintings and sculpture, visted by more than a half-million
people each yea-. Accredited by American Association cf Museums.
Among sugerb displays is Finnigan collection of ancient art from
Egypt, Greece ard Rcme. Straus collection feztures Renaissance
paintings ard branzes. Noted Kress collection cisplavs High Renais-
sance art from ltaly and Spain, and the Beck collzction inclides
master paintings from impressicnist, postimp-essionist anc =arly
modemist periocs. Visitors will fnd Indian art of Southwest, plus
Frederic Reming-on's robust masterpieces. Native ats from Africa,
Australia and South Pacific, plus saecial Junior Gellers with changing
exhibits of appeal to youngsters. Open Tues., ‘Ned.. F+i. & Saz. 10
am. -5 pr.; Sur. 12:15 - 6 p.m.; Thurs. 10 a.r. - 9 p.m. €losed

VISITORS MARVE _ AT BIZARRE DISPLAYS AT THE DRANGE SHOW
IN HOUSTON

Mordays. Restaurant open Tues. - Sat. 10 am - 4 pm. 1001
Bissonnzt. Fze.

The Cullen Sculpture Garden, displaving fins sculpture out-
doors, is acrass from the musaum. Cpen "0 a.m. - 10 p.m.
0Oil Ranch — Day ranch activities include pony rides, hayrides,
pattng zoo, pickncking, swinrming, and much mc-e. Just minutes
from Lcop 610. Take U.S. 2€0 30 mriles northwest. Open Mon. -
F<i. 1C am. - 4 g.m., Sat. 10 am. - 6 p.m. Reservations recom-
merded. 713/859-1616.

Orange Show — Virtually irpossib & to dzscribe, ths construction
0° a Heuston ecczntric over 26 years. A abyrinth of outdoor and
irdoor passeges, stairs, and platforms amd astor sking whirligigs,
wrotugnt-ron gewgaws, colored tiles. folk antiques, junk, and naive
art embellished with odc moitoes and pereaples. Colorfully bizarre!
Cpen Mar. - Dec noon - 5 p.m. Sat. & Sun.; Memorial Day to
Laber Day Mon. - =ri. 9am. - 1 p.m. 2402 vunger St Admission.
Port of Houston —Amorg top three szaports in the United
Stetes. sixth largest in the world in towal tonnajge The port is
connectzd to Gulf of Mexico by 50-mile-lcrg ship channel. Nearly
5000 snips and 40,000 bargss transit the channzl yearly. World
T-ade Cante- Building is hub >f Houston's internat cral commerce,
and location of many fo-eign consuls assigned here Visitors may
view famous Houston Turning Basin from ckssrvat on deck reached
through Gate 8 at 7300 Clinton Dr. Cbservation deck open daily 10
a.m.-530 p.m.

Free boat tour of port and ship channel aboard modern sightsee-
i~g vessel, Sam Houston, from its berth at Tumning Besin. Ten tours
a week Advance reservations regured. Phone #12/225-4044, or
write Pcrt of Houston, P.O. Bcx 2562, Houstan, TX 77252.
Railroad T-ain Museum — Antige railroad cars and equipment.
Cpen Mar. - Dec,, 1st & 3rc Sun. 11:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m. 7390
Mesa Rd.

SHIPS FROM AROLND THE WORLD DOCK AT PORT OF HOUSTON,
AMONG TOP THREE SEAPORTS IN THE UNITED STATES




Rothko Chapel — Interfaith chapel houses canvasses of the late
Mark Rothko. Open daily 10:00 a.m. - 6 p.m. 3900 Yupon.

Sam Houston Historical Park — Project of Harris County Heri-
tage Society, a monument to early history of Houston; 19-acre park
features seven restored historic buildings ranging from oilfield pio-
neer Henry T. Staiti's 17-room house built in 1905 to the 1826 Old
Place, depicting early life in Harris County. Open Mon. - Sat. 10
am. -4 p.m. (last tour at 3); Sun. 1 -5 p.m. (last tour at 4).

Museum of Texas History is sampler of Heritage Society's collec-
tion, covering Lone Star history since 1519. Frequently changing
exhibits range from Spanish treasure to space exploration.

Housed in the adjacent building is the Long Row, a reconstruc-

tion of a shopping strip built in 1837 that houses gift shop and
tearoom that's open for lunch Mon. - Fri. Across from Texaco
Heritage Plaza at 1100 Bagby.
San Jacinto Battleground State Historic Park — Site
where Texas won independence from Mexico in 1836. After re-
treats and disasters halfway across Texas, Sam Houston’s small
army turned on Mexican Gen. Santa Anna's superior forces and
routed them. Commemorating the decisive battle, San Jacinto
Monument rises 570 feet above flat coastal plain. Famous monu-
ment is constructed of reinforced concrete faced with Texas fos-
silized buff limestone. At base of shaft is San Jacinto Museum of
Texas History; exhibits trace region’s history from Indian civilization
encountered by Cortez, to Texas as a state. Texas Forever!! The
Battle of San Jacinto is a 35-minute history lesson reliving Texas
history from the days of Spanish rule in Mexico to the expansion of
the American West in 1848. The multi-image presentation utilizes
42 projectors. Show fee. Museum open daily 9 am. - 6 p.m.;
elevator and observation deck open daily 10 a.m. - 5:30 p.m.
Elevator fee. Closed Dec. 24 & 25.

Another landmark of the park is Battleship Texas, moored in
permanent slip at battleground. One of few monuments of its kind
in the world, it is only survivor of the pre-World War | dread-
noughts. Battleship was presented to State of Texas by U.S. Navy.
Commissioned shortly before World War |, the venerable warship
served in that conflict—and in World War |l as flagship in 1944
D-Day invasion commanded by Gen. Dwight D. Eisenhower, a
native of Denison, TX. Open 10 a.m. - 6 p.m. Jun. - Aug.: 10 a.m. -
5 p.m. Sept. - May. East of downtown Houston 22 miles via Texas
225, Texas 134. Admission.

570-FOOT SAN JACINTO MONUMENT MARKS SITE OF
FINAL BATTLE FOR TEXAS INDEPENDENCE
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BATTLESHIP TEXAS AT SAN JACINTO BATTLEGROUND STATE PARK
NEAR HOUSTON

Texas Limited — Relive unhurried luxury rail travel aboard ths
Texas Limitea 33 it travels from Houstor, America’s fourth largas:
city to romantic CGalvestcr Isanc. Rastored cars from the '30s, "20s
and '50s. Trars run Th_-s. - Sun. Departs Houstch from Amt-ak
Station at 902 ‘Mashington Ave; in Galveston, the Reilroad Museurr
at 25th and Strand. For tcket infarmraton call 7°3/623-3700.

Texas Medical Center — Organizez in “945, an mmense co-
plex of hospizals, medical and nursing scools, and research inst tu-
tions whose purpose is total coa'dnzzion of health education
patient care end research Mare than 50 auildings oczupy 600 aces
in southwest Folston near mridtown Major Lnits now operating &
“exas Medical Center incluce Baylo- Zcllage of Medic ne, City ¢
Houston Hezlth and Human Services, Guf Coast 3egional Blcoz
Center, Ben Tauz Genewal Hospital, _yidon 3. Jchnson Genera
Hospital, Herman~ Hospital, Harris Countv Psyctiat-c Center, The
Hospice at Texes Medica Center, Hcusion Acadery of Medicine-
“exas Medica Center Library, Houszon Cammunizy College System
Health Careers Zducatior Division, Hgh School “or Health Profas-
sions, Institute fo- Rehab litation and Raszarct, Irstitute of Religion
Harris Countv Medical Examine<s’ Cffice, Life3ift Crgan Donator
Center, Mettodist Hosp tal, Prairie Vizw A&M College of Nursing,
Ronald McDonald Housz, St Luke's Egisconal Haospital, Shriners
Hospital for Cigpled Cnildran. Taxes A&M Hniv. Iastitute ci

SAN JACINTO BATTLEGRUNJ MUSEUW




Biosciences and Technology, Texas Children’'s Hospital, Texas Heart
Institute, Texas Woman's Univ. Houston Center, Univ. of Houston
College of Pharmacy, Univ. of Texas Health Science Center (which
includes Dental Branch, Division of Continuing Education, Graduate
School of Biomedical Sciences, Medical School, School of Allied
Health Sciences, School of Nursing, School of Public Health, and
Speech and Hearing Institute), Univ. of Texas M.D. Anderson Can-
cer Center, Veterans Affairs Medical Center in Houston, and the
YMCA Child Care Center in the Texas Medical Center.

Free tours; for information and reservations call 713/790-1136.
Assistance Center in Texas Medical Center is at 1155 Holcombe,
just east of Fannin.

Traders Village — Some call it a flea market, others, a bazaar.
By any name it's everyone's favorite marketplace! Whatever, bar-
gain hunters find it a shoppers paradise where hundreds of dealers
in novelties, handmade goods, plants, arts, crafts and antiques of
every description are sold every weekend. Special events held
throughout year. 7979 N. Eldridge. For information, 713/890-6500.
Tranquility Park — See Civic Center above.

Visitor Information Center — Maps, brochures, literature and
schedules of Houston events available at visitor center operated by
the Greater Houston Convention and Visitors Council. Free parking;
also drive-up window service. Open Mon. - Fri. 8:30 am. - 5 p.m.;
Sat. 9 a.m. - 3 p.m. 3300 Main St.

HUMBLE Pop. 12,060 Alt. 96 Map L-21

General —5 miles east of Houston Interconti-

nental Airport, town was named after founder,

postmaster and Justice of the Peace, P.S. Hum-

ble in 1886. In 1904, oil was discovered; by

1905, town was a “"boom town.” In 1909, local

feed store owner Ross Sterling along with a few
others founded Humble Qil & Refining Co. (now Exxon).

Drilling for oil in 1912, artesian water was discovered. The pre-
cious water was used in bathhouses for oil field workers and piped
;[/(\)/ nearby houses. Today site of historic Lambrecht Town & Artesian

ell.

Humble Historical Museum — Features oil field equipment,
farming tools; home furnishings and clothing of early families;
historic photographs. Open Tues., Wed., Fri. 10 am. - 4 p.m,
Thurs. & Sat. 10 a.m. - 2 p.m., at 219 Main St.

Lake — Houston. See LAKES listing.

Mercer Arboretum and Botanic Gardens —214-acre facility
featuring formal gardens, arboretum, picnic area and five miles of
garden and nature trails. Open daily 8 am. - 7 p.m. Closed Christ-
mas. 22306 Aldine Westfield Rd.

SafariLand of Texas, Inc. — 120 wooded acres on fringe of
Big Thicket with six miles of scenic roads with views of palmetto
flats and cypress swamp. Exotic animals include giraffe, zebra,
lions, and other rare species. Narrated tours in special tram. Petting
zoo, wildlife museum, picnic areas. Open daily 9 a.m. - one hour
before dark; closed major holidays. 231 McClellan Rd. in Kingwood.
(3 mi. north on U.S. 59; left on Kingwood Dr.; left on McClellan.)
Admission.

OLD TRACTOR ON THE JIMMY MARTYN FARM, A TYPICAL
TURN-OF-THE-CENTURY WORKING FARM AT
ARMAND BAYOU NATURE CENTER IN PASADENA
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RECREATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES AT ARMAND BAYOU NATURE CENTER
INCLUDE HIKING, CANOEING AND BIRDING IN PASADENA

Pop. 119,363 Alt. 35 Map L-21

PASADENA
General — MName is Spanish for _and of =low-
ers, chosen fzr blooming meadows along Vince's
« ] Bayou. Bayou figured prominently in Battlz cf San
Jacinto. Now & residzsntial community c ose tied
to the petrcehemical anc shippng industries
alcng the Houston Snip Channel. Town kzczme a
-Jral post office in 1900, mushroomed into bustlfing resicental
zuburb and continued to grow with rise of Houston. Homne of San
.acinto Junor Collece and Texas Chiropractic College. Northeast is
zite of capture of Gan. Antonio Lopez de Santa Anna at 3attle of
San Jacinto
Armand Bayou Nature Center— 1,700 acres in sou:neast
Harris Courty with the local glant and animal life in thzi- natural
states in three majo- ecosystems: herdwood forest, tall g-as= prai-
-e and the estuarinz bayou. Includes the Jimmy Martya Farm, a
working farm operated as it was at the turn of the century.
Iecreationa opportunities include hiking, canoeing (rertals aveil-
zble), birding. Self-glided tours or guided tours through thz pre-
zerved wildamess Sat. at 11 a.m. and 2 p.m., Sun. at 2 p.m. Tours
=f the Martyn Farm: Sat. 10 exm. and 1 p.m., Sun. 1 g.m. Open
zaily 9 a.m. - 5 p.m. except mejor nolidays. 8600 Bav Area B vd. (7
~i. east of £5.) Call 713/474-2551.
Historical Museum & Strawberry House —Mussur fea-
zdres local history from pioneer times to present; displays of ‘ndus-
~ial development, changing exhitits. Open Wed. - Fri. 9:50 am -
z:30 p.m.; Sat. 9:30 am. -6 pm.; Sun.l - 5 p.m. Stawbeny
-ouse: Historic 8-rcom house ‘eatures furnishings “rom “8S0s tc
~id-1940s. Open Sat., Sun. 1 - 5 p.m. In Pasadena Memrc-ia Parx,
z01 Vince St. (Texas 225 at Ricey St. exit.) Phone 77 3/4%7-7237.

RICHMOND-ROSENBERG
Map M-20

Pop. 29,964 All. 104

General — Although separate mun c palities,

: twin towns zhare heritage, businzss axd living

. ) areas. Earliest settiement 1822 by membzrs of

Old Three Hundred (Stephen F. Austin’s clony),

| later supplemzanted by unusual variety of athnic

and cultural groups— Southern plantation own-

ers, Confederate veterans, za-pettaggers, Czech immigrants

blacks, rairoad and oilmen. Post-Reconstructior: era b-augh:

" Jaybird-Wocdpecker War” with heavy casualties betwee- rival

political facticns 1883-90; a city-hall obelisk is toppec with a jaybi-d.

Carrie Nation s crusade against “demon rum” began in R ckmond.

Silver-domed Fort Band County Courthouse dates from 1303; his-
torical markers on grounds, 50C Jackson St., Richmond.

Fertile coestal plains devotsd to farming, rancking. Indistries
include oil, salt, sulghur production, steel fabrication and diversifiad
manufacturng. Richmond-Rosenoerc Chamber of Comme=e a:
4120 Ave. 4 (U.S. 90A/59) offzrs infcrmation on historic sites and
recreation taroughout area.



FORT BEND COUNTY MUSEUM IN RICHMOND

Ft. Band Orry “eatures country and Western musc everv Fri.

night at Cole Theater in 30senkerg.
Brazos Bend State Park —4,897 acres of Gulf Coastal Plain
incudes Brzzos River oottomlands, beautiful live-oak wcodlands
drapsd cy wild grape vires and Spanish moass, oxbow lakas and
mars). Aburdant wildife includes white-tailed deer, coyotes, Rus-
sia1 Jo0ar, mgrazory wazerfowl, shore- and wading bircs, and large
oopuation of Amercen alligators. Ten: and R\" camping. picnic
sites, screenad shelters rest rooms, showers, dump staticn. Fish-
ng per, 1ke and ktike wrai s, wildlife observatisn p atforms.

George Chbsenvatory within park features 33-inch te ascoze. Sat.
nighzs open -o futlic fo- star-gazing. Okservaory is jont project of
Texes Per<s and Wildlife Dept., the Gecrge ~ourdation, and Hous-
tor Mussur- cf Natural Scienze. Access via F.M. 7€2, 22 miles
sout”. Admission
Confederate Museum — Displays inc ude weadons and swords,
dicures of batlles, artfacts; tape-recorded Fistories of antsbellum
sra. Open Tues. anc Thuss. 10:30 am. - 3 o.m.; Sur. 2 - 4 p.m.
274C F.\. 329 1zrth of Richmond.

Decker Park — H-istoric bu ldings include 1501 railroad depot log-
catin reslica of original Fort Bend, McNabb Housz, c. 1850, (Carrie
\atio1's daLghter's tome) end 1896 ccunty jail. Also mocern ga-
zeko. 5CO blzck of Preston, Richmond.

Forl Bend County Historical Museum —Cited as cnz of
staze’s best sma | museums; features developmental eras from first
colon sts of 1822 soecial exhibit on local resident Jana Long, “the
mothar cf Texas’; the Texas Revoluticn; thz plantation era the
Civl ‘Nar; ths -anct ng era, erd the sujar industry. Cpen Tues. -
Fri. 10 am. - £ pm.; Sat, Sun. 1 -5 p.m. 500 Houston St.,
Aicamord. Cn museum grounds is the Moore Home (see below).
George Ranch Historical Park — 470-zcre “wor<ing raich”
par< wrere visiors can have Victorian tez on porcn of 1890s
mansion, sit around campfre with cowkoys Jurirg a rounddp, and
see Iong-forgotten crafts suzh as making o° lye soap or ~ow to
twist rop2 ths od-"zshicnad way. Open Sat. 9 a.m. - 5 p.m., Sun.
nocn - 5 p.m. en F.M. 762 eight miles south of Richmoad For
adcitional ‘nformatior, 713/645-9212. Bult in 1882-83 2y merchant
Isaac Mc=arlzne, the reszcrad house is 02en as a visito- cen-er The
histcric buildirg playsd a significant pat in the 1889
Jayb rd\Woodpecker clash. Qpen Fri. 1 - 4 pm., Sat. Sun. ~ - &
p.m. 410 cackson St
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Moore Home — Graceful, white-columned Victorian mansion, c.
1883, home of Texas Congressman John N. Moore of early 1900s.
Restored and furnished with period antiques. Open Sun. 1 -5 p.m.
on grounds of Fort Bend County Historical Museum, 500 Houston
St., Richmond.

SPRING  Pop. 15000  Alt. 101  Map K-21

General — Settled by German immigrants in

1840. Served as a railroad center in early 1900s,

but population thereafter declined until caught in

the surging growth of Houston in the present

day.

Goodyear Blimp Base —Home of the blimp
“America.” No public rides; observation deck at 1-45, exit 70A.
Jesse H. Jones Park & Nature Center — Nestled in heavily
wooded area; 5-mile hiking trail meanders through woods across
boardwalks over pond, ending at sandy shores of Spring Creek.
Programs and exhibits on plant and animal life and special children's
program in Nature Center building. Open daily, except Christmas, 8
a.m.-5p.m. (8 am.-7 p.m. daylight saving time).

Pioneer Homestead Museum developed to accurately represent
1830s pioneer homestead and Indian homestead. Buildings include
log cabin, smoke house, root cellar, corn crib and shed, log barn,
and other facilities one would find on typical homestead. Two
dwellings represent Akokisa Indian homestead. Dwellings open
Wed., Sat. 1 - 4 p.m. At 20634 Kenswick Dr. off F.M. 1960 east.
713/446-8588.

Mercer Arboretum and Botanic Gardens —A 214-acre fa-
cility with formal gardens; arborstum with picnic area, garden and
nature trails. Open daily except Christmas, 8 a.m. - 7 p.m. At 22306
Aldine Westfield.

Old Town Spring — Restored railroad village of early 1900s with
some 75 shops featuring antiques, art, crafts, collectibles and res-
taurants. Open Tues. - Sat. 10 am. - 5 p.m. |45 at Spring Cypress
Road, Exit 70A, one mile east.

Splashtown USA — Catch a wave in enormous wave
pool...experience a waterfall on Shot Gun Falls...or splash into the
Blue Lagoon, a two-level activity pool. There's something for every-
one at the 46-acre park. Open daily June - Aug.; weekends in May
and Sept. On northbound 1-45 at Holzwarth Rd., exit 68. Admission.

SUGAR LAND Pop. 24,529 Alt. 82 Map L-20

General — Town built around sugar industry on
land granted tc Elijah Allcorn and William Stafford
in 1824. In early days, area known as “the sugar
bowl” for sugar cane crops. Col. E.H. Cunning-
ham bought 12,500-acre plantation soon after the
Civil War and developed town around sugar refin-
ing plant. In early 1900s, refinery was sold and named Imperial
Sugar. Later most sugar cane crops destroyed by harsh winter;
plant now imports cane for refinery through Port of Houston. Pri-
marily a company town until incorporated in 1959 today has diver-
sified economy base.
Imperial Holly Sugar Co.— Visitors observe complete sugar
manufacturing process in one of few cane sugar refineries in the
U.S. Tours, weekdays 10 am. and 2 p.m. (Group reservations
advisable.) 198 Kempner, adjacent to U.S. 59/90A. 713/491-9181.

TEXAS CITY  Pop. 40,822 Alt. 12 Map M-22

General — Original bayfront community called

Shoal Point, real growth began in 1891 when

financiers from Minnesota purchased site for real

estate, rail, and port development. Today city be-

tween Houston and Galveston is both a pleasant

residential area and site of major industrial and
port facilities. Industries include tin smelter, oil refineries, metal
fabrication and chemical plants. Port ships grain, cotton, sulfur,
petroleum and chemical products. Location of College of the Main-
land.



Recreational opportunities include boating, fishing, swimming,
sailing and picnicking; municipal golf course and all-weather munici-
pal shooting range
College of the Mainland Art Gallery — Exhibits of art by
regional and national artists. Open Mon. - Fri. 10 am. - 4 p.m
during exhibitions. 8001 Palmer Highway. For information, 409/-
938-1211, ext. 348.

Frank B. Davison Home — 1897 Victorian structure with period
furnishings and archives dating back to Karankawa Indians and Jean
Laffite’s pirates. Tours 1st Sun. each month, 2 - 5 p.m. 109 Third
Ave. N. Admission.

Dike and Marina—Texas City Dike extends five miles into
Galveston Bay with 600-foot fishing pier beyond tip of dike. Pier
offers the deepest water for pier fishing in state where anglers
often take speckeled trout, redfish, flounder, and tarpon. Visitors
also find beach, boat launching and service facilities, bait, camping,
and motel accommodations.

Parks — Twelve municipal parks offer playgrounds, 2 swimming
pools, baseball diamonds, tennis courts and picnic grounds.
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HOWDYeBIENVENUES
WILLKOMMENs
BIENVENIDO TO

AEAMO

COUNTERY

WheniSpain established a mission

near spring-fed streams at the south-

ern edge of the Hill Country in 1718,

‘mission priests had no idea of what
‘was to come in this new world. Other
missions were built and growth fol-
lowed, but not without a fight. Striv-
ing to free themselves from Mexican

rule, a vastly outhumbered band of

determined Texans took their stand
for freedom within the Alamo mission

compound in 1836. To this day, the
Alamo is known arcund the world as

a symbol of Texas’ indomitable spirit. -

Today, those early mission settle-
ments have grown into a city with

almost a million people with unique

attractions and amenities.

San Antonio and her nearby neigh-

bors share rich history and warm life-
styles, along with touches of the

German, Hispanic, Alsatian, and otheff -
cultures that serve to enrich the area

and its people. Relax and enjoy the

warm greetings of this region’s cities,

grouped in this special section and
listed below. Just about anytime, _
anywhere, there’s a fiesta under way.
iOle! . :
‘Bandera
~ Boerne
Castroville
New Braunfels
After several special sections like
this at the front of this book, see

~San Antonio
Sattler
Selma

page 76 where alphabetical listings uf

other Texas cities and towns begin,

each with fascinating attractions to
enrich your travels anywhere in the
Lone Star State.

Castroville
o

BANDERA Pop. 877 Alt. 1,258 Map L-14

General — Founded 1852 as a cypress shingle
camp, and site of a Mormon colony established
1854. One of the oldest Polish communities in
the U.S. An authentic Western town surrounded
both by working and guest ranches. Horseback
riding available, plus swimming in resort poois or
clear Hill Country lakes and rivers. Fine year-round fishing; hunting
in seasons for wild turkey and white-tailed deer: camping, hiking,
rodeos, horse races, two 18-hole golf courses, and country/Western
dances. Contact Bandera Convention & Visitors Bureau for details
on historic sites, area attractions and special events.
Bandera Downs — Just 30 minutes north of San Antonio, race
track offers pari-mutuel wagering on Thoroughbred and Quarter
Horse racing. Weekend races spring through fall. Call for specific
dates and times; 512/796-7781. On Texas 16, two miles south of
town.
Dude Ranches — Whether you call them guest ranches or dude
ranches, Bandera has plenty. Some are rustic; others are equipped
with all modern conveniences. Check with Convention & Visitors
Bureau, 1206 Cypress; phone 512/796-3045 or, in Texas and U.S.,
1-800-364-3833.
Frontier Times Museum — Old West relics, Western art and
antiques, plus Indian artifacts, Variety of items ranges from cen-
turies-old Chinese temple bells to Buffalo Bill Wild West Show
posters. Open daily 10 am. - noon, 1 - 4:30 p.m. and Sun,
afternoon. Admission.
Hill Country State Natural Area —Minimum development
characterizes this 5,369-acre park in the heart of the Texas Hill
Country. Primitive camping is permitted in a 20-acre designated
site. Horseback riding, backpacking, and hiking are popular activities.
On F.M. 1077, 10 miles west.
Lake — Medina. See LAKES listing.
St. Stanislaus Catholic Church — Built 1876, serves Polish
settlement dating from 1855, one of oldest Polish parishes in U.S.
Scenic Drives — Beautiful Hill Country landscapes in almost any -
direction: Texas 173 north winds through scenic vistas to Camp
Verde and Kerrville. Texas 173 south rolls to southern edge of hills



THE ALAMO, TEXAS’ MOST FAMOUS SHRINE, IN SAN ANTONIO

and ente-s lowe- South Texes Plains. Taxas 48 east 2xplores steep-
shouldered scerery through ccmmunity of Ppe C-eek to German-
sczented town of Boerne. Texas 16 and F.M. 470 west is one of
the best—drarratic blue hills enfold small crzen valleys threaded
3y sparkl ng creeks.

BOERNE Pop. 4,274 Alt. 1,405 Map L-15

General — Boerne (BUR-nee) gew from village
called “usculom laid out in “349; formally estab-
& lished 2y German pionzer settlers in 1851, and
named fc- German political writer. Fishermen find
ortune in —il Count~v lzkes and st-eams; hunters
seek white-teiled and axis ceer, wild boar, turkey,
native and migratory game b rds.
Agricullural Heritage Canter — Irdoor and outdoor exhibits of

TRAIL RIDERS IN THE HILL COUNTRY NEAR BANDERA

TRICK ROPER LASSCES A “DJDE” AT
A BANDERA DUDE RANCH

aatique farm machinery, implements ard equiprmen:, ircluding an
1896 threshing machire; operating blacksmith shop. Open Wed.
and Sun. 1:30 - 4:30 p.v., and upcn reques: fer tour groups
'512/249-8000). Closed last 16 days of Dec. and first 156 days cf
Jan.; adjacen: tc city park on Texas £6 east

Cascade Caverns — Popular visitor ettraction since “©32. Skilled
Juides provice one-nour interpretive tours avery 30 mnutes well-
ighted, comfortable walking trails. A wet, active cave with hugs
-ooms and crystal pools zced by prcfuse cave grow:h; 90-foct
Jnderground waterfall. Swirming poal, zance pavilior, meetirg hall,
a1d campiny facilities for RVs, trailers, and tents. Jpen daily Memo-
-ial Day - Labor Day 9 am - 6 p.m.; in winter 10 am. - £ p.r.
Non: - Fi=9 am - b pan. Sat. end: Suh; 4 me NV of San
Antonio. Exit 543 on I-10. Acmission.

Cave Withcut a Name — \When the cave was openec in 1939 a
contest to name it was wor by a little coy whe said “This cave is
200 pretty to name.' Stalagmites and ctalactites, soda straws, and
dozens of iraginative “ormations grow from the wells anz dangls
“rom the roofs of the several rooms in t-is 98% activa ceve Closed



CAECADE CAVERNS NEAR BOERNE

Tues. Northeast 6 mi. on F.M. 474; right o Kreutzberg Rd. 4.2 mi.
Adrnission.

Cibolo Wilderness Trail —65-acre invarcity graenbelt witr
thres separate end cistinct scosysems. zludes walking --ails,
estLary, anc yza-rourd offering of anviranmrentzl zvareness pro-
grams.

Guadalupe River State Park — 1,900 acres o° scedic il
Country landscapes bisected by the beaut?ul, cvpress-edgad river
that flows cve- natu-el rapids in the park Wildli‘e nzludes white-
taied deer, coyotes, foxes, end armadillos; juniper :hckets ofer
nesting habitat for rare golden-cheeked waroler. Tent ard RY camp-
inc, rest rooms, shcwers, picn ¢ sites. Fish ng, canoe 1g. sw mming,
and hiking. Access via Texas 46, 13 miles ezs:; admizsion.
Krankosky Hill—Commanding the hignast Filltap in Boerne.
oric nal Fomestead of Albert Krorkoskv family, 2Jlt between
1911-17. Currenty St. Albert's Early Learn g Cente- iinfant - 13
yzars, inc uding <indergarten and pre-first) erc conven: for Beredic-
tins Sisters. Most arcminent structure is stcne Kren<osky Tower,
nov. the schoai library supert lookout site zver sceriz Hill Countrv
e~dscapes of the 3oerne area. Visiors welcomz ¢ the greunds
du-ng davlight hzurs.

Kuhlmann-King Historical House — General F ctary sxhibite
in Fistoric buildi-g. Open Sun. 1 - 4 p.m. and upan request fo-
gro.ps; 512/243-2030. 402 E. Blanco St

Ye Kendall Inn— Stagecozch inn built in 1859; Texas hisoric
e~dmark listed zn National Register of Hisloric Places. Served as
gatrering place ‘or lawmen, a‘my officers, cattle drcvars, and “ron-
tier celebrities. Today offers elegant bed and brea<fast accommcda-
tiors, anc irclides d-ess shop, boutique, rastaurant, ourtyard and
mezting Fall Down-own plaza.
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LANDMASK INN DATES FROM STAGEZDACH DAYS IN CASTROVILLE

CASTROVILLE Pop. 2,159 Alt. 760 Map M-14

General — “The Little Alsac2 of Texas’ rict ir
Eurcpear apgeararce and tradtiors fcundec in
1824 by Henri Castro, an empresariz of -hs Texas
» Republic whc brought a group of Alsatan sat-
tlers. Today in -his quaint Texas vilage, past anc
present interming € within a cu-ve o tha Mecina
Fiver. Watch especially “or examples of Ge-mar=tyle countrv
cottages, whose roo’s are unequaly pitched (usually on te back
side! in 3 manner similar to lsan-tc desigr. Scme buildings 2nd
houses zre regstered as historic. Center “or agribLsiness widalv
known far genetic researct and artificial breeding of livestacx.
Castroville Fegionel Park on Medina River has picricking, swim-
ming pozl, fisking, athletic courts end camping with haokups fze)
South off U.S 90 at west edge of city. 512/538-2224.
Lake — Vedina. See LAKES listing
Landmark Inn State Historic Structure — Trancuilizy of ne
past praserved at nn that first served stagacoach travele-s
restored to 1940s era with ceilng “ans, rocking chai-s on gallerizs,
no radioc or TV intrusion. Interpretve cenzer, artifects fourd in
restoration, olc wate~-powsred g-ist mill, other struc-ures. Lim ted
roors for rent; advense reservatiors advisakle. £12/538-2133. Flor-
ence and Flcrella Sts. ust off US €0.
Mt. Gentilz/Cemelery — Known 3s Cross Hill, <h= hil ajove
cemetery of‘ers a pznoramic view of the Medina Valay. Buriad in
cemretery is Amelia Castro wife of the founder =f the citv. U.5. 90
and Alsacs St
St. Lou's Catholic Church— Tre “new” cturcy was built ir
1868-70 Neardy stil stands a tiny chapel buit by -he colcnists
therselvzs as the first community project of the Alsetian pionezrs.
“he chazel is on grounds of adjacen: Moye Ret-eat Zenter fermer
convent znd boys' military school. St. Louis Day church festivel is
celebrated yeerly, uzually on clesest Sundey tz Aug. 25. Visiwors
vselcomed. U.S. 90 and Angelo St.

NEW BRAUNFELS Pop. 27,334 Alt. 720 Map L-16

General — Sea: of Comal Counzv establishac
185 on Corral River by German settlers led by
Prince Carl o° Sclms-Braunfels. Successfdl “amm-
ing ranching, aburdant water “rom large spri~gs
cortributad tc early prospe-ity of se—lement. Ger-
man influence in tradition, culture and languzge




still prominent; famous for sausages, breads, and popular river
resorts.

Mill Store Plaza is one of state's largest factory-direct stores with
some 50 manufacturers selling direct. Plaza is open at 9 am. - 9
p.m. daily except 6 p.m. Sun. Exit 187 or 189 on [-35.

Wurstfest (Sausage Festival), 10 days early Nov., salutes the best
of the wurst. Features singing societies, traditional German bands,
dancing groups and sausages of every description. Historical exhib-
its, art shows and special events.

Alamo Classic Car Museum — Take a trip down memory lane
among dozens of classic and vintage cars. Open daily 10 a.m. -
6:30 p.m. On I-35 south near city limits, exits 180 or 182.
Admission.

Baetge House — Good example of fachwerk construction,
two-story house was built in 1852. Furnishings on first floor predate
1860; second floor allows inspection of construction technique.
Open Sat., Sun. 2 -5 p.m. 1370 Church Hill Dr. Admission.
Dinosaur Flats — See SATTLER (this section).

Gruene — German immigrants established village before 1850;
now part of New Braunfels. Historic structures, both ruins and
restored, include old homes, stores, art gallery, winery, ice cream
parlor, and rustic beer hall, circa 1880, still popular for weekend
dances. On Guadalupe River, Gruene Rd. off N. Loop 337.
Guadalupe Valley Winery —No vineyard; grapes purchased
from Texas vineyards and brought to winery in restored cotton gin,
listed on National Register of Historic Places. Tasting room and gift
shop open Mon. - Fri. 10 am. - 5 p.m.; Sat. 10 am. - 5 p.m.; Sun.
noon - 5 p.m. Tours of winery offered during summer months Sat.,
Sun. noon - 4 p.m.; Sept. - May, third Sat. of month. Group tours of
10 or more year round by appointment. Tour fee. 1720 Hunter Road
in Gruene. 512/629-2351.

Historic Inns: Faust Hotel — Restored 1920s hotel with ornate,
decorative tile, ceiling fans, and candlestick telephones in each
room. Veranda Restaurant features Texas and German-style fare; 62
rooms with baths. 240 S. Seguin St.

Prince Solms Inn— Small, plain-Texan exterior; exquisite antique
furnishings, 14-foot ceilings, orange bronze hardware, garden, and
patio flagged with huge stones from a 19th-Century prison.
Wolfgang's Keller restaurant in basement. Eight rooms with baths
and two suites, 295 E. San Antonio St.

Lake — Canyon. See LAKES listing.

LANDA PARK IN NEW BRAUNFELS

Landa Park — Exceptionally scenic city park around crystal
springs heading the Comal River. Towering trees, spring-fed
swimming pools, tubing, picnicking, boating, bicycling, hiking and
golf. Largest springs in state (more than 8 million gallons an hour)
form state's shortest river—2.5 miles. Miniature train ride winds
through park.

Lindheimer Home — Ferdinand Jakob Lindheimer (1801-1879)
was first to classify much of native Texas flora; more than 30
varieties bear his name. The house, circa 1852, displays the
fachwerk construction German settlers adapted to Texas cedar and
limestone. Many original furnishings. Open May - Aug., daily except
Wed. 2 - 5 p.m.; Sept. - Apr., Sat., Sun. 2 - 5 p.m. 491 Comal St.
Admission.

i

MUSEUM OF TEXAS HANDMADE FURNITURE

Museum of Texas Handmade Furniture — Foused in
histaric (1368) Ancreas Breustedt home; displays include dozens ol
furn ture pieces handc-afted in Texas zuring 1800s. Englisk
ironstone, pewter, and other artifacts frcm 1700s. Ore-room log
cabin features fur-ishings and tools. Open Memorial Day - Labor
Day, Tues. - Sat. “0 am. -4 pm. Sun. 1 - £ p.r.; Labor Day -
Memorial Day, Saz Sun. 1 -4 p.m. 1370 Cturch Hill Cr. Admission.
Natural Bridge Caverns —\Vast stbterraneen maze on ranch
land some 17 mias west, designatec a J.S. Natural Lendmark.
Gigantic rooms and corridors stretch morz than a mile, leading tc
underground Purcatory Creek and awescme cave formatiors. 12
mi. west via Texas 46 & F.M. 18€3. Cpen daily except
Tharksgivng, Christmas and New Yeszr's; touss every Falf-hour.
Admrissior.

Natural Bridge Wildlife Ranch —Z00-acre drive-through
presarve spreading ove- picturesque Texas —ill Courtry where
exot ¢ animals, birds, and Texas w Idlife roam frzely. Be sure o get
container of complimentary food; some animals (African ostrich,
Sablz antelope, ye< and others) will actually put their heads into car
wincow for their treat. Extra feed soid in visilor center for two
petting zcos. Snac< bar, picnic area. Oper daily 9 am. - 5 p.m.
(Jun -Acg. 9 am. -6:30 p.m.); closed Tharksgving, Christmes and
New Years. Near Matural Bridge Caverns on F.M. 3029, Admission.
River Camps — River camps/resor=s have been populer for
deczdes. Clear, ccol spring-fed pools, tubng chutes, rapids, anc
exceptionally sceniz settings for family rezreation. Family croups
aburidant during summer; visitors from nortrern states during
wintzr. See Visitor nformation (below) for details

SUBTERRANEAN
GRANDEUR AT B
NATURAL BRIDGE |
CAVERNS MEAR | |
NEW ERAUNFELS




OLD-WORLD FLAVORS ARE FOUND IN NEW
BRAUNFELS SAUSAGE

THE GERMAN HERITAGE OF
NEW BRAUNFELS
IS PREVALENT EVERYWHERE

that predite founding ¢f tte United States by more than half a
century.

Several other Spansh missions szon followed, but the city's real

THE SCHLITTERBAHN growth Zates from establishment of a villa «civil set ement) in 1731,
{SLIPPERY ROAD) Spain's fitst step to colonize Texas. Orginz| colaniszs were Spanish
WATER PARK Canary sanders, to whom many Texas femilies proudly trace their
'WITH GERMAN-STYLE roots. San Artonio remained the chef Spanish, then Mexican
CASTLE TOWER IN stronghold in Texas unt| the Texas Revolution. »

NEW BRAUNFELS Among mary natioralities, Gerr-an builders &rd bisinessmen

THE GUADALUPE RIVER BELOW CANYON DAM NEAR NEW BRAUNFELS

: : : . IS POPLLAR WITH TUBERS
River Guides, Outfitters — Several New Brauniels outfitters ;

provide raft anc canoe renta's, plus guided float trips here and in
Big Bend region of far West Texas. See Visitor Information (below).
Scenic Drives — Any of saveral highwavs into the Hill Country
are scenic. R.M. 32, the “Devil's Backbone,” northwest of Canyon
Reservoir is exceptionally beautiful, as is county road from New
Braunfels tc Sz:tler along Guedalupe River.
Schlitterbahn — (S ippery Road) Weter amusement park
highlighted by water sides “rom German-style castle tower: also
tube chutes, swimming lagoon, sand beach. bumper boats, giant
hot tub, and cildren's wate- play areas. Open wee<ends in May
and Sept., dailv Memorial Day - Labor [av; 400 N. Liberty St.
Admission.

Sophienburg Museum — On hilltop sits where Prince Carl of
Solms-Braunfels built a log “ortress. Displays many of the noble-
man's personal effects, Indan artifacts and household items of
pioneer era. Op2n Mcn. - Sat. 10 a.m. - 5 p.m.; Sun. 1 -5 p.m. 401
W. Coll St. st Azadeny Ave. Admission.

Visitor Information — Details and free literature about New
Braunfels hiszoric sites, river camps and river outfitters,
accommodetior:s, anc current local events available at chamber of
commerce, 39C S. Seguin St. Open Mcn. - Fri. 8 am. - 5 p.m.; Sat.
9am.-5pm. Sun. 10 em. -2 p.m.

SAN ANTONIO Fop. 935,933 Alt. 701 Map M-15

General —In 1718, at an Indian village in a

pleesant wooded area of spring-fed streams at

the southern edge of the Texas Hill Country,

* ~ Span estatlished Mission San Antcnio de Valero

(later called the Alamo). A customary

accompanying presidio (fort), San Antonio de

Bexar (Bay-er). protecied mission endeavcrs. Today's city and
county namres derive from those 18th-Century Spanish beginnings
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were prominent settlers in the 19th Century. Today, San Antonio is
colorfully accented by its multicultural heritage.

Institutions of higher learning include Incamate Word College,
Our Lady of the Lake Univ.,, St. Mary’s Univ., National Univ. of
Mexico, Trinity Univ., San Antonio College, Palo Alto College, St.
Philips College, Univ. of Texas Health Science Center at San
Antonio, and the Univ. of Texas at San Antonio. Art museums and
theaters are among the state’s finest; its symphony orchestra rates
with the nation's best, and San Antonians’ love for fiestas is
unsurpassed!

Some of those popular events include the Great Country River
Festival in Sept., the San Antonio Festival in June, the Holiday River
Festival in Dec., the Texas Folklife Festival in Aug., the San Antonio
Livestock Show and Rodeo in mid-Feb., and at Easter the Starving
Artists Show is held at La Villita and along the River Walk.

Fiesta San Antonio spans 10 days the third and fourth weeks of
Apr. This major event includes art exhibitions, coronation of King
Antonio, Pilgrimage to the Alamo, concerts, band festivals, Battle of
Flowers Parade, King's River Parade, Fiesta Night Parade, flower
and fashion shows, musical productions, balls and street dancing,
fireworks — and the fabulous series of “Nights in Old San Antonio.”

For literature and details about city attractions and events, and for

a schedule of the San Antonio Streetcars —an inexpensive, fun way
to get to many of the city’s downtown attractions—see Visitor
Information (below).
The Alamo — Mission San Antonio de Valero, later to become
famous as the Alamo, was established in 1718, the first of five
Spanish missions founded in San Antonio to Christianize and
educate resident Indians. As the mission grew, the church structure
that stands today in midtown was begun about 1755. Its mission
role completed, the old buildings were abandoned by 1836 when
the site, by then known as the Alamo, became the "Cradle of
Texas Liberty.” Rebelling against repressions of Mexico's
self-proclaimed dictator, Santa Anna, a band of 189 Texas
volunteers defied a Mexican army of thousands for 13 days of
siege (Feb. 23 to Mar. 6). The Alamo defenders died to the last
man, among them such storied names as William Travis, Davy
Crockett, and Jim Bowie. Cost to the Mexican forces was dreadful.
While Santa Anna dictated an announcement of glorious victory, his
aide, Col. Juan Almonte, privately noted: “One more such ‘glorious
victory,” and we are finished.” (The finish came Apr. 21 when Sam
Houston's Texans routed the Mexican army at the Battle of San
Jacinto near Houston, and captured “the Napoleon of the West," as
Santa Anna billed himself.)

The Alamo is open Mon. - Sat. 9 a.m. - 5:30 p.m.; Sun. 10 a.m. -

5:30 p.m. Alamo Plaza.
Alamo Cenotaph — Dominating the plaza in front of the Alamo,
the monument was designed by Pompeo Coppini, eminent
[talian-born sculptor who adopted Texas as his home. Names of
those who died at the Alamo are inscribed in marble.

Alamo Farms Winery and Vineyard — Small, boutique-style
winery with grape varieties selected following extensive research.
Tours visit all aspects of wine production, including unusual
underground wine cellar. Open Sat., Sun. from first Mar. weekend
through third weekend in Dec., 1 - 4 p.m. with tours at 2 and 3
p.m. Tour fee. About 25 miles southeast of the Alamo; From Loop
1604, take F.M. 3432 east 3.3 mi.; south 1.3 mi. on Wood Valley
and Live Oak to Shady Grove, then east to winery.

Alamo Museum - D.R.T. Library — Located on grounds of the
state park that surrounds the Alamo. On view are relics of famous
Battle of the Alamo, and other artifacts associated with days of
early colonization and Republic of Texas period. Open Mon. - Sat. 9
am. -5pm.

Botanical Gardens — 33 acres of formal gardens, pools,
fountains, and natural areas; Native Texas Area, South Central
Xeriscape, Endangered Species Project, Formal Gardens, Biblical
Garden, Garden for the Blind, Japanese Garden, and Children’s
Garden. (All walkways accommodate handicapped.)

Also featured are several Texas houses, reconstructed on the site
to help illustrate and interpret the regional theme of the Native
Texas Area.

Newest feature is the 90,000-square-foot Lucile Halsell
Conservatory, a complex of below-ground greenhouses that use the
earth’s insulation to limit plant exposure to the elements. Only the
pyramidal glass roofs are visible from above ground. Sixteen feet
below ground several different ecosystems surround a courtyard
and pond.

Gardens are open Tues. - Sun. and holidays 9 am. - 6 p.m. at
565 Funston (just north of Fort Sam Houston). Admission.
Brackenridge Park — Includes rustic stone bridges and winding
walks, gleaming pools, and Japanese Tea Garden. On occasion the
Sunken Gardens Theater presents entertainment. Also an aerial
skyride and the Brackenridge Eagle, one-fifth scale model of diesel
train. Innumerable picnic spots; bridle paths. Adjacent to San
Antonio Zoo (which see).

Buckhorn Hall of Horns — Formerly downtown, the vintage
Buckhorn Saloon developed one of world's finest collections of
animal horns. Today the old saloon’s famous horn and mounted
animal collection is displayed at the Lone Star Brewery along with
comparable Hall of Fins, Hall of Feathers, a collection devoted to
famous marksman Ad Topperwein, and a superb aggregation of
antique and custom firearms. Hall of Texas History wax museum
recalls Texas history events from Cabeza de Vaca to Teddy
Roosevelt. Also preserved is house in which O. Henry lived while
he published The Rolling Stone newspaper in San Antonio. Open
daily at the brewery, 9:30 am. - 5 p.m. 600 Lone Star Blvd.
Admission.

Cowboy Museum and Gallery —Full-size re-creation of an
1870s false-front trail town built from salvaged materials includes
Bella Union Saloon, general store, jail, and cavalry fort. Exhibits




recall days of cowboys and Indians, gunfights, trail drivers, cattle
barons, and gunfights. Western art gallery. Open daily, 10 am, - 7
p.m. 209 Alamo Plaza. Admission.

Dining Train — “The Texan” recaptures the mystique of a
by-gone era as diners (who sometimes dress in 1940s attire) roll
through the Texas countryside in refurbished railroad cars and enjoy
a sumptuous dinner in the dining car. Wed. - Sat. 7 p.m.; Sun. 5
p.m. Reservations required. 1-800-282-5973. Departs from historic
1903 Southern Pacific depot at St. Paul Sq. (just east of convention
center). Fare.

General Cos House — Outstanding example of early San
Antonio dwelling, in La Villita (see below). Was scene of signing on
Dec. 9, 1835, of Articles of Capitulation by Gen. Perfecto de Cos
after Texans had captured San Antonio from Mexican forces.

Hall of Texas History & Wax Museum — Collection of
life-size dioramas depicting epic moments in the state’s colorful
history — from the coming of first Spanish missionaries in the early
1700s, through the turmoil of frontier violence, revolution, years as
an independent republic, and union with the United States. Open
daily at the Lone Star Brewery, 10 am. - 5 p.m. 600 Lone Star
Blvd. Admission.

HemisFair Park — Site of 1968 Texas World's Fair, now a focal
point of downtown entertainment and recreation. The 750-foot
Tower of the Americas offers two sky-high dining levels plus an
observation deck with panoramic view of the city; open daily:
admission. Location of Institute of Texan Cultures and Mexican
Cultural Institute. (See individual listings of each.)

A water park, around Tower of the Americas, features calm
water flowing into rushing waterfalls. Walkways, wading ponds, and
observation decks.

Hertzberg Circus Museum — Vividly depicts, for “big top” fans
of all ages, evolution of the “the greatest show on earth.” Festive
oil paintings, Mr. and Mrs. Tom Thumb's carriage, antics of a
mechanical Viennese clown! It's all in miniature, but would win P.T.
Barnum’s unqualified approval. Open daily except Sun. 9 a.m. - 5:30
p.m. Also holidays and Sun. 1 p.m. - 5 p.m. May - Oct. 210 W.
Market St.

IMAX®Theatre — “Alamo . . . The Price of Freedom” — 45-minute
docudrama sponsored by Luby's begins with arrival of William B.
Travis on Feb. 3, 1836, in San Antonio, and tells story of the 189
defenders who chose to die for freedom. IMAX® Theatre screen,
six stories tall. Other IMAX® features shown along with 70-mm
conventional films. Theater opens daily at 10 a.m. In Rivercenter

BOTANICAL GARDENS AND LUCILE HALSELL CONSERVATORY,
SAN ANTONIO

DOCENT WITH CHUCK WAGON AT INSTITUTE OF TEXN CULTURES
IN SAN ANTONIO

Mall, 803 E. Commerce St., across from rear entrance to the
Alamo. For schedule of films, call 512/225-4629.
Institute of Texan Cultures —Here's history not concermed
with dry events, but with the people who accomplished
them — people who created the robust kaleicoscope that is Texas
today. Twenty-six ethnic and culural groups featured i1 a rich
variety of exhibits...where they came from and what they did, their
food and clothing, their music and festivals. Don't miss the
multimedia show four times daily in the Institute’s central dome.
It's a great place to discover the rcots of Texas, and it's frae: open
Tues. - Sun., 9 a.m. - 5 p.m. HemisFair Park.
Jose Antonio Navarro State Historic Site — Three
limestone structures, circa 1850 —the home, office, and separate
kitchen of Navarro, promirent Mexican-Texan patriot who was
among signers of Texas Declaration of Independence. Restored by
Texas Parks and Wildlife Dept. authentic pericd furnishings,
personal memorabilia. Open Tues. - Sat. 10 am. - 4 p.r. 228 S.
Laredo St. Admission.
King William District — Area settled by prominent German
merchants in late 19th Century, designated state’s first Historic
District. Virtually all homes and mansions have been or are being
restored. The Steves Homestead, oreserving elegant furnishings in
Victorian mansion of 1870s, is open daily 10 am. - noon; 1-5 p.m.
509 King William St. Admission. District walking tour availeble from
Conservation Society office, 107 King William St.
Lakes — Braunig, Calaveras, Canyon, Medina See LAKES listing.
La Villita— (The Little Village) Restored Mexican village captures
charm of the past amid narrow streets, shaded patios, and
authentic adobe houses with small restaurants, arts, and crafts
shops. Beside the river in heart of downtown, a romantic satting for
fiestas and cultural events. Bounded by S. Alamo anc Nueva Sts.
Arneson River Theatre in the open air presents Latin-flavored and
other performances several times weekly during much of the year.
McNay Art Museum — Works of artists who charted course of
20th-Century painting. Once occupied by Marion Koogler McNay,
patroness of modern art, museum houses post-Impressionistic
paintings of Cezanne, Gauguin (one a self-portrait),
Toulouse-Lautrec, and Van Gogh. ‘Ninslow Fomer and Joan Marin
number among Americans, but the intemnztional collecsion also
includes works of Diego Rivera anc El Greco. Two galleries devoted
to Indian arts and crafts from New Mexicc. Open Tues. - Sat. 9
am.-5pm.; Sun. 2-5 p.m. 6000 N. New Braunfels St.
Majestic Theatre — Opened in 1929; closed in 1974; reopened in
1989 as a performing arts center, -he Majestiz is said to ke one of
the finest “atmospheric” theatres sver built. Completely restored.
and entered on the National Register of Histoqic Places, ths theatre
combines Barogue, Spanish Mission, and other motifs from Greek
and Roman traditions to create a fantasy environmsant. For
performance schedules call 512/226-3333. 212 E.Houston St.
El Mercado — Like a typical market from the interior of Mexico:
local handicrafts and imports including wrougnt iron, pottery, wood
carvings, leather and straw goods, and cclorful stalls featuring
farm-fresh produce. Santa Rosa and Commerca Sts.




SIDEWALK CAFES, CABARETS, BOUTIQUES AND HOTELS LINE THE
RIVER WALK IN SAN ANTONIO

KING WILLIAM DISTRICT IN SAN ANTONIO,
SETTLED BY PROMINENT GERMAN MERCHANTS
IN LATE 19TH CENTURY, IS TEXAS’ FIRST HISTORIC DISTRICT

Mexican Cultural Institute — Exhibits of contemporary Mexican
artists. Open Tues. - Fri. 9 am. - 5:30 p.m. Sat, Sun. noon - 6
p.m. HemisFair Park.

Military Bases Complex — Since San Antonio's founding as a
presidio more than two centuries ago, the military has been an
integral part of the city. Most military installations require a visitor's
pass, which usually may be obtained at the gate. For security
reasons, some areas are restricted.

Brooks Air Force Base —Founded in 1918 and scene of
history's first mass paratroop drop. Hsadcuarters of Aerospace
Medical Division with USAF School of Aerospace Medicine, first
institution of its kind in world, and USA= Occupational and
Environmental Health Laboratory, and the USAF Human Resources
Laboratory. Tours are available Mon. - Fri.; call 512/536-3234.

Fort Sam Houston — Established 1876, has witnessed

DANCERS AT LA VILLITA, SAN ANTONIO

evolution of military from infancry and cavalry to airborre and
motorized forces. Domiratec by famous watchtower, historic
quadrangle that once detained Geron mo and his renegade Apaches,
now confines onlv -ame dee- and peacocks. Fort Sam headquarters
both the U.S. Fifth Army and Broo<e Army Medical Center.

Fort Sam Houston Meaical Museum — More than 20C years
of U.S. Army mzdicine s displayed in the Army Medical
Department Museum, mcved in 1989 to San Antonio from
Washington wherzs it was founded in 1852. From the small staff in
the Continental Arry to teday's technology, the museum captures
the spirit of the doctors, nurses, anc medics who performed
selflessly in wartime. Oper Wed. - Sun. "0 a.mi. - 4 p.m. Bldc. 1046
at Harry Wurzbach and S-anley Rds.

Fort Sam Houston Museum — Ch-onicles the story aof Fort
Sam Houston and te U.S. Arry in tae San Antonio area from 1845
to the present. Individual exribits and audiovisual programs highlight
10 important periods, from the post's origin through Sherman’s
concentration polizy the “Rough Riders’ of the Spanish-American




War, military aviation, the troubled Mexican border, World Wars |
and Il, and the cold war. Self-guided tour maps of the fort available
here. Open Wed. - Sun. 10 am. - 4 p.m. Bldg. 123 on S-4 Rd,

Kelly Air Force Base — Young aviator named Charles
Lindbergh trained here, as did Billy Mitchell and “Hap” Arnold. Both
the Air Logistics Center and the Air Force Electronic Security
Command are headquartered at Kelly, nation’s oldest military
airfield.

Lackland Air Force Base — History and Traditions Classroom,
the small air museum at Lackland, is open free to the public daily.
Collections include aircraft equipment dating from World War | to
current jet engines and aircraft displays. "Gateway to the Air Force”
aptly describes Lackland, where many airmen first train.

Randolph Air Force Base — Official Air Force Records Center,

also provides pilot training. The base's famous landmark, dubbed
the “Taj Mahal,” has become a symbol of professional flight
training to thousands of Air Force pilots.
Missions of San Antonio— In additon to the Alamo, four
other San Antonio missions were established by Franciscan friars in
the early 18th Century. A map for the “Mission Trail” driving route
{signed on city streets) is available from the Visitor Information
Center (which see). £l Dia de las Misiones (The Day of the
Missions) is a colorful, annual salute to these historic structures on
the first Sun. in Aug.

Mission Nuestra Senora de la Purisima Concep-
cion — Established in 1731, more than 20 years under
construction. Massive church with twin towers and cupola is oldest
unrestored stone church in U.S., standing as completed in 1755.
Adjacent cloister arcade is partly restored. Church acoustics are
equated with the Mormon Tabernacle. 807 Mission Rd.

Mission San Francisco de la Espada— Also established
1731, favorite of many students of Spanish period in Texas, and
popular with photographers. The little church building, restored
several times, is still in use. Ruins of walls that once surrounded
the mission compound; foundations of a granary; baluarte, or
fortified tower, can still be seen. Espada Rd. south. Near the
mission is an aqueduct over Piedra Creek, part of mission’s
irrigation system built in 1740s. System includes dam on San
Antonio River and acequia (irrigation ditch) still in use after more
than 200 years. The aqueduct is a National Historic Landmark.

Mission San Jose y San Miguel de Aguayo — Known as
the “Queen of Missions,” is both a State and National Historic Site.
Founded 1720; church built between 1768-82. Entire mission
compound has been restored, including outer wall with Indian
dwellings, granary and workshops. Old flour mill outside north wall
was built about 1790, first in Texas. Visitors are fascinated by rich
facade of domed church, and by sculptured exterior of sacristy
window known as “the Rose Window,” or “Rosa’s Window.” In
granary is model of mission as it looked in late 1700s. 6539 San
Jose Dr. at Mission Rd.

Mission San Juan Capistrano — Like both Espada and
Concepcion, established 1731, Extensive restoration work has been
carried out. Besides charming little chapel with open bell tower,
there are ruins of a larger church that was never completed.
Restored missionary residence displays artifacts from Spanish
colonial period. Church still serves community of Berg's Mill, now
part of city. Graf Rd. off Mission Rd.

Plaza Theater of Wax — More than 200 wax figures in several

1731 MISSION CONCEPCION IN SAN ANTONIO

theme settings. The Texas History section emphasizes the heroes
of the Alamo; the Theatre of Horrors features the Frankenstein
monster, Count Dracula, the Wolfman and a dozen more in a
participatory environment; the movie section’s lifelike figures are
drawn from such popular films as “Ben Hur,” “The King and |” and
“Dr. Zhivago.” Open daily except Christmas and New Year's,
9am. -7 pm. in winter; till 10 p.m. in summer. Across from the
Alamo at 301 Alamo Plaza.

Ripley’s Believe It or Not!— More than 500 exhibits let
visitors explore eight major theme galleries containing unique
artifacts and oddities from original collection of Robert Ripley. Open
daily except Christmas and New Year's, 9 am. - 7 p.m. in winter:
till 10 p.m. in summer. Across from the Alamo at 301 Alamo Plaza.

River Walk— One level below the busy streets of downtown,
the Paseo del Rio is San Antonio's premier visitor experience!
Meanders several miles through midtown beneath giant cypress
trees and palms, accented by tropical foliage and flowering shrubs.
Edged by popular hotels, art and gift shops, restaurants and
sidewalk cafes, boutiques, and cabarets. Riverboat taxis; half-hour
scenic riverboat cruises (fee). Access from Alamo Plaza, Rivercenter
Mall, and city streets including South Alamo, South Broadway,
Presa, Navarro, St. Mary's, Market, Commerce and Crockett.

San Antonio Museum of Art— Six-building complex of
renovated historic (1883) brewery. Opened 1981 to house art of the
Americas: pre-Columbian, American Indian, Spanish Colonial,
18th-20th Century American paintings, and sculpture: photography,
furniture, and decorative arts. Works by Hans Hofmann, William
Merritt Chase, Ernest Lawson. Open Mon. - Sat. 10 am. - 6 p.m.
(Tues. 9 p.mJ; Sun. noon - 6 p.m. 200 W. Jones Ave. off
Broadway. Admission, except free Tues. 3 - 9 p.m.

San Antonio Zoo — An oasis inhabited by more than 3,000
animals of over 700 different species; the third largest animal
collection in North America. It is a sanctuary for various endangered
species like the whooping crane, snow leopard, and white rhino.
Shaded by towering oak, pecan, and cypress trees, there are natural
habitats with rocky cliffs and moats. An Australian walkabout offers
face-to-face viewing of koalas, kangaroos, and other animals from
Down Under. Africa’s Rift Valley exhibit displays an array of African
wildlife, and a $3-million children’s zoo features a tropical boat tour
of animal and plant exhibits from around the world. Live animal
exhibitions from eagles to seals, and elephant and camel rides are
scheduled most days in summer. Two aquariums display sharks,
moray eels, reef fish, assorted marine specimens. Wheelchair
access, restaurant. Open daily 9:30 a.m. - 5 p.m. (till 6:30 Apr. -
Nov.). Near downtown at 3903 N. St. Mary's at Brackenridge Park.
Admission.

San Fernando Cathedral —Because of Catholic influence in
San Antonio, the cathedral and city have shared long history since
its foundation laid in 1738 by Canary Island colonists who had been
given land and title in New Spain (San Antonio) by King Phillip V of
Spain. San Fernando faced series of disasters from 1828-1868: fire
in 1828; dome shattered, wall pockmarked from artillery
bombardment, 1835; Gen. Santa Anna raised flag of “no quarter,”
1836, during siege of Alamo; roof collapsed in 1858: and fire
damage again at end of Civil War. In 1926 San Antonio raised to an
archdiocese, making cathedral home for bishop. After undergoing
renovation, was rededicated in 1977. Site of historic papal visit in
1987. Between West Market & West Commerce Sts. downtown.

SAN JOSE, THE “QUEEN OF MISSIONS,” IN SAN ANTONIO
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GOVERNOR’S PALACE IN SAN ANTCNIO WAS SEAT OF
SPANISH GOVERNMENT IN 1772

Sea World of Texas — Even in the heart of Texas Hill Country,
lumbering walruses glayful otters, loveable dolphins, and giant killer
whales find Texas as hcmey as tne Pacific or Atlantic Oceans at
Sea World's $140-milion park. Five performing stadiums for marine
animal shows. The undisputed star is Shamu, the killer whale
whose intelligence, grace, and bsauty have won the hearts of
millions. In addition te marine animals, there is a 12.5-acre lake for
the graceful water-skiers show; playground for children; aquariums
displaying sharks, rays, sawfish and hundreds of vibrantly hued fish;
colorful waterfowl, including bright pink flamingos, competing for
color with the park’s floral beautv. Open weekends spring and fall;
daily during summer. For schedule and information call
1-800-422-SWTX. At Ray Ellisor Dr. & Westover Hills Blvd. off
Texas 151, 15 miles NW of dowrtown. Admission.

Southwest Craft Center —Foused in restored 1851 Ursuline
Academy, city’s only remaining example of French Provincial
architecture; tours of “ormer girls school and historic chapel
available on request. Gallery-V sitor Center features myriad
examples of pottery, demonstraticns of pottery making, elaborate
hand weaving, works in stained class and lead crystal. Open Mon. -
Sat. 10 a.m. - 4 p.m. 30C Augusta St.

Spanish Governor’s Palace —In 1772 San Antonio became
seat of Spanish government in Taxas, headquartered at 10-room
Spanish Governor s Palace on Military Plaza. It was to this
adobe-walled structure that Moses Austin came in 1820 for
permission to bring a colony of U.S. citizens into Spanish Texas.
Many commandants of >residio de Bexar and Spanish governors
lived and ruled here. Building is tyfical of colonial Spain with carved
doors, low-beamec ceilings, graps arbor and mosaic-tiled patio.
Camaron St. at Milizary Plaza. Admission.

Splashtown - Sar Antonio— 15-acre water recreation park
features water slidss. the world’s largest surf-tech pool, a sandy
beach, a restful river, ard childran’s activities. Open June - Sept.
I-35 at Coliseum Rd. Admiission.

Streetcars — Utilizing rubber-tired replicas of antique cars, four
routes of VIA San Antciio Strestcars reach historic districts and
other sites of visitor interest. Route maps available at hotels and
Visitor Information Center (see belcw). Small fare.

The Texas Star Trail — Historical 2.6-mile walking tour
designated by blue cisks in sidewalks, with 80 historic sites and
landmarks identifiec. Begns and 2nds at the Alamo. Free brochures
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and maps from Visitor Information Center (see below).

Visitor Information Center — Details about San Antonio
attractions and events, free maps, directions, literature,
accommodations, and dining information. Provided daily 9 am. -
5:30 p.m. by San Antonio Convention & Visitors Bureau, 317 Alamo
Plaza. Ph. 512/270-8748 or 1-800-447-3372.

Witte Memorial Museum — Extensive exhibits covering natural
history and natural science of Texas; dioramas of Texas flora and
wildlife. Rebuilt on grounds are four early Texas houses and
furnished log cabin. Slide presentation about San Antonio’s history
and contemporary scene. Open Mon. - Sat. 10 a.m. - 5 p.m. (Tues.
9 p.m.); Sun. noon - 5 p.m. 3801 Broadway. Admission, except free
Tues. 3 -9 p.m.

Yturri-Edmunds Historic Site— One of few adobe buildings
remaining in city, homestead built c. 1850, is part of complex that
includes historic mill (sometimes used for corn-grinding
demonstrations), Oge Carriage House from King William District,
and 1855 Postert House. Open Mon. 10 am. - 4 p.m. 257
Yellowstone at Mission Trail.

SATTLER Pop. 30 Alt. 909 Map L-16

General — Nestled in rolling Texas Hill Country
and eastern Comal County, was also known as
Mountain Valley and Walhalla, for the Walhalla
Singing Club organized in 1877; named for
William Sattler. Today center for commercial
activities around Canyon Lake. Additional
information for events, activities and accommodations from Canyon
Lake Chamber of Commerce on F.M. 2673, or call 512/964-2223.
Dinosaur Flats — Site of hundreds of dinosaur tracks uncovered
by excavators in 1982. Scientists theorize tracks made by
three-toed and strange round-footed “thunder lizards” some
hundred million years ago in limey mud of a saltwater marsh by an
ancient sea; the mud eventually became limestone, preserving the
trails where dinosaurs walked. Open daily except Wed., 10 am. - b
p.m. Closed Dec. 15 - Jan. 15. 2 mi. SW on F.M. 2673; admission.
Lake — Canyon. See LAKES listing.
Wildlife Wilderness — 150-acre drive-through animal preserve.
Exotic animals such as emu, llamas and elands, plus such native
species as deer, armadillos, and goats. Children enjoy a petting pen
housing a variety of baby animals. Open daily Mar. - Dec.;
weekends only Jan. - Feb. Hours 10 a.m. to one hour before
sunset; closed Thanksgiving, Christmas. F.M. 306 7 mi. south.
Admission.

SELMA Pop. 520 Alt. 875

Map BB-8

General — Settled 1847 in a region that was

open range country. A post office was

established in the late 1870s, but San Antonio’s
growth eclipsed that of all other Bexar County
communities.

Blue Bonnet Palace — Country/Western
entertainment complex includes dance hall, indoor bull-riding arena,
outdoor sports, and rodeo arena. Big name country stars,
professional cowboys, special events, and entertainers. Open at 7
p.m., Fri, Sat. Garden Ridge Exit of |-35 north of San Antonio;
south on access road. Admission.



THE LCWER RIO GRANDE

VALLEY

It's not really a valley, but when
Texans say “The Valley” everybody
knows where they mean. It's a flat
alluvial plain that stretches along the
Rio Grande at the state’s southern
tip. Mexico is just across that river,
and Hispanic influences are strong
along the Texas side, too.

Visitors like the colorful, bicultural

influences — the throb of Spanish gui-

tars, the spicy tang of Mexican cui-

sine, soft syllables of the Spanish
language intertwined with everyday
English.

From the Valley cities grouped in
this special section and listed below,
Mexico is just a bridge away, and few
travelers to The Valley leave without
making the brief foreign crossing.
Prized souvenirs include hand-blown
glass, embroidered Mexican shirts
and dresses, wrought iron, ceramics,
large or small items of brass, and
jewelry to prompt second looks “back
home.” The Valley’'s population
swells every winter when throngs of
Winter Texans from frozen northlands
choose The Valley as an escape from
wintery blasts, but whatever the sea-
son, The Valley offers sights to see
and things 10 do that are different,
and fun. Bienvenido, y’all!

Alamo Port Mansfield
Brownsville Raymondville
Donna Rio Grande City
Edinburg Rio Hondo
Harlingen Roma
McAllen San Juan
Mission South Padre
Pharr Island Weslaco
Port Isabel

After several special sections like
this at the front of this book, see
page 76 where alphabetical listings of
other Texas cities and towns begin,
each with fascinating attractions to
enrich your travels anywhere in the
Lone Star State.

AGAIHS AND TREASURES AWAh’ SHOPPERS IN

MATAMOROS, MEXICO

ALAMO Pop. 8,210 Alt. 99 Map U-16

General —In irrigated area of southern Hidalgo

County; inzorporated 1924 and named for Alamo

Land and Sugar Co. Abundent vegetables, citrus,

\ and winter resort-retirement area; also one of

‘e Valley's gateways to Mexico. (Via U.S 281;
McAllen--dalgo-Reynosa Intsmational Bridge.)

Santa Ana National Wildlife Refuge — About 2,000 acres of

thick, brushy growth typiczi of Valley aefore agricultural davelop-

ment preserves and protects abundant wildlife and plant soecies,

many fcund nowhere else in US. Rare birds prominent during

winter szason. interpretve wildlife tram rides operate late Nov. -

mid-Apr. Privatz cars use 74rile wildlife drive on days when tram

i3n't operating. \/alk-through zccess any time during daylight hours.

Three <e f-guidac nature waks; one for wheelchairs. Visitor center

open weekdays 8 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.; wezkends 9 am. - 4:30 p.m.;

(closed federal holidays); tram ride fee. Entrance 0.4 mile east of
U.S. 281'F.M. 907 intersectizn. some 7.5 miles south of Alamo.

SUNDERLAND CACTUS GARDEN AT ALAMO
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Sunderland’s Cactus Garden — Five acres of native and ex-
otic cacti and succulents; among thousands of plants, one is the
largest nursery-grown cactus in Texas, a 25-foot specimen of
Packycereus pringlii, native to small area of Baja California. Many
rare species propagated here from seed. Cactus shop and gardens
open Sun. - Fri.; guided group lecture tours by appointment on
Sunday. North of Alamo 0.7 mile on F.M. 907 at F.M. 495.

BIRD WATCHING IS POPULAR
AT SANTA ANA NATIONAL
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BROWNSVILLE Pop. 98,962 Alt. 57 Map U-17

General — Texas' southernmost citv, interna-
tional seaport, airport and rairoad interchange
point on Mexican border. Area dates from eolo-
nial days of Imperial Spain, covering oeriods of
exploration, wars, revolutions, and colorful,
though infamous, banditry.

City began in 1846 when Gen. Zachary Taylo- estabisned Fort
Brown to confirm Rio Grande as national boundarv after Republic of
Texas became a U.S. State. Regrettably, that very incident touchec
off U.S-Mexican War, 1846-48. Several existing buildings of -ort
Brown are now part of Texas Scuthmost Jr. College (telow). An-
other institution of higher learning on same campus i3 Univ of
Texas Pan American.

Brownsville is the Rio Grande Valley’s largest city wrose indus-
tries include electronics, food processing and petrochemicals. Vaca-
tioners are attracted by subtropical climate, proximity -0 Mexico
excellent golf courses, and access to South Padre Islard.

Major annual event is Charro Days, a spectacular four-day cos-
tume fiesta, usually late Feb., that features parades, muskc, dancing
and foods of this colorful two-nation region.

Brazos Island State Park — Although state-owned, park is ac-
tually an undeveloped beach on the Gulf of Mexico.. beautiful
beach, but no facilities. And it's not an island, tut a smell sgit o
land (Boca Chica) just south of South Padre Islard. Permitted
activities include camping, surfing, fishing, swiriming, pcnicking.
and nature study. Half-mile-long stone jetty at northern erd prov des
Gulf fishing. About 22 miles east of Brownsville via Texas £.
Brownsville Art League Museum — Historic building with art
exhibits. Open Mon. - Fri. 9:30 a.m. - 3 p.m. In Ft. Brown area at
230 Neale Dr.

Brownsville Information Center —Beside US. 77/83 (=M.
802 exit) in north Brownsville. Detailed visitor nformazicn, rraps
and tourist literature about local attractions and Matamarcs, Mexico.
just across the Rio Grande. Open daily 8:30 a.m. - 5 p.m.

Fort Brown/Texas Southmost Jr. College — Established
1846, fort housed troops during Mexican War, defended border.
changed hands during Civil War. Noted for work of Williar~ C
Gorgas, later US. Army Surgeon General, whose stucies led to
eventual control of yellow fever. Original hospitel now administra-




SIBERIAN TIGER, GLADYS PORTER ZZO IN BROWNSVILLE

Zion building of Texas Southros: Jr. College, a municipel coed
“acility. Other remaining builcings are post headquarters, medical
iab, guardhouse, and morguz. At terminus of Taylor Ave.

Gladys Porter Zoo — Elaboste zoological park without bars or
cages. Rare exotic animals dispayed in natural settings or a mul-
“itude of small islands; closeup vizws through one-way glass in a
series of “caves” adjacert to erimal dens. Zoo divided in:o four
‘worlds"”: Africa, Asia, Australie/ ~donesia, and South America.
Open daily, Ringgold and Sixth 3:s. 4dmission.

Historic Brownsville Museum — Photo exhibits, data, exhibits
of local history. Housed in restored Southern Pacific depot Open
Tues. - Sat. 10 a.m. - 4:30 g.r. 6£° E. Madison. Admission.
Matamoros, Mexico — Just acress Rio Grande from Brownsville,
caters to hosts of U.S. visitors with night clubs, restaurants, cocktail
rooms, and gift shops. 3argains in sottery and wealth of handicrafts
in Mexican market arez. Access via Gateway Bridge (toll) &t termi-
nus of E. 14th St. or via B&M Ral<ad Bridge (toll). (See MEXICO:
Entrance and Exit Regulations, at erd of book.)

Palmito Hill Battlefield —Last land engagement of Civil War
fought near Brownsville at Palmito Ranch. Confederates command-
ed by Col. John S. Ford, not havg heard of Lee's surrender at
Appomattox a month earlie”, -outad and captured Federal force in
running encounter on May 12-13, “865. After battle, Confederates
lsarned from their prisoners cf South's capitulation. Victors then
became formal captives o tkeir farmer prisoners. An Fhistorical
marker is 12 miles east on Texes 4

BROWNSVILLE'S GLADYS PORTEF: ZOO
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Palo Alto Battlefield — North of Brownsville near intersection of
F.M. 1847/FM. 511 is site where artillery duel opened Mexican
War May 8, 1846. Cannon under command of Gen. Zachary Taylor
proved superior to that of Mexican Gen. Mariano Arista. Historical
marker gives details.

Port of Brownsville—On ship channel connecting to Gulf of
Mexico, port hosts ships from exotic foreign lands and large fleet of
shrimp boats. Huge offshore drilling rigs fabricated here. About
5 miles east off Texas 48.

South Padre Island — Some 25 miles northeast of Brownsville,
access from Port Isabel (which see) by causeway across Laguna
Madre. See SOUTH PADRE ISLAND this section.

Stillman House Museum — Residence built about 1850: home
of Charles Stillman, founder of Brownsville. Contains his posses-
sions, mementos of early Brownsville, furnishings, heirlooms,
books, coins, and pictures. Open Mon. - Fri. 10 am. - noon, 2 - 5
p.m.; Sun. 3 - 5 p.m. 1305 E. Washington. Admission.

DONNA Pop. 12,652 Alt. 88 Map U-16

General — Founded as station on St. Louis,
Brownsville & Mexico Railroad in 1906: named
for Donna Hooks, daughter of a townsite pro-
moter. Today a retail center for ranching and
intensive agriculture of Rio Grande Valley; hosts
abundant winter visitors.
Donna Hooks Fletcher Museum — Memorabilia, photos and
artifacts from town's founding; vintage furniture, hand tools, farm
and household articles, restored bar from early-day Blue Goose
Saloon. Housed in historic American Legion Hall (oldest in nation),
3rd block of S. Main. Open Wed. & Fri. 2:30 - 4:30 p.m.

DONNA HOOKS FLETCHER MUSEUM IS HOUSED IN NATION’'S OLDEST
AMERICAN LEGION HALL, DONNA

EDINBURG Pop. 29,885 Alt. 91 Map T-16

General —First named Chapin for townsite
promoter; renamed Edinburg 1911. Hidalgo Coun-
ty seat and western gateway to Lower Rio
Grande Valley; center of vast vegetable and citrus
culture. Industries include food processing, fur-
niture, foundry products, fertilizers, oil, and dairy
products. Home of Univ. of Texas Pan American.
Big Valley Raceway — Drag racing every other Sat. Feb. - Nov.
Nine miles north on U.S. 281; adjacent to Edinburg airport. For
information, 512/383-7223.
Edinburg Municipal Waterpark — Family fun at three-pool
swimming facility featuring 125-foot figure-eight waterslide, water
basketball, sand-pit volleyball, barbecue grills, and picnic tables.
Open each Sat. - Sun. from Apr. through Aug. at 123 E. Palm Drive.
Admission.



T

HIDALGO COUNTY HISTORICAL MUSéUM. EDINBLRG

Hidalgo County Historical Museum — Exzell=nt irtergretation
of 1he Hispanic-accented aea's colorful history includes pioneer
ranch and home items, clothing, ealy docurents, aid photos.
Housed in restored counzy jal. Open “ues. - Fri. 9 a.rm. - & p.m,;
Sun. 1-5pm. 12" E. Mclnzyre St.

Lake — El Sal del Rey — See LAKES isting.

Sheriff’'s Posse Rodeo-— Rodeo cowbovs demonstrate calf
roping, bull riding, and Quar:e~-Horse “zcing every Saturcay evenirg
at raodeo arena 2 miles south of Edi-ourg via U.S. 2&°; 0.5 mie
wes: on Wisconsin Rd.; free admission except during full-perfer-
mar ce rodeos.

HARLINGEN  Pop. 48,735 Alt. 35 Map T-17

General — Named for a city ir The Netharlands;
incorporated in 1905. From i1s beginri-g a trans-
N portation and distrikition Fuk for the ricn lower
Rio Grahdz valley. In the subtropical tip of Texas,
visitors are lured by oalmy temozratures itrough-
cut most of the year. landscepzs edced ov palm
trees and flaming bougainvillza, the aearnes:z of encnanting Old
IMexico, and proximity to su-f-washed Gulf beect2s. The2's almost
elways a harves: in progress — deas, carrots lettuce, spinach or
cadkage; in winter, a bounty of oranges and prized Texes Ruby Red
Grapefruit-is retu-ning after th2 disastrcus 193< “-eeze; in summer,
tons of cotton, sugar cane anc grain.
V 5it the chambar of coramerce at 311 E. Tyler St “or details
eboLt area attractions and activities. The Harlingz1 Tourist Center,

ORIGINAL WORK NG MODEL OF IWO JIMA WAR MEMORIAL SEEN AT
MARINE MILITARY ACADEMY IN HARLIMGEN

TRAVEL INFORMATION CENTER

L

S

FOR THE VALLEY AT HARLINGE

201 E. Madison St is the social headquarters tor winter visitors
from mid-Nov. to mid-Apr.

Near city's Industrial Air Park is the Marine M litary Academy, &

prep school dedicated to U.S. Marine Corps tradicions, and tre Ric
Grande Campus of Texas State Tachnical Institute.
Iwo Jima War Memorial —The original werkng model =f the
famous bronze statue at Arlington National Cemetery was donatec
bv sculptor Dr. Felix 'W. de Weldon to the Marine Military Academy
in 1981. The plaster has been treated for presarvation, ani the
relatively constant temperature and humidity here help with its
preservation.

The figures are 32 feet high; the M-1 rifle s 16 feet long, anc
the canteen would hold 32 quarts of water. The statue is on Iwc
Jima Blvd., along with visitor's center, museun~ aad gift shop, near
the Marine Military Academy.

Laguna Atascosa National Wildlife Refuge —See RIO
HONDQO this section.

Parks — Spacious city parks provide recreational facilities fcr botk
visitors and residents. Hill Park preserves old plentation heedquar-
ters of Lon C. Hill, founder of Farlingen and pioneer Valley devel-
oper. Pendleton Park offers tennis courts, swimming, sports tields,
playground, grills and picnic tables; 27-hole Harl ngen Municipal Golf
Course is off U.S. 77/83 at southwest edge of city.

Port of Harlingen — Barge facility on Arroyo Colorado prmarily
hendling incoming cargoes of oil, gasoline, ferilizers, sanc anc
gravel. Fishing excellent on Arroyo Colorado from port to GLI?. Oft
F.M. 106 about 5 miles east.

Rio Grande Valley Museum and Hospital Museum — His-
torical and cultural items, rock and shell displays and Valley mag
w th pinpoint lighting. Complex includes Paso Feel Stagecoach Inn,
c. 1850, with period furnishings; original Harlincen Hospitel with

VISITORS ENJOY SEVERAL RV PARKS IN HARLINGEN




vintage medical equipment, dental and medical offices of the
1920s, and Garden for the Blind. Open “ues. - =ri. 9 am. - noon..
2-5pm,; Sun. 2 -5 p.m. Boxwood and Raintree Sts.

Travel Information Center — Open daily yea- round, except for
Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve, Christmes Day and New Year's,
trained, professional bilingual travel counselors offer free maps.
literature about every part of Texas, ard expert help in charting
routes. Free tourism video shows, lavish tropical landscaping. At
intersection of U.S. 77/U.S. 83 in town; operated by the State
Department of ighways and Public Transportaticn.

Valley Greyhound Park — Greyhound racing year round witr
air-conditioned grandstand. Facilities include restaurant, clubhouse
dining, and concessions. Daily races: Men., Thurs., Fri. 7:30 p.m.
Wed., 1:30 and 7:30 p.m; Sat. 1 and 7:30 p.m.; Sun. 4 p.m. Take
Ed Carey Dr. south from U.S. 83. For racing infcrmation.
512/428-0161 cor in Texas 1-800-323-FACE.

McALLEN

Pop. 84,021

Alt. 122 Map U-16

General — In Texas' lush lower Rio Grande Val-
ley, noted for subt-opical climate, access to Olc
Mexico and tourist facil ties catering to thousands
of summer and wnter visitors. Many Midwest-
emers and Canadiens spend entire winter here
strolling in slacks and sport skirts amid blossom-
ing citrus groves. Tourist club caters to visitors with planned dailv
activities such as dances, tours, bridge, domino and shuffleboard
tournaments, shows, and concerts. Ecanomy oased on tourists,
citrus, vegetables, oil, gas, internatona trade with Mexico and
conventions that enjoy extensive facilities
McAllen International Museum — Variety plus! Mexican folk
art, colorful masks, and costumes in Ethnography Gallery. Museum
also features paintings and sculptures, plus traveling exhibits. Open
Tues. - Sat. 9 a.m. - 5 p.m.; and Sun. 1- 5 p.m. 1900 Nolana.
Reynosa, Mexico — Charming Mexican city o° over 500,000 jus:
8 miles south of McAllen, just across the Rio Grande. Several fine
restaurants long famed for elaborate wilc-game dinners; occasional
Sun. afterncon bullfights. Gift shops ca<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>